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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

Shanghaf Landmark Center
EBEERL

China’s property sector had a strong year in
2017.

China’s property continued to develop well in 2017, with overall
strong demand. The value of residential property sales rose
17% and average sales prices in the 100 major cities rose
7.1%. Markets were particularly strong during the first half of
the year. However, in the second quarter, the government,
concerned about excessive speculative demand, implemented
a number of policies to dampen this demand. Cities with
excessive price rises were required to implement policies to rein
in prices. Moreover, credit to the property sector was reduced.
As a result, demand and price increases moderated in the
second half of the year. Although these policies are negative,
the Group believes that the government is seeking to prevent
excessive price rises, and does not believe the government
wants to see a sharp drop in prices. Therefore, we do not
believe that restrictions will be excessive for 2018.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRBEE

HKC records a 111% increase in profits in
2017 due to higher sales, increase in property
prices and the completion of its Shanghai
commercial buildings.

In line with the strong markets, HKC recorded a net profit
of HKS1,244 .4 million, an increase of 111% compared to
HKS$589.5 million in 2016. Profits increased because of
increased unit sales of properties in Tianjin, Nanxun, and
Shenyang. In addition, the Group was able to increase the sales
price of units. As a result, revenues increased 11% and gross
margins on property sales increased to 29% in 2017 compared
to 25% in 2016.

Sales in Tianjin benefitted from strong positive sentiment. In
previous years, Beijing prices increased sharply given positive
sentiment in tier 1 cities, but given the proximity of Tianjin,
prices in Tianjin are now starting to catch up. Tianjin is also
benefitting from increased investment in the city as Xi Jinping,
since 2014, has mandated that the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region
should coordinate their development, creating a global city
cluster. Similarly, the Group’s Jiangmen residential sales have
been boosted given strong sales sentiment in the Pearl River
Delta, which encompasses both Shenzhen and Guangzhou,
where prices have also increased significantly. Meanwhile,
Shenyang is benefitting from a recovery in its economy.

The Group recorded significant revaluation gains from its
Shanghai commercial buildings which were completed in 2017.
The Landmark Center recorded a valuation gain of HK$1,075.2
million and Sinar Mas Plaza recorded a valuation gain of
HKS$35.3 million.

Focus in 2018 will be on leasing out Shanghai
properties and preparing for its next stage of
growth at Tuanbo Lake, Tianjin.

With the completion of its two Shanghai buildings, the Group
is focused on fully leasing out the two properties. These two
properties are located in the North Bund and offer outstanding
panoramic views of the Huangpu River, the Bund, and Lujiazui.
The Landmark Center is located just a few minutes from the
historical Bund District. As part of the North Bund project, the
5-star W hotel operated by the Starwood Group opened in July.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

Increased office supply in Shanghai in 2017 has created
some competitive pressures in leasing out the two properties.
However, the Group expects that both commercial properties
will be leased out by the end of 2018, and is expected to
achieve a full year of earnings in 2019. As a result, the Group
will have a new source of recurrent earnings which should
balance the more volatile, but higher earnings potential for
residential development.

The Group expects to continue to maintain its residential
property sales in 2018. However, upward rises in demand and
price will be limited by continued purchase restrictions and
continued restrictions on credit for the property industry. In
Shenyang, the purchase restrictions are relatively less strict, so
sales are expected to remain strong.

For 2018, as the Group depletes its inventory of residential
properties in Tianjin, Jiangmen, and Shenyang, the Group
intends to develop a new source of residential property
revenues through its 804,000 square meters land bank at
Tianjin Tuanbo Lake. Located southwest of Tianjin, the site
offers waterfront property with scenic lake views. With a plot
ratio of up to 1.04, a maximum of 836,000 square meters of
low rise properties can be developed-or enough land area for
5-8 years of development. The land was originally purchased
for RMB90O0 per square meter. However, given the increasing
integration of the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei area, and lack of land
supply, prices for nearby plots have recently surged to at least
RMB4,000 per square meter. The Group has begun master
planning design for the project, and is targeting to commence
site work for phase 1 by the middle of 2019.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRBEE

The Group has not recently purchased additional land bank
given the recent high prices for land. Management feels that the
property markets are cyclical, and intends to wait for a more
appropriate time to purchase land at what it believes will be a
more appropriate time. The Group has a strong balance sheet,
with a net debt/equity ratio of only 1%, with little foreign debt,
so it is well positioned to make acquisitions if an opportunity
arises in China or other countries.

Improved wind resources in the second half of
the year help CRE recover from poor first half
conditions.

During the first half of 2017, CRE, the Group’ wind power
subsidiary, suffered from poor wind resources. As a result,
interim earnings declined 22% year on year. However, wind
resources improved in the second half of the year, helping the
Group recover from the poor first half. Although overall wind
resources were still at a lower level, the Group’s wind farms
enjoyed lower overall curtailment compared to 2016. Together
with various measures to improve operational and economic
efficiencies, our wholly-owned and majority-owned wind farms
performed better, which led to an increase of 5% in revenue and
20% in gross profit as compared to last year. As a result, CRE’s
average wind utilization hours was 2,010 hours, 62 hours above
the national average of 1,948 hours.

CRE has been much more selective in picking wind power
projects. As a result, management believes that CRE has high
quality wind farms, generating HK$288.3 million of EBITDA in
2017, or HKS836,000/per MW, a level which management
believes is among the highest in the industry.
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRBEE

Reduced curtailment was the major development for 2017. A
number of ultra-high voltage transmission lines were completed
in the region in 2016 and 2017. At the same time, the
government has been very severe in restricting the development
of new wind farms in heavily curtailed areas. In 2017, the State
Grid and National Energy Administration announced goals to
further reduce wind and solar power curtailment from 20% in
2016 to less than 5% by 2020. For these reasons, curtailment
has declined nationally and at the Group’s wind farms, especially
for CRE’s Mudanjiang and Muling wind farms, where curtailment
was reduced from 21% in 2016 to 16% in 2017. With continued
support from the government and more transmission lines being
built and due to be completed, the Group expects curtailment to
continue declining.

Shanghai Sinar Mas Plaza
LB ERES
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR O

Financial review

During the year ended 31 December 2017, turnover amounted
to HKS1,789.1 million, an increase of 11% over turnover
of HKS1,605.2 million for the same period in 2016. Gross
profit for the period of HK$676.9 million increased 25%. The
Group recorded a net profit attributable to the equity holders
of HK$S898.8 million for the year under review, an increase
of 133% over the previous year. The Group recorded a
HKS1,075.2 million gain from the revaluation of its Shanghai
Landmark Center and a HK$35.3 million gain from the
revaluation of its Sinar Mas Plaza. Basic net profit per share
for the year amounted to HK170.0 cents per share, while basic
net profit per share for the same period in 2016 was HK73.0
cents per share. Book value per share was HK$25.1 in 2017
compared to HKS21.7 in 2016. The Group’s attributable value
in Landmark Center is valued at HK$2,982.2 million or HKS$5.6
per share, while Sinar Mas Plaza is valued at HK$1,780.3
million or HK$3.4 per share. Excluding revaluation gains and
non-recurring items, underlying pre-tax profit increased 2% to
HKS374.3 million, primarily because the Group increased sales
of its residential properties.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s total borrowings and
amount due to a shareholder amounted to HKS$3,022.3 million,
representing an increase of 3% when compared with the
equivalent figure of HK$2,944.4 million as at 31 December
2016. Total borrowings as at 31 December 2017 included
Hong Kong Dollar borrowings of HK$229.2 million (31
December 2016: HKS104.4 million) and Renminbi borrowings
are equivalent to HKS$2,793.1 million (31 December 2016:
HKS2,840.0 million).

The maturity dates for most of the Group’s outstanding
borrowings are spread over the next 14 years, with HKS514.2
million repayable within one year or on demand, HK$2,177.2
million repayable within two to five years, and HK$330.9 million
repayable after five years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DT

Most of the Group’s outstanding borrowings take the form of
interest-bearing loans, with floating interest rates.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had restricted cash of
HKS$398.0 million (31 December 2016: HK$614.7 million).
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents (includes short-term
bank deposits) amounted to HK$2,497.4 million (31 December
2016: HKS1,309.8 million).

The Group did not use financial instruments for financial hedging
purposes during the period under review.

The Group will continue its efforts to create an optimum financial
structure that best reflects the long-term interests of its
shareholders, and will actively consider a variety of alternative
sources of funding to finance its future investments.

Details of charges in group assets

During the period under review, the Group and certain of its
subsidiaries had charged certain assets worth HK$10,625.8
million (31 December 2016: HK$9,321.6 million) as security for
bank and other loans.

10 HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR O

Gearing ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio, defined as total borrowings plus
amount due to a shareholder divided by total equity as at
31 December 2017 was 19%, compared with 22% as at 31
December 2016. The Group’s net debt ratio for the same period
was 1%, compared with 7% as at 31 December 2016. This ratio
represents total borrowings plus amount due to a shareholder
minus cash and divided by total equity.

Contingent liabilities
The details of the contingent liabilities of the Group are set out
in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statement.

Business model

The Group is a Hong Kong based property developer focusing
on investing and developing property projects in Mainland China,
and aims to develop high quality products to create sustainable
value for its shareholders. The Group has a diversified property
portfolio model with investments in both residential projects
for sale; and commercial projects mainly for rental income.
The residential projects are located in Tianjin, Jiangmen and
Shenyang. The Group’s commercial projects, which are primarily
involved in office buildings and retail malls, are located in prime
business areas in Shanghai, Shenzhen, Beijing and Guangzhou.
The Group also has commercial property in Nanxun, Zhejiang
province.

Over the long term, the Group seeks to maintain a balance
between residential development for sale and commercial
investment properties for lease in order to create a sustainable
model with growth potential. Residential properties for sale
generate fast turnover, which should enhance return on
equity. Investment properties for lease, on the other hand,
create steady recurring income and cash flow as well as long
term capital appreciation, and are immune from the periodic
restrictions on residential properties.

The Group adopts a very prudent financial policy and given
the volatility of the property industry, aims to maintain a
conservative net debt/equity ratio. While most of the Group's
projects are in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the
Group may consider diversifying by investing in other countries.

The Group has also made an investment in the renewable energy
sector, and believes shareholders may benefit from China’s
need to develop non-polluting sources of energy.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR O

Business risks

As a China property developer, the Group is subject to Chinese
government property policies, development, marketing, and
other execution risks.

Currency risk

Most of the Group’s assets are in Renminbi. The Group conducts
a majority of its business operations in the PRC. The major
portion of revenue, expenses and debts are denominated in
Renminbi. Fluctuation in the exchange rates of Renminbi would
have limited impact on the Group’s operations. However,
depreciation of the Renminbi may have an adverse impact on the
Group’s book value.

Environmental policies

The Group aspires to be a leading sustainable Group, and has
therefore invested in the renewable energy sector, and uses
sustainable technologies in some of its property developments,
such as solar panels.

Business review

The China property sector continued to grow during the year,
with sales value increasing 11% compared to 2016. However,
the government, concerned about sharply rising prices in the
first half of the year, began implementing new policies to cool
the market starting in the second quarter. As a result, additional
restrictions were placed on buyers and banks were discouraged
from lending to this sector.

The Group therefore recorded a sharp increase in sales during
the first half, with sales moderating in the second half as
purchase restrictions increased and credit was tightened. But
for the year overall, contracted sales for the Group’s properties
in Tianjin, Jiangmen, and Shenyang, were strong, increasing
18% year on year to RMB1,223.9 million. Contracted sales
rose 15% to RMB496.1 million in Tianjin and decreased 39% to
RMB195.2 million in Jiangmen. Shenyang, which had previously
been affected by oversupply, showed the strongest increase,
with contracted sales increasing 87% to RMB532.6 million.
Shenyang’s economy has improved and purchase restrictions
were less than those of other cities that have experienced
excessive speculation.
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In Shanghai, the Group has mostly completed its two
commercial buildings: Landmark Center and Sinar Mas Plaza.
The two commercial projects are located in a prime area of
Shanghai with outstanding, panoramic views of the Huangpu
River, and account for a significant portion of the Group’s
investments.

Residential developments

Tianjin

Tianjin Eka Garden is on a prime location in the Nankai District
of Tianjin. The project consists of townhouses and high rise
apartments totaling gross floor area (“GFA”) of approximately
150,000 square meters. Construction for all three phases has
been completed.

The market environment for Tianjin remained strong in 2017 as
the city is becoming increasingly linked economically to Beijing.
The government is now coordinating the economic development
of Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei province, or the Jing-Jin-Ji region,
with the idea of creating a megalopolis capable of competing
with the Yangtze River Delta and the Pearl River Delta. As part
of the plan to develop the region, the government announced, in
the first half of 2017, plans to build a new model city in Xiongan,
about 100 km southwest of Beijing, with the idea of moving
many of the “non-capital functions” to Xiongan. The city will
initially cover 100 sq km, or around twice the size of Manhattan,
and could reach 2,000 sq km, or more than twice the size of
Singapore. Approximately RMB4 trillion could be spent on the
city over the next couple of decades, so there could be spillover
effects that could increase the desirability of the Group’s Tianjin
projects.

During the year, the Group sold approximately 22,600 square
meters of GFA, resulting in contracted sales of RMB496.1
million, an increase of 15% compared to the RMB432.9 million
during the same period in 2016. Sales were particularly strong
in the first quarter, but slowed in the second quarter as the
government made sales more difficult through various purchase
restrictions and by making it more difficult to obtain mortgages.
In 2017, the Group increased the sales price for apartments by
34% to approximately RMB26,500 per square meter.
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The Group’s land bank at Tuanbo Lake in Tianjin has benefitted
from increased interest in the area as land prices in the area
continue to increase, with recent transactions for land ranging
between RMB5,000-10,000 per square meter (compared to the
RMB1,200 per square meter that it is currently valued at on its
balance sheet). Development for Tuanbo Lake had been delayed
because of the need to wait for the promulgation of the Tianjin
master plan. However, during the year, the District Government
has given the Group permission to begin master planning. The
Group engaged the renowned design firm Chapman Taylor
for the master planning, and the first draft will be completed
in March 2018. The Group hopes to obtain approval of the
master plan by the middle of 2018. The land area can support
the development of 836,000 square meters of what the Group
believes will be a world class residential community, and will
provide the Group a substantial development pipeline. The
plan is to develop the site over five phases with a target to
commence the site works of phase 1 by the middle of 2019.

Jiangmen

Jiangmen Eka Garden is a residential project consisting
of GFA of approximately 189,000 square meters of low
rise townhouses and high rise apartments. The project is
located on an excellent site along a river bank, within walking
distance to the Jiangmen/Hong Kong ferry terminal and an
international school; and a marina club. The site is also close
to the Guangzhu Intercity Railway’'s Waihai Station connecting
Jiangmen to Guangzhou and Zhuhai.

Construction of all three phases has been completed, with the
last phase completed in the second half of 2016. The market
environment for the Pearl River Delta was particularly strong
in the first quarter. Purchase restrictions in Shenzhen and
Guangzhou motivated people to buy in Jiangmen which had not
announced any restrictions. As a result, almost all the high rise
units for phase 3 were sold. However, in the second quarter,
newly required residency requirements to purchase property
began to adversely affect sales.

The Group sold approximately 29,100 square meters of
townhouse and apartment units, recording contracted sales of
RMB195.2 million, a 39% decrease compared to RMB319.2
million during the same period in 2016. During the year, the
Group increased the sales price for phase three apartments to
approximately RMB6,600 per square meter, an increase of 6%
compared to the same period in 2016.
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Shenyang

Shenyang's economy showed considerable improvement for
the year. In 2017, Liaoning’s GDP increased 4.2% compared
to a 2.5% decline in 2016 as foreign direct investment in the
province increased 77.9% during the year. Moreover, Shenyang
was one of the few cities where purchase restrictions were
relatively limited. Given the improved economy and fewer
purchase restrictions relative to other cities, sales at the
Group’s Shenyang Eka Garden improved considerably.

Shenyang Eka Garden, located in one of Shenyang’s prime
residential areas, is adjacent to Shenyang’s Nanhu Park in
the center of city. The project, subdivided into sites A, B, and
C, consists of GFA of approximately 266,000 square meters
of townhouses, high rise apartments, and a few commercial
shops. For site B (GFA: approximately 133,500 square meters),
construction of all four high rise towers and townhouses has
been completed. For the year, the Group sold approximately
43,300 square meters of GFA, resulting in contracted sales
of RMB532.6 million, an increase of 87% compared to only
RMB285.2 million in the same period in 2016.

Site C (GFA: approximately 57,500 square meters) is divided
into two portions. One portion consists of two high rise blocks
(mainly for housing resettled residents) with ground floor shops
and a small communal block. A second portion, with a GFA of
approximately 6,000 square meters is now being developed into
low-rise apartments. Work on the superstructure is expected
to commence in the second quarter of 2018, with pre-sales
scheduled for mid 2018. Construction is expected to be
completed by the first quarter of 2019.
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Development of site A, with GFA of approximately 75,000
square meters, has been delayed because of the government’s
on-going relocation of existing residents. The relocation is now
near completion. Work is expected to commence in the second
half of 2018, with pre-sales scheduled in the third quarter of
2019, and handover targeted in the fourth quarter of 2021.

Investment properties

HKC's investment properties continued to generate a steady
stream of rental revenue for the Group during the period under
review. Leasing revenues increased 22% year on year to
HKS$202.8 million.

Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Beijing, and Nanxun

The Group’s existing property investment portfolio, consisting
largely of premium commercial and retail developments in
Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Beijing, and Nanxun. In Shenzhen, the
Group operates Shun Hing Square and South Ocean Center.
The renovation of Shun Hing Square was completed in January
2018, and will be renamed as Shenzhen Diwang Landmark
Center, and is expected to achieve significantly higher lease
rates in 2018. In Guangzhou, the Group operates CITIC Plaza.
And in Beijing, the Group operates a retail complex at Legation
Quarters, the former site of the United States diplomatic
compound in Beijing. The Group also owns a trading center
of about 180,000 square meters for furniture and building
materials in Nanxun, Zhejiang Province.

Shanghai

Future leasing revenues will be generated by the Group’s newly
completed commercial buildings in Shanghai. The Group has
two commercial projects in the North Bund, an area that is
benefitting from the improvement in infrastructure, including the
completion of the International Cruise Terminal, an underground
road connecting to the Bund and a new tunnel linking Hongkou
and Pudong. A continuous pedestrian riverside path starting
from Waibaidu Bridge at the northern end of the historical Bund,
and near the Group’s Landmark Center, all the way to Sinar
Mas Plaza, was opened in July. This should make the North
Bund area much more attractive and more closely linked to the
historical Bund district.
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Demand remains strong for office space in Shanghai. There
is strong demand from domestic corporations and more
multinational corporations are seeking to increase their market
share in the domestic market. While optimistic over the long
term, the Group remains cautious over the short term. More
than two million square meters of new offices will be completed
in 2018. However, stable lease rates suggest that the increased
supply is being absorbed by the high demand. According to
Knight Frank, Grade A lease rates during the fourth quarter of
2018 were stable at RMB9.7 per square meter per day.

The North Bund is set to gain from an increasing tendency
of price sensitive tenants to move from the central business
districts (“CBD’s") to nearby fringe districts such as the North
Bund. Eventually, the North Bund, particularly given its proximity
and improving infrastructure, is expected to gradually merge
with the CBD.

The Landmark Center, in which the Group has a 60% interest,
has a GFA of approximately 160,000 square meters (a
GFA of approximately 246,000 square meters including
basement) office and retail complex. The building is located
just a few minutes from the CBD and the historical Bund, and
offers panoramic views of the Huangpu River, the Bund, and
Lujiazui. The surrounding blocks are becoming an increasingly
fashionable area, with MGM's Bellagio Hotel opening across the
street at the end of 2017, and a nearby Bulgari Hotel about to
open in 2018. The Peninsula Hotel is also nearby. Landmark
Center was completed during the year, and the Group is now
focused on leasing out the property, generating a small amount
of leasing revenue during the second half of the year.

As a result of the completion, the value of the property has
increased, and the Group recorded a HK$1,075.2 million
revaluation gain.

Sinar Mas Plaza, in which the Group has a 25% interest, has
a GFA of approximately 257,000 square meters (GFA of
approximately 410,000 square meters including basement)
of office, hotel, and retail space. Construction has been
substantially completed and the focus is now on leasing out
the building. The office tower offers highly panoramic views of
the Shanghai skyline. The hotel commenced operation in July
2017, and is run by the Starwood Group under the W brand.
With its completion, the value of the North Bund property has
also increased, and the Group recorded a HK$35.3 million
revaluation gain.
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Renewable Energy

All of the Group’s renewable energy projects are under its
subsidiary, China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE").
The government continues to support the sector in order to
reduce pollution and reduce carbon emissions. Wind resources
were disappointing in Hebei and Gansu provinces during the first
half of the year, adversely affecting revenues at the Group’s
Danjinghe, Lunaobao, and Changma wind farms. However,
wind conditions improved considerably during the second half
of the year. In addition, government restrictions against the
construction of new wind farms in heavily curtailed regions and
the completion of new ultra high voltage transmission lines,
has resulted in a reduction in curtailment. As a result, CRE
recorded higher second half profits and was able to improve
on the disappointing earnings during the first half of the year.
Despite wind resources that were lower than expected, we
were able to achieve a similar level of power generation and net
income compared to 2016 through our focus on reducing unit
costs (“cost per kilo-Watt hour of generation”) and on improving
project economics. Overall, net income decreased slightly by
1% to HKS60.3 million during the year. Please refer to CRE's
annual report for more details.

Prospects

Property

The Group is moderately positive for 2018, but remains
cautious as the government attempts to prevent excessive
rises in property prices. However, the Group believes that the
government is only seeking to reduce risks, and is looking for
long term stability for the property markets, and expects the
market to be stable for the year.

For the first half of 2018, the Group expects continued strong
residential sales, although not as strong as the first half
of 2017, when demand was particularly strong before the
government implemented purchase restrictions. The Group
will continue focusing on sales of its residential properties in
Jiangmen, Tianjin, and Shenyang. Shenyang sales are expected
to remain strong given an improved economy and fewer
purchase restrictions relative to other cities. The Group expects
higher sales of villas as it has saved these higher margin
products for the end.
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A major focus for the Group is to fully lease out its commercial
properties at the Landmark Center and Sinar Mas Plaza. These
two properties will provide the Group with steady cash flow
over the long term and are immune from residential focused
tightening by the government. Despite the large supply of
commercial properties entering the market, lease rates have
remained stable. The Group is seeing demand from finance,
co-working space, and medical technology companies, so the
Group is moderately positive.

Tuanbo Lake will be a prime area of focus for future residential
property development as the land can support the development
of up to 836,000 square meters of residential property, or
enough for at least five to eight years of development. The
Group has begun the master plan design for the project, with the
intention of incorporating the development parameters of this
plan into the Control Master Plan for Tuanbo Lake. The District
Government plans to put forward our master plan to the Tianjin
City government for comments in early 2018. The Group is
working intensively with a target to commence site work of the
Phase 1 project by the middle of 2019, but is dependent upon
getting all the necessary approvals to begin construction.

The Group will complete the renovation of Shun Hing Square
in Shenzhen in the first quarter. The renovation is expected to
enable the Group to attract higher quality tenants, and should
result in increased revenues starting in 2018.

Work has begun on constructing additional low-rise apartments
in Shenyang. Excavation and lateral support work has been
completed, and construction is expected to begin by the middle
of 2018, with target completion by 2021.

In Nanxun, the Group still has one plot of land that can be
developed. Originally designed for a hotel, the land use has
recently been changed to allow for the construction of a
commercial building offering 23,600 square meters of high
end furniture display shops. These shops will supplement the
existing building materials and furniture trading center that is
adjacent to the land. Construction is estimated to begin in the
first quarter of 2018.
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Renewable energy

Curtailment is expected to continue declining from 2018 to
2020 during China’s 13th Five-Year Plan period, which should
increase the profitability of CRE’s existing portfolio. The Group
is now working on construction of its 74 MW Songxian wind
project in Henan Province. Completion of this project in the first
half of 2018 will increase CRE’s wind capacity by 21%. CRE is
optimistic over this project given the curtailment rate in this
region is relatively low and wind tariff rates are relatively high.

In addition to wind projects, CRE has invested in its first
4 MW distributed rooftop solar project on one of HKC's
commercial buildings located in Nanxun and was able to put
it into commissioning ahead of schedule before end of 2017.
Going forward, CRE may consider increasing its investments in
distributed solar in high power demand provinces around the
southern and eastern coastal regions of China.

Please refer to CRE’s annual report for more information.

Employees

As of 31 December 2017, the Group employed approximately
267 employees across its operations in Hong Kong and the
Mainland China. All employees are remunerated according to the
nature of their jobs, their individual performances, the Group’s
overall performance and prevailing market conditions.

Environmental, social and governance issues
Environmental

Through CRE, the Group has been one of the earliest investors
in China’s renewable energy sector. As such, the Group
has been heavily involved in environmental protection and
support for the low carbon development of China. CRE has
over 660 MW of operating wind farms in Hebei, Heilongjiang,
Gansu and Inner Mongolia provinces. With a total electricity
generation of 1,325.2 GWh, CRE has reduced coal assumption
by approximately 431,000 tons and carbon emission by
1,025,000 tons.

As a responsible property developer, the Group strictly complies
with laws and regulations regarding environmental protection
and has adopted effective environmental technologies to
ensure its projects meet the construction standards and ethics
in respect of environmental protection. Measures have been
put in place to control solid waste, waste water and waste
gas emissions; and also to control noise pollution. Currently,
the Group is considering installing solar panels in some of its
existing buildings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DT

The Group has been infusing this corporate concept into its
construction projects, imposing strict controls to ensure
adherence to the relevant construction regulations. The overall
project designs focus on fitting in with the surrounding natural
environment and fully utilizing local natural resources. The
construction should be sustainable, eco-friendly and integrated
into nature, with high energy efficiency and should not harm the
local eco-system. The interior design of its buildings is designed
to create a healthy living environment and to make full use of
daylight in order to conserve energy.

Social and governance

The Group regards people as its most important asset. Over
the years, the Group has put considerable effort to provide a
safe and healthy staff environment for its employees. The Group
offers a comprehensive and competitive package of benefits
to attract and retain talent. The Group is committed to provide
a safe, effective and congenial work environment. Adequate
arrangements, training and guidelines are implemented to
ensure the working environment is healthy and safe. Different
safety-related initiatives and measures have been rolled out
in the Company’s operations. Risk assessments are also
conducted to identify risks in special working environments,
while detailed safety instructions have been formulated and
communicated to workers as part of their safety training
sessions. Safety officers are appointed to coordinate and
communicate safety-related matters to workers on site.

The Group had issued a “Code of Conduct & Business Ethics”
(the “Code”) to all the directors and employees of the Group
and the same had been uploaded to the Company’s website.
The Code sets out the principles to guide the directors and
employees of the Group to conduct all the business affairs
in accordance with the highest business ethical standards. A
“Whistle-blowing Guideline” has been created for the reporting of
any illegal activities.

The Group is committed to participate in the community where
we operate with an aim to the improvement of community well-
being and social services. Through the hiring of locals using
market compatible remuneration packages, the Group is able
to share its operational returns with the local community and
contribute back to the society.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEE

Mr. OEI Tjie Goan

(Non-executive Director)

Mr. OEIl Tjie Goan, aged 73, is the Chairman and an Non-
executive Director of the Group since April 2004. Mr. OEl was a
graduate of the Mathematics & Dynamics Department of Beijing
University where he majored in Computational Mathematics.
Involved in Asia’s pulp and paper, finance, banking, property and
agricultural industries since 1974, Mr. OEl sits on the board of
two listed companies in Indonesia: PT. Indah Kiat Pulp & Paper
Tbk. and PT. Pabrik Kertas Tjiwi Kimia Tbk. Mr. OEl is the father
of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, an Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

Mr. OEI Kang, Eric

(Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, aged 47, has been appointed as an
Executive Director of the Group since April 2004. Mr. OEl is
the Chief Executive Officer and the chairman of the Executive
Committee of the Company. Mr. OEl also holds several
directorships in other members of the Group. Mr. OEl was
educated in the USA, and obtained a Bachelor's Degree in
Economics (with a minor in Electrical Engineering) and a
Master’'s Degree in Business Administration. Earlier in his
career, Mr. OEl worked with Peregrine Securities Ltd. and
PCCW in Hong Kong, the LG Group in Seoul and McKinsey &
Co. in Los Angeles, USA. Mr. OEl is a son of Mr. OEI Tjie Goan,
the Chairman of the Group. Mr. OEl is also the sole director
and the sole shareholder of Claudio Holdings Limited, the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. OEl is currently
an Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
China Renewable Energy Investment Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company and the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEE

LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel

(Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel, aged 54, is an Executive
Director of the Company since September 2015. Mr. LEUNG
also serves as a director of certain members of the Group
and Chief Financial Officer and a member of the Executive
Committee of the Company. Mr. LEUNG has been appointed
as an Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of China
Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE"), a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, the shares of which are
also listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange since
1 December 2008. He joined the CRE Group in April 2008
as Qualified Accountant. He also holds several directorships
in other members of CRE Group and is a member of the
Executive Committee of CRE. Mr. LEUNG is a certified practising
accountant of CPA Australia. He obtained a Master’s Degree
in Business from RMIT University of Australia. He has over 20
years’ experience in auditing and finance management with an
international audit firm and other major conglomerates in Hong
Kong. Prior to joining the CRE Group, Mr. LEUNG was a director
of internal control and risk management of the Company.

LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel

(Executive Director)

Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel, aged 52, is an Executive Director of
the Company since January 2014. Mr. LEE also serves as a
director of certain members of the Group and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company. Mr. LEE is the Project
Director of Property Department of the Group since December
2010. Mr. LEE holds a Professional Diploma in Quantity
Surveying (Hong Kong Polytechnic), a Bachelor of Laws (LLB)
degree with honours (City University, Hong Kong) and an MSc
degree in Construction Management (Reading University, UK).
He is a Registered Professional Surveyor, a member of The
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and a member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. Mr. LEE has over twenty years
of project management experience in property developments
in Hong Kong and China. Before joining the Group, Mr. LEE
was the General Manager (Property Projects) of the Property
Department of CITIC Pacific Limited.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEE

WONG Jake Leong, Sammy

(Executive Director)

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy, aged 57, has been appointed
as Executive Director of the Company since January 2014.
He has been instrumental in raising funds for the Group and is
currently serving as a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. WONG is the Investor Relations Director of the Group
and has been with the Group since 2007. He has also served
as a former Chief Financial Officer. Mr. WONG is an Executive
Director of China Renewable Energy Investment Limited, a listed
subsidiary of the Company, the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. WONG received a Bachelor’'s degree in the geophysical
sciences from the University of Chicago and an MBA from
the Yale School of Management. He started his career as an
investment banker at Kidder, Peabody in New York, where
he was involved in project finance. He moved to Hong Kong
with Bear Stearns, and was involved in a variety of corporate
finance activities, and was involved in some of the first H share
IPOs out of China. Mr. WONG then worked in equity research
at Societe Generale where he was in charge of the research
efforts in Shanghai; and later as Vice President and head of
China Research at Credit Suisse in Hong Kong. Before joining
the Company, Mr. WONG served as a Chief Financial Officer for
DVN Holdings Limited (now known as “Frontier Services Group
Limited”), where he was involved in fund raising and introducing
strategic investors to the company.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEE

Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, aged 57, is an independent non-
executive director of the Group since April 2004. Mr. CHUNG
graduated from the University College, University of London,
England with a Law Degree in 1983. After qualifying as a
solicitor in Hong Kong in 1986, Mr. CHUNG spent 2 years
working with the commercial department of a local law firm.
He subsequently joined the corporate finance department of
Standard Chartered Asia Ltd., the investment banking arm of
Standard Chartered Bank, in 1988.

In 1990, Mr. CHUNG became a director and General Manager
of Bond Corporation International Ltd., leaving to join China
Strategic Holdings Ltd in 1992. In March 1999, he joined the
Pacific Century Group as executive director with responsibility
for the group’s merger and acquisition activities. Mr. CHUNG
is currently the executive chairman of CSI Properties Limited,
a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, and a non-executive director of HKT Limited and HKT
Management Limited (in its capacity as the trustee — manager of
the HKT Trust).
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEE

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo, aged 57, is an independent non-executive
director of the Group since July 2004. Mr. CHENG holds a
Master of Science Degree in Economics, Accounting and
Finance and a Bachelor of Arts (Hons.) Degree in Accounting.
He is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Ontario. His career includes more than 20 years’
accounting and corporate advisory services expertise in several
listed companies in Hong Kong. The co-founder of a Hong
Kong merchant banking firm, Mr. CHENG is the proprietor of a
certified public accountancy practice in Hong Kong.

Mr. CHENG is currently an independent non-executive director of
CSI Properties Limited, Goldbond Group Holdings Limited, C.P.
Lotus Corporation, Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited,
Chong Hing Bank Limited, CPMC Holdings Limited, Top Spring
International Holdings Limited, Liu Chong Hing Investment
Limited, DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited,
Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited, Somerley Capital Holdings
Limited and Kidsland International Holdings Limited, all being
Hong Kong listed companies. Mr. CHENG was an independent
non-executive director of Imagi International Holdings Limited, a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEE

Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior, aged 64, is an independent
non-executive director of the Group since September 2004. Mr.
DA ROSA holds both Bachelor's and Master’s Law Degrees from
The University of Hong Kong. He qualified as a solicitor in Hong
Kong in 1980. He is currently a practicing solicitor and a partner
of Messrs. Cheung Tong & Rosa Solicitors, Hong Kong.

Mr. DA ROSA is a fellow of The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators
and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a member of the Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute and an accredited
mediator with certain institutions in the U.K. and Hong Kong.

Mr. DA ROSA is a non-executive director of TCL Multimedia
Technology Holdings Limited and the company secretary of
Y.T. Realty Group Limited and Yugang International Limited, all
of which are companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

Mr. DA ROSA serves as the chairman of the Board of Review
(Inland Revenue Ordinance) Panel. He is a member of the
Standing Committee on Standards and Development of The Law
Society of Hong Kong. He served as chairman of the Appeal
Tribunal (Buildings) Panel from 2009 to 2017. He served the
Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal Panel from 1998 to 2014 as
member, deputy tribunal convenor and ultimately the tribunal
convenor. He also served as member of the Academic and
Accreditation Advisory Committee of the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong from 2003 to 20009.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Corporate governance practices

HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, and with its
subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”) is committed to good
corporate governance principles and practices and its board of
directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) recognizes that it is
essential to safeguard the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees and uphold accountability, transparency and
responsibility of the Company.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
the code provisions and certain recommended best practices
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”),
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year
ended 31 December 2017, save for the deviations with
considered reasons as explained stated in the following relevant
paragraphs.

Board of Directors

Board Composition

The Company has at all time during the year ended 31
December 2017 maintained a balanced board with strong
independent element. The Board currently comprises eight
Directors with four Executive Directors, one Non-executive
Director and three Independent Non-executive Directors. Each
Director possesses expertise and experience and provides
checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of the Group
and the shareholders as a whole. In addition, the Company had
maintained three Independent Non-executive Directors which
formed at least one-third of the full Board. Biographical details
of the Directors and their relationships, where applicable, are
set out in pages 22 to 27 of this Annual Report.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least one
Independent Non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors was assessed in accordance with the
applicable Listing Rules. Each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors has provided to the Company an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all of them are independent.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Board of Directors (continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company were exercised by two different individuals. Mr. OEl
Tjie Goan is the Chairman and Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is the Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ”) of the Company. Their responsibilities
had been clearly set out and approved by the Board. The Board
considers that this arrangement facilitates the execution of the
Group’s business strategies and maximizes effectiveness of
its operation. The Board shall nevertheless review its structure
from time to time and will consider appropriate move to take
should circumstances so required. Mr. OEl Tjie Goan, the
Chairman of the Company, is the father of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric,
CEO.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group'’s affairs and
formulating business strategies with a view to maximizing its
financial performance and shareholders’ value.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities and powers
to the Board committees to assist it in efficiently implementing
those functions specified in written terms of reference.

Decisions relating to the long-term objectives and viability of
the Company, and any acquisitions or disposal of transactions
and investments of any kind with value exceeding the authority
of the Executive Committee set out in its terms of reference
or the threshold for discloseable transactions for the Company
as defined in the Listing Rules from time to time are reserved
for the Board; whereas decisions on matters set out in the
terms of reference of the Executive Committee and those
not specifically reserved for the Board are delegated to the
Executive Committee and management, as applicable.

Directors are provided with sufficient resources to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties
at the Company’s expense and are encouraged to consult
with the Company’s senior management independently. The
management provides monthly management accounts of the
Group to the Directors to apprise them of the Group’s latest
performance and financial position.
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Corporate Governance Report
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Board of Directors (continued)

Responsibilities of Directors (continued)

Directors are requested to disclose to the Company at the
time of his appointment and in a timely manner for any change,
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitments. Such changes
will be updated and published in the annual and interim reports
as appropriate.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Group's Directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

Nomination, Appointment and Re-election of
Directors

All new appointment of Directors and nomination of Directors
proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting are
first considered by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on criteria
such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time
and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. Having
due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board, the
Nomination Committee will then put recommendations to the
Board for decision. Details of the role and function as well as a
summary of the work performed by the Nomination Committee
are set out under the heading of “Nomination Committee” below.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws (“Bye-laws”), the
nearest to but not less than one-third of the Directors shall
retire from office by rotation but are eligible for re-election by
shareholders at the annual general meeting provided that every
Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. New appointments to the Board are also subject to
re-election by shareholders at the next following annual general
meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Board of Directors (continued)

Nomination, Appointment and Re-election of
Directors (continued)

All Non-executive Directors of the Company were appointed
with no specific term, but are subject to the aforesaid rotation
requirement in the Bye-laws, accomplishing the same purpose
as being appointed for a specific term pursuant to code
provision A.4.1 of the CG Code. The rotating Directors who are
subject to retirement and re-election at the 2018 annual general
meeting are set out on page 65 of this Annual Report.

Board Diversity Policy
The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 8 July 2013.

Below is the summary of the Board Diversity Policy:

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board, and sees increasing diversity at Board level as
an essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage. All
appointments of the members of the Board are made on merit,
in the context of the skills and experience the Board as a whole
requires to be effective. In designing the Board composition,
the Company is committed to equality of opportunity in all
aspects and does not discriminate on the grounds, including
but not limited to, ethnicity, gender, age, cultural and religious
background.

The Nomination Committee discussed and agreed the
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board and
recommended them to the Board for adoption. During the year,
the Committee reviewed the existing composition of the Board
and identified the key business skills and experience required in
line with the business strategy. It also monitored the review of
the Company’s recruitment process to reinforce its commitment
to the principle of equal opportunity.
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TEERRE

Board of Directors (continued)

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees

The Directors meet from time to time to discuss and exchange
ideas on the affairs of the Company. The Board has set up
various Board Committees, among others, the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Executive Committee for overseeing particular aspects
of the Group’s affairs. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee are available on both the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

During the year, the following meetings of the Board, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee were held and the attendance of the individual
Directors at these meetings is set out in the table below:
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Number of meetings attended/
Number of meetings eligible to attend

EESHEYE CEREREEYA
Audit  Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Directors L Ezg ERZER ¥MZESR REZEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Ol Kang, Eric i b 474 2/2 (Noteftzt)  1/1 (NoteffzE)  1/1 (Noteffizt)
Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel FERLE 474 1/2 (Notelz%) N/ARE N/ARiE F
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy EEREE 474 2/2 (Noteffizt) N/ATE N/ATE
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel DEBRTE 4/4  2/2 (Notelfi ) N/ATRE N/AREFA
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. OEI Tjie Goan HEERLE 0/4 N/ARE A N/ARNE N/AR i £
Independent Non-executive Directors By FHTES
Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico BREERE 2/4 1/2 0/1 0/1
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo B@EmLE 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior EIALE 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1

Note: The Executive Directors attended the relevant meetings as

invitees.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Board of Directors (continued)

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees
(continued)

Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular
board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to
attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.
For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given. The agenda and accompanying board papers
are dispatched to the Directors or committee members at
least three days before the meetings to ensure that they have
sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately prepared
for the meetings. When Directors or committee members are
unable to attend a meeting, they are advised of the matters
to be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views
known to the Chairman and/or the CEO prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered by the
Board and the committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each
board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the Directors
for comments within a reasonable time after the date of the
meeting. All Directors have access to the Company Secretary,
who is responsible for ensuring that the board procedures are
complied with and advising the Board on compliance matters.

The Board continues to maintain a culture of openness and
constructive relations between Executive and Non-executive
Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors). In the
absence of the Chairman, the CEO is in the position to facilitate
the effective contribution of Non-executive Directors, and
ensure their views are communicated and heard by the Board.
During the year, the Chairman did not hold any formal meeting
with Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive
Director without the Executive Directors present (as provided
for in code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code) due to the tight
schedule of the Chairman and Non-executive Directors.
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TERER/RRE

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee,
chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director, comprises
three members namely Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, Mr. CHENG
Yuk Wo and Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior, all of whom are
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for Directors and senior management,
and reviewing their remuneration packages. In arriving at its
recommendations, the Remuneration Committee will consult
with the Chairman and/or the CEO whenever it thinks fit and
take into consideration factors such as the remuneration paid
by comparable companies, skill, knowledge, time commitment
and responsibilities of Directors. The Remuneration Committee
has the responsibility, powers and discretion to determine,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
held one meeting to review, inter alia, the remuneration policy
and structure of Directors including those retired and re-
elected at the 2017 annual general meeting of the Company
and approve the year-end bonus and salary increment of the
Executive Directors. No Director was involved in deciding his
own remuneration. The attendance records of each member at
the meetings of the Remuneration Committee held during his
term of office are set out on page 32 of this Annual Report.
Details of the Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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TERER/RRE

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee, chaired
by an Independent Non-executive Director, comprises three
members namely Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, Mr. CHENG
Yuk Wo and Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior, all of whom
are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee held one meeting during the year, and the
attendance details of each member are set out on page 32 of
this Annual Report.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually,
identifying suitable candidates for directorship, assessing
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors,
and making recommendations to the Board on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy.

During the year, the work performed by the Nomination
Committee includes the following:

o reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

o reviewing the structure of board committees;

o assessing the independence of Independent Non-

executive Directors and sufficient number of independent
directors to maintain a balanced board;

o making recommendation to the Board relating to the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors; and

o reviewing the progress report from the management in
relation to the Board Diversity Policy.

The Company had provided the Nomination Committee
sufficient resources to perform its duties. Where necessary,
the Nomination Committee could seek independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities.
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TERER/RRE

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written
terms of reference which have been updated from time to time
to align with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The
Audit Committee, chaired by an Independent Non-executive
Director, comprised three members namely Mr. CHUNG Cho
Yee, Mico, Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo and Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA,
Junior, all of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors at
all time during the year ended 31 December 2017.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to,
inter alia, review and supervise the Group’s financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management procedures, as
well as oversee the adequacy of the accounting and financial
reporting resources. While recognized corporate governance
is the collective responsibility of all Directors, the Board has
delegated the corporate governance functions to the members
of Audit Committee who are in an objective and independent
position to oversee the corporate governance compliance.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings together with senior management and external
auditor. The attendance details of each member are set out on
page 32 of this Annual Report. The major work performed by the
Audit Committee during the year included reviewing interim and
annual financial statements, continuing connected transactions,
internal audit reports on the internal controls and risk
management matters, the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance as well as reviewing and recommending
re-appointment of external auditor.

The Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy for
employees to raise concerns, in confidence, with the designated
executive who is accountable to the Audit Committee about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, unlawful activities,
or activities violating the Group’s Code of Conduct and Business
Ethics or otherwise amounting to serious improper conduct and
to ensure protection from possible retaliation against any of our
employees who has reported concerns in good faith.
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TEERRE

Executive Committee

The Company has established an Executive Committee with the
key initiatives to manage the Group’s business activities, and
oversee the operating performance and financial position of the
Group and all strategic business units. The Executive Committee
comprises all Executive Directors of the Company and chaired
by Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric.

During the year under review, the Executive Committee met
regularly to review the performance of various business units
of the Group, co-ordinate overall resources, made financial and
operation decisions delegated by the Board, review and develop
investment strategy and policies of the Company and make
relevant recommendations to the Board.

Delegation by the board

The management, consisting of the Executive Directors
of the Company and other executives, is delegated with
responsibilities for implementing the strategy and direction as
adopted by the Board from time to time, and conducting the
day-to-day operations of the Group. Executive Directors and
senior executives meet regularly to review the performance
of the businesses of various business units of the Group as a
whole, co-ordinate overall resources and make financial and
operation decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as
to their powers of management including circumstances where
management should report back, and will review the delegation
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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Model code for securities transactions by
directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiries, the Company has obtained
confirmation from all Directors that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

The Company has also adopted a code for dealing in the
Company’s securities by relevant employees, who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished inside information in relation to
the securities of the Group, on no less exacting terms than the
Model Code.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company
and the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows. In
preparing the financial statements, the Directors have adopted
generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong and
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

The statement of the Company’s auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 84 to 93 of
this Annual Report.

Auditors’ remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the fees in respect
of audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by the
auditor amounted to approximately HKS4.7 million and HKS1.5
million respectively. The non-audit services mainly consist of
interim results review services and tax advisory services.
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Directors’ Training

During the year, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The training programmes included
seminars and courses, reviewed the updated laws, rules and
regulations and materials on topics relevant to the director’s
duties and responsibilities. A summary of training received by
Directors during the year ended 31 December 2017 according
to the records provided by the Directors is as follows:
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Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and

other relevant topics
TEER  EERER

Name of Directors EENA HhABRE = RE 2 3Z
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric =ML A v
Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel TEG A v
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy HHERLA v
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel PRI E v/
Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. OEI Tjie Goan BEEIREAE v/
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFEHTEE

Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico ERESLE v
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo BRI oA v/
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior AL E v
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Directors’ Training (continued)

The Company continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and
the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. In addition, the Directors are regularly
encouraged to enroll in a wide range of professional
development courses and seminars regarding the Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements to enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices.

Risk management and internal control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness,
while management is charged with the responsibility to design,
implement and monitor the risk management and internal
control systems to manage risks and compliance.

Risk management model

As the first line of defense, operational management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal controls and
for executing risk and control procedures on day-to-day
operation. Management of Head Office establishes various risk
management and compliance functions to provide direction on
the importance of risk management and monitor the first line
of defense controls. The Internal Control and Risk Management
(“ICRM”) Department reviews and provides independent
assurance on the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems of the Group.
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Risk management and internal control (continued) & B2 ‘S IE % A 20 BE#2 ()

Internal control framework A EBEE R HE SR

The Group has in place an integrated internal control framework X £ B B2 % 3 B COSO (Committee
that is consistent with the COSO (Committee of Sponsoring of Sponsoring Organisations of the
Organisations of the Treadway Commission) framework as  Treadway Commission)fE42 — 5~ &2 &
illustrated below: NEPESIEZEHE - 5T RIT -

Control Environment
ERES

Set the right tone of the Group influencing control consciousness and risk awareness of the staff.
M ASBEIENERER - NRtEENEZEEZNARBL -

Factors include integrity, ethical values, competence, delegation of authority and responsibility.
MEFART  BEEE B EREKRECTHEZFRZE -

Foundation for all other components of internal control.

ERF A Rt ABBEIE AR AR D R 2B

Risk Assessment

& B R A

Identification, evaluation and analysis of the key risks underlying the achievement of the Group’s
objectives, including the risks relating to the changing regulatory and operating environment; conducted
regularly, forming the basis for determining control activities.

EHRED - MR RERASE R FEEAN I EAR(ERARESE MELRTELWEA
@) WIALLVE R E IR B AT o

Control Activities

ERED

Policies and procedures for ensuring management directives are carried out and necessary actions are
taken to address the risks that may hinder the achievement of the Group’s objectives.

HEBRRLERF  BREEEZETNEUNATARKBRUG BT REN S ERNEEENR
=Y ER -

[

Control activities include authorisations, approvals, verifications, performance reviews, segregation of
duties, asset security, access control, documentation and records.
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Risk management and internal control (continued) & & IE}SZW*‘IZ B om)
Internal control framework (continued) A EBEE I HE SR

Information and Communication

EMREBEA

o Pertinent information is identified, captured and provided to the right person in a timely manner.
ERER - IR AEE A TREEEER -

o Channels of communication across the Group and with external parties are established.
BYAEERFP I HAREINAATZBEERE

° Channels of communication exist for people to report suspected malpractices or improprieties relating to

the Group.

MBI RERNEEESBEFANEREMHXTETRRLBRESE -
Monitoring
Big

° Combination of ongoing and separate evaluations of control system’s performance.
FRE N E R FF (4 B 1 RATEVAE R ©

° Management and supervisory activities.
B RERTIE-

o Internal audit activities.

MEPEZ LIE -
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Risk management and internal control (continued)
Control environment

The actions of management and its demonstrated commitment
to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
practices within the Group are transparent to all. The Group
strives to conduct all business affairs based on good business
ethics and accountability. We have in place a formal Code
of Conduct & Business Ethics that is communicated to all
staff members. We aim to build risk awareness and control
responsibility into our culture and regard them as the foundation
of our risk management and internal control systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to monitor the Group’s ability to achieve its business objectives;
and can provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

We maintain an effective internal audit function, the ICRM
Department, whose main features include:

(i) independence from operational management;

(ii) fully empowered auditors with access to all data and
every operation of the Group;

(iii) adequate resources and well qualified and capable staff;

(iv) risk-based auditing, concentrating on areas with
significant risks or where significant changes have been
made.

Risk management

Management has an ongoing process to identify and evaluate
the significant risks facing the Group and to prioritise resources
to manage those that arise. Mitigation strategies and plans
with respect to each key risk identified are developed and
implemented with regular review and update, which include
establishing or enhancing internal controls.

Heads of the departments, projects and business units regularly
review and analyse the key risks associated with achieving
the objectives of their particular departments, activities and
businesses to provide reasonable assurance that internal
controls are both embedded and effective within their areas of
accountability.
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Risk management and internal control (continued)
Control processes

The Board maintains sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems through the following:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The Board reviews the Group’s strategic plans and
objectives on an annual basis.

An organisational structure with defined lines of
responsibility and delegation of authority is devised.

Systems and procedures are in place to identify and
evaluate risks on an ongoing basis. Senior executives
review the risk assessment process and monitor the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

Appropriate policies and key control activities are
maintained with regular review on their effectiveness.

Financial performance is analysed against budget with
variances being accounted for and appropriate actions
taken to rectify deficiencies.

Senior executives ensure compliance with relevant laws,
regulations, standards and ordinances, including Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, the Listing Rules
and the Companies Ordinance, under their responsibility.

The ICRM Department reports directly to the Audit
Committee and the CEO, and carries out independent
reviews on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems
in accordance with its annual audit plan approved by the
Audit Committee. Key audit findings and implementation
progress of internal control recommendations are
regularly reported to the Board through the Audit
Committee. Head of the ICRM Department also serves as
the contact person under the Whistleblowing Guideline of
the Company.
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Risk management and internal control (continued)
Review of internal control effectiveness

The Executive Directors of the Company conduct reviews
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, and submit to the Audit Committee a
certification of compliance for effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, reliability of financial reporting, and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations bi-annually. The scope of this
review covers the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

The Audit Committee regularly reviews the audit findings and
implementation progress of internal control recommendations,
and opinion of the ICRM Department on the performance of
risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
External auditor also reports on any control issues identified in
the course of their audit work.

Taking the above into consideration, the Audit Committee
reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems at least once each year and reports to
the Board on such reviews.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, reviewed and
considered the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems effective and adequate for the year ended 31
December 2017. No significant areas of concern that might
affect the operational, financial, and compliance controls and
risk management function of the Group were identified.
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Risk management and internal control (continued)
Inside information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company:

(i) is aware of the obligations under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, the applicable Listing Rules and other
statutory regulations with regard to the timely and proper
disclosure of inside information, announcements and
financial disclosures and authorises their publication as
required.

(ii) has adopted and implemented its Inside Information
Disclosure Policy.

(iii) has in place a Code for Securities Dealing for governing
the securities transactions of those employees who,
because of their positions, are likely to have access to
confidential or inside information.

(iv) identifies and authorises members of the Group’s senior
management to act as the Company’s spokespersons
and respond to external enquiries.

Company secretary

The Company Secretary reports to the CEO on Board or
committee matters. All Directors have direct access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary for the ongoing
discharge of their duties and responsibilities. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2017, the Company Secretary took
more than 15 hours of relevant professional training organized
by the Stock Exchange and various professional bodies.

Constitutional documents of the company

The Company has published its updated and consolidated
version of Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the
Company at the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. During the year, there was no alteration on the
constitutional documents of the Company.
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General meetings

The last annual general meeting of the Company was held on
23 May 2017 (the “2017 AGM"). The CEO chaired the 2017
AGM in the absence of the Chairman of the Board due to the
Chairman’s prior business engagement. The external auditor
attended the 2017 AGM to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’ report,
the accounting policies and auditor independence.

The attendance record of the individual Directors at the 2017
AGM is set out in the table below:

BRERKE
ARNBRA—AREBRBFAER _-Z
—+ERA-t+=A8T(ZZE—+=F
REBEAFAEG]) BFESGEEAASE
BEBLTHAREE _T—+FREEA
FRE RSHITHRAEHEHE - IMNEZ
YHHE T —tFEFREBF AL O
BEEBEFIIE GEZHMFSERE
WA - SRFIBCRUAREB T HEME o
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RE 2 HFRe

2017 AGM
—E—tF
Name of Directors EEng BRRBEARE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric =M% A v
Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel FEREE v
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy EHERLE v
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel RERITAE v
Non-executive Director FEHITES
Mr. OEI Tjie Goan EHREAE X
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHITES
Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico ERELE X
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo BRGNS A v
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior ZImELE X

Note: Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive
Directors are required to attend general meetings pursuant
to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code. All Independent
Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors were
encouraged to attend the general meetings to inter-face with
shareholders of the Company but certain of them were not in a
position to attend the 2017 AGM due to overseas commitment
and pre-arranged business engagements.
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Shareholders’ rights

Procedures for the shareholders of the
Company to convene a special general
meeting

Under section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, any members
holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company shall have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition
(“Requisitionists”).

The written request must state the resolution, preferably
accompanied by a statement of not more than one
thousand words with respect to the matter referred to
in the proposed resolution for the Company’s reference
and consideration, signed by the all Requisitionists
concerned.

The written request must be deposited at the head office
of the Company at 9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75
Mody Road, Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer agent in Hong Kong (the
“Branch Share Registrars”). Upon the Branch Share
Registrars’ confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Company will convene a special general
meeting within two months after the deposit of such
requisition, and will serve sufficient notice in accordance
with the statutory and regulatory requirements to all
members of the Company.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017

1R AR

ARARREBARRIZFEIARE
ZREF

REERE-NN-FREEFETL
R ARIERMAESSE  FHHET
PR+ D2 —ARRARE R Z I
REEEBAEESHARPMWER
REEEFIZFAD BXRE=S
SR EFMAEAEERITRRE
alla i

HATEHEBERARBZERNES
VRFIFRER - KRHHATBG
—TFABREZCAERMLEE
ZRLE - UEARRBL2ERE

EH2FMBRIAAB 2 BME
BE - HHE R BB NBEERD HREM,
B75% FF O — HNAE (B EA
WHEARBRBME) °

ARRZEBEERNDBPERLD R
(TRBPIERDEEEZER -
RROBFPOBREREFR/LE
MERFR  ARARKRKEZE
BREAANAFRBRERN KRS - X
RBEAEREERTERNARRZE
BRREH T RAM -



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Shareholders rights (continued)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings

Pursuant to sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act of
Bermuda, either any number of members representing
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of
all the members, or not less than one hundred members
(“Requisitionists”) can submit a written request to move
a resolution at an annual general meeting or to circulate
a statement of not more than one thousand words in
relation to business to be dealt with in any general
meeting to members of the Company.

If a resolution is proposed by the members, the
written request must state the resolution (preferably
accompanied by a statement of not more than one
thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in
the proposed resolution), signed by all the Requisitionists
concerned.

The written request must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company and preferably with a copy of such
request sent to the head office of the Company at 9/F.,
Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road, Tsimshatsui
East, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary not less than six weeks before the
meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, and not less than one week in the case of any
other requisition.

The request will be verified by the Branch Share
Registrars. Upon the Share Registrars’ confirmation
that the request is proper and in order, and the
Requisitionists have deposited a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in giving
effect thereto, the Company will send the notice of
resolution or the statement to its members.
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Shareholders’ rights (continued)

iii. Procedures for election of directors of the
Company
The procedures for the shareholders of the Company
to propose a person for election as a director of the
Company are available and accessible on the Company’s
website at www.hkcholdings.com.

Communication with shareholders

The Board believes regular and timely communication with
shareholders forms part of the Group’s effort to help our
shareholders understand our business better. Copies of
the annual reports and interim reports of the Company are
distributed to its shareholders in accordance with statutory
and regulatory requirements and also to interested parties
recorded in the Company’s mailing lists. The publications
of the Company, including financial reports, circulars and
announcements, are also available on the Company’s website at
www.hkcholdings.com.

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with the shareholders. At the general
meeting, each substantially separate issue is considered by a
separate resolution, including election of individual directors,
and the poll procedures are clearly explained. The CEO attended
the 2017 AGM in the absence of the Chairman of the Board due
to the Chairman’s prior business engagement. Other members
of the Board, the Chairmen of the relevant Board Committees
and the external auditor of the Company also attended the
annual general meeting to inter-face with, and answer questions
from the shareholders of the Company.

Shareholders can send their enquiry to the Board by the
following ways:

Post: 9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road,

Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
E-mail: info@hkcholdings.com

Fax: (852) 2722 6266
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRI HERERRE

HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, and with its
subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”) is pleased to present its
annual Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) with disclosure reference made to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting
Guide”) as contained in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The ESG Report covers the financial year ended 31
December 2017.

This ESG Report describes the Group’s environmental, social
and governance management approach, strategy, priorities and
objectives. It explains how the Group complies with the “comply
or explain” provisions of the ESG Reporting Guide. This ESG
Report covers the Group’s governance on the Environmental and
Social aspect. The corporate governance aspect is addressed
in more detailed in the Corporate Governance Report.

Environmental

Through China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE"),
the listed subsidiary of the Company, the Group has been one
of the earliest investors in China’s renewable energy sector.
As such, the Group has been heavily involved in environmental
protection and support for the low carbon development of
China. CRE has over 664 MW of operating wind farms in Hebei,
Heilongjiang, Gansu and Inner Mongolia provinces. With a total
electricity generation of 1,325.2GWh (2016: 1,346.2GWh), CRE
has reduced approximately 431,000 tons (2016: 437,288 tons)
of coal consumption and 1,025,000 tons (2016: 1,040,747
tons) of carbon dioxide (CO,) emission.

As a responsible property developer, the Group strictly
complies with laws, regulations and good practices regarding
environmental protection. During the construction stage, the
Group has ensured that its contractors have complied with the
laws and contractual requirements in respect to environmental
protection and construction safety standards. The Group also
endeavours to minimize environmental impact as early as the
design stage by adopting eco-friendly and energy efficient
designs.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRI HERERRE

Environmental (continued)

Emissions

Pollutants are generated in the process construction of all
property development projects. These mainly include: (i)
various kinds of machinery noise; (ii) dust and exhaust, and
also gas emitted from organic waste left during renovation; (iii)
wastewater generated from construction sites and domestic
sewage generated by construction workers; and (iv) remaining
waste material left in the construction site and garbage
disposed of by construction workers. All these will adversely
affect the surrounding environment. Corresponding pollution
prevention and environmental management measures have been
taken to reduce such impact.

Noise Emissions

Construction noise come from various kinds of machinery such
as foundation piling machines, excavators, and bulldozers. In
order to reduce the impact to neighbours, the construction
teams are required to take the following measures:

o Operation of machinery with high noise levels are
prohibited during breaks, noon time and night time;
and any extension of operations due to special
circumstances must be reported and approved by the
relevant department.

o Use mechanical equipment with low noise levels or those
equipped with attenuators as much as possible.

° The entrances and exits for the construction trucks at
the construction sites should be arranged at places away
from the sensitive area.
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RIE - HERERRE

Environmental (continued)

Emissions (continued)

Waste Gas Emissions

Waste gas emission during operation includes mainly the dust
resulting from construction, the exhaust gas emitted from
various construction machinery and transportation vehicles, and
organic waste gas generated during renovation. To minimize the
impact of the dust to the surrounding atmosphere, the Group
has adopted the following measures:

o Construction sites should be 100% enclosed, and road
surfaces within the construction sites should be 100%
hardened.

o Certain wetness should be maintained during the

excavation and drilling process by watering the operation
surface; watering should be carried out regularly on
loose and dry soil in the construction site; and proper
watering should be carried out on the dry surface of soil
when backfilling the soil.

° Dedicated locations should be set up with enclosures
for the stacking and storing of building materials and
misplacements are not allowed. Unwanted and spoiled
materials should be transported away as soon as
possible and accumulation of such waste is not allowed.
When not used, sand and soil in the construction site
should be 100% covered.

o When not in use, machinery should be turned off to
reduce the generation of exhaust gas from combustion.
During the construction process, using disposed building
materials as fuel is strictly prohibited. Accommodation
and canteen facilities should not be set up on
construction sites.
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BRI HERERRE

Environmental (continued)

Emissions (continued)

Wastewater Emissions

Wastewater discharged during operation mainly comes
from surface runoff of heavy rain, domestic sewage from
construction workers, and waste water from rinsing of the
ground surface. In order to minimize the impact of wastewater
discharged during operation, the Group has adopted the
following measures:

o Wastewater generated during foundation piling work
must be treated immediately by paying attention to
dredging and discharge management. Pollutants in
wastewater generated from the washing and rinsing
of machinery and construction vehicles are mainly
suspended solids. The rinsing and washing facilities
should be set up at designated locations. The ground
surface water ditches should be directed to temporary
sedimentation tanks.

o Muddy water generated during operation and sludge
produced by punching pile drivers and bored piles must
not be discharged without treatment. Temporary settling
basins should be provided at backfill dumps and at
locations where sludge is produced. Discharge of rain
water containing sediments and muddy water must be
organized and planned. They should only be discharged
after all solid particles have settled in the settling basins
so as to prevent any sewer blockage.
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Environmental (continued)

Emissions (continued)

Solid Waste Emissions

Solid waste generated during construction consists of large
quantities of silt, muck, and sludge resulting from surface
excavation. There is residual waste construction materials and
domestic garbage from workers. Resided waste such as mortar
surface cement, interior and exterior wall coating, plastic,
flexible packaging, scrap metal wire, sawdust, etc, is also
generated from renovation. In order to reduce the accumulation
of solid waste during the construction period as well as the
impact to the environment during transportation, the following
measures should be taken:

o Different types of solid waste generated from construction
should be placed separated.

o Domestic garbage should be regularly cleaned and
delivered to the environmental health department.

o Construction waste that may cause airborne dust should
be covered with an enclosure.

o Waste should be only dumped in landfill sites designated
by the relevant authorities. The Group strictly complied
with the aforesaid principle, relevant laws, rules and
regulations throughout the year ended 31 December
2017.

Under the KPIs Al.1 to Al.6 of the ESG Reporting Guide, as a
property developer and all the group’s construction works are
outsourced to contractors, KPIs Al.1 (types of direct emissions
and emissions data), Al.2 (greenhouse gas emissions in total
and intensity), Al.4 (total non-hazardous waste produced), A1.5
(description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved) and Al1.6 (description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results
achieved) are immaterial to the Group’s operation and have not
been disclosed in this report. Further, as there is no hazardous
waste produced from the Group’s operation, KPl A1.3 (total
hazardous waste produced) is not applicable to the Group.
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Environmental (continued)

Use of resources

The Group has incorporated energy saving and eco-friendly
designs in its residential and commercial developments so as
to protect the environment and improve air quality within the
community. Such designs include:

o Occupancy sensors to turn off lighting in common areas.

o LED and energy saving lighting.

o Water cooled chillers (in lieu of air cooled chillers).

o Air purification system that filters PM2.5 particles to
provide superior indoor air quality.

o Smart temperature control and fresh air system that
cleans and renews air while realizing energy saving.

o Ground Source Heat Pumps.

o Lifts and escalators with variable voltage variable
frequency drives to save energy.

o Variable speed drive in electrical system to allow supply
on demand for motor driven systems to save energy
in water supply systems, chilled water pumps and
condensed water pumps.

o Low-E insulated glass to reduce reliance on air-
conditioning.

o Provision of roller blinds for office tenants.

. South-North natural ventilation concept (Eit3@%E)

included in living room design.

o Provision of balconies and sky gardens in residential
units to improve air ventilation and capture of daylight.
The Group is also planning to install electric vehicles
chargers to carparks and solar panels in some of its
properties.
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Environmental (continued)

Use of resources (continued)

The Group is also committed to implementing energy
conservation and environmental protection measures in its
offices:

Water resources control

The Group educates each employee to save water, and
to encourage the reuse of water in order to reduce water
consumption, so as to reduce sewage from the source.

The Group is committed to the guarantee of water supply
installation and maintenance, and to ensure that water
supply is always available. When leakage is discovered, it
will be quickly repaired.

Electricity control

The use of electricity in production must strictly
comply with the Electricity Power Law of the PRC,
encouraging power saving, safety, high efficiency and
low consumption.

Lights and electrical appliances in workplace must be
turned off when not in use.

Every member of the staff and management must turn off
the power for each department’s computers, photocopy
machines and printers machines when they are off duty
or on leave.

Staff is reminded to switch off lights and air-conditioning
in meeting rooms and to turn off the computer at the
workstation when it is not in use. The room temperature
is maintained at 25°C to save energy.

To ensure no unnecessary use of resources at
production lines.
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Environmental (continued)

Use of resources (continued)

Office consumables consumption management

o The Group encourages employees to reduce the use
of paper by assessing the necessity of printing, by
encouraging duplex printing where appropriate, and by
reusing the blank side of single-side printed paper.

o No printing and photocopying of materials unrelated to
work.

o Based on these energy use efficiency initiatives, use of
resources can be effectively controlled and efficiently
reduced.

Under the KPIs A2.1 to A2.4 of the ESG Reporting Guide, as
only a minimum amount of electricity and water were used
in the office, KPIs A2.1 (energy consumption in total and
intensity), A2.2 (water consumption in total and intensity), A2.3
(description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results
achieved) and A2.4 (description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives
and results achieved) are immaterial to the Group’s operation.
For the Group’s investment properties in 2017, the energy
consumption and water consumption of Shenzhen Shun Hing
Square was 16,693,087KWh in total and 371,181m?3 in total
respectively. The energy consumption and water consumption
of Shenzhen South Ocean Centre was 1,587,776KWh in
total and 250,366 tonnes in total respectively. The energy
consumption and water consumption of Beijing Legation Quarter
was 1,555,450KWh in total and 25,441m3 in total respectively.

Further, as no packaging material was used in the Group’s
operation, KPI A2.5 (total packaging material used for finished
products) is not applicable to the Group.
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Environmental (continued)

The environment and natural resources

The Group is committed to minimizing environmental impact
from its property developments. Building layouts and heights
are optimized and subject to rigorous sunlight analysis to
avoid reduction in sunlight hours to neighbours. Extensive soft
landscaping have been provided to create a green environment
for building users and neighbours. The concept of vehicles and
pedestrian separation (AE%7) are included in the design of
all open areas. The overall project designs focus on minimizing
environmental impact and fitting in with the surrounding natural
environment and fully utilizing natural resources. The properties
should be sustainable, eco-friendly and integrated into nature,
with high energy efficiency and should not harm the local
ecosystem.

As the Group’s environmental impact and use of natural
resources is minimal, KPI A3.1 of the ESG Reporting Guide is not
applicable to the Group’s operation.

Social

The Group regards people as its most important asset. Over
the years, the Group has put considerable effort to provide a
safe and healthy staff environment for its employees. The Group
offers a comprehensive and competitive package of benefits to
attract and retain talent.

Employment

The Group has adopted an “Employee Handbook” which
sets out the practices and policies of human resources. The
Employee Handbook is in compliance with PRC Labour law, PRC
Labour Contract Law, Hong Kong employment laws, and other
relevant laws and regulations. The Employee Handbook covers
areas such as compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, diversity, and other
benefits and welfare for the benefit of the employees.

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does
not discriminate on the basis of personal characteristics.
Regardless of race, color, descent, ethnic background,
ethnic origin, gender, age, nationality, disability, veteran
status, citizenship and religion, all job applicants and current
employees enjoy equal opportunities and fair treatment. The
Group values the input and contributions made by employees of
all backgrounds.
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Social (continued)

Health and safety

The Group is committed to providing a safe, effective and
congenial work environment. Adequate arrangements, training
and guidelines are implemented to ensure the working
environment is healthy and safe. Different safety-related
initiatives and measures have been rolled out in the Group’s
operations. Risk assessments are also conducted to identify
risks in special working environments, while detailed safety
instructions have been formulated and communicated to
workers as part of their safety training sessions. For employees
working on construction sites, safety equipment such as safety
helmets, safety shoes, ear plugs and dusk masks are provided.
Safety officers are appointed by the main contractors to
coordinate and communicate safety-related matters to workers
on site.

The Group strictly complied with the aforesaid principle, relevant
laws, rules and regulations throughout the year ended 31
December 2017.

Development and training

The Group encourages employees to attend training and
development programs to strengthen their job skills, to update
their professionalism, to improve their operational efficiency and
productivity, and to develop their potential and other talents.
In addition, the Group encourages and assists employees
to further develop their technical or professional standards
knowledge by sponsoring them for professional membership.
All applications for membership fee reimbursement will be
considered depending on their degree of importance to
the employee’s job and their relevance to the operational
requirements of the employee’s department. Continuous
professional development training for directors and senior
management are required and the Group encourages them to
attend training programs organised by various professional
bodies.

Labour standards

The Group’s employment practices has strictly complied with
the Labor Contract law of PRC, the Hong Kong employment laws
and other relevant laws and regulations to avoid child or forced
labour and other potential irregularities. During recruitment,
all job applicants are required to complete a job application
form and declare that all personal data provided (including
age and personal particulars) are true and correct. The Group
undertakes a detailed job reference check, if needed.
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Social (continued)

Supply chain management

The Group is committed to ensuring that its supply chain
management is socially responsible. The Group has adopted
procurement procedures to identify eligible bidders. Factors
considered include: company size, financial strength, statutory
qualifications, reputation, previous track record and ongoing
projects. Satisfaction of past co-operation is also an important
determining factor.

Suppliers are chosen based on the supplier’s continuous ability
to guarantee satisfactory product quantity and quality, price,
and ability to deliver services on time. The Group closely
monitors supplier's performance and provides feedback where
necessary.

Product responsibility

The Group’s construction of office and residential properties
have been closely supervised by internal and external
professionals. The Group and its consultants and contractors
strictly adhered to the national and local standards and the
respective codes for construction inspection and acceptance.
During the construction process, the Group and its consultants
conducted systematic inspection and acceptance on each part
of the construction.

Strict procedures in respect to examination and rectification
have been carried out in the handover of properties to
purchasers. Customer service teams have also been set up to
resolve queries from customers.

Maintaining high quality and standards are crucial to the
Group’s sustainable development. Reliability, safety and quality
of our energy generation are crucial to the Group’s success.
Therefore, maintaining consistency in quality and precision of
our energy generation are the Group’s major priorities.

The Group strictly complied with the aforesaid principle, relevant
laws, rules and regulations throughout the year ended 31
December 2017.
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Social (continued)

Anti-corruption

The Group has issued the “Code of Conduct & Business
Ethics” (the “Code”) to all the directors and employees of the
Group and the Code has been uploaded on to the Company’s
website. The Code sets out the principles to guide the directors
and employees of the Group to conduct business affairs in
accordance with the highest business ethical standards. The
Group strives to preserve honesty, fairness and impartiality. In
accordance with the “Whistle-blowing Guideline”, all employees
can report for investigation any suspected bribery, extortion,
fraudulent and money laundering cases. Once confirmed, it
will be reported to the police or other regulatory bodies for
prosecution. The Group has also issued a “Policy on Advantages
Handling” with regard to guidelines for soliciting, accepting or
offering advantages and gifts by the directors and employees.
The Policy also provides guidelines for the avoidance of any
potential conflicts of interest or breaches of any local laws,
rules or regulations.

The Group strictly complied with the aforesaid principle, relevant
laws, rules and regulations throughout the year ended 31
December 2017.

Community investment

The Group is committed to participating in the community
where we operate with an aim to improve the community’s
wellbeing. Through the hiring of locals using market compatible
remuneration packages, the Group is able to share its
operational returns with the local community and to contribute
back to the society. The Group will explore other means to
contribute more to the environment and to society once the
Group achieves higher profitability. To create shared values
with the community and stakeholders, the Group will continue to
consider ESG factors in selecting future investment projects.
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Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board”)
have pleasure in presenting to shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal activities and geographical analysis
of operations

The principal activities of the Group are property development
and investment and renewable energy investment and operation.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and a joint
venture are set out in pages 239 to 246 of the consolidated
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2017 by geographical and business segments is set
out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
are set out in the consolidated income statement on pages 94
to 95.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK11 cents (2016: HK8 cents) per ordinary share for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday,
8 June 2018. Subject to the approval of Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company which
will be held on Tuesday, 29 May 2018 (“2018 AGM"), the final
dividend will be paid on Friday, 22 June 2018.

Business review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 is set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 21 of this annual report.

Compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
The Group have complied the relevant laws and regulations
during the year.
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Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Principal properties
Details of the principal properties held for development and
investment purposes are set out on pages 248 to 252.

Share issued in the year

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws
of the Company (“Bye-laws”) and there is no restriction against
such rights under the law of Bermuda.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 40 and note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable reserves

At 31 December 2017, the distributable reserves of the
Company available for distribution was HK$656.7 million
(2016: HKS$730.7 million), calculated in accordance with the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

Five-year financial summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 247.

Donations
During the year, the Group made no charitable and other
donation (2016: Nil).
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Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Non-executive Director
Mr. OEI Tjie Goan (Chairman)

Executive Directors

Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel (Chief Financial Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo

Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior

In accordance with Bye-law 85 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
OEl Kang, Eric, Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico and Mr. CHENG Yuk
Wo will retire by rotation at 2018 AGM and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election as Directors.

The Company has also received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company
considers that all of them to be independent.

Mr. OEI Tjie Goan, a Non-executive Director and Chairman of the
Company, has voluntarily agreed to waive his annual director’s
fees with effect from 1 January 2010 until further notice to the
Company, and the director’s fee he waived for the year ended
31 December 2017 amounted to HK$100,000.

Directors’ service contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2018 AGM has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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ESEHREE

Share option schemes

Share options of subsidiary of the company

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE"), a
subsidiary of the Company, adopted a share option scheme (the
“CRE Option Scheme”) on 27 May 2008. Particulars of the CRE
Option Scheme are set out below:

(a) Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high
caliber Eligible Persons (as defined below) and attract
human resources that are valuable to the CRE Group
or any entity in which any member of the CRE Group
holds an equity interest (“Invested Entity” or “Invested
Entities”), to recognise the significant contributions of
the Eligible Persons to the growth of the CRE Group or
Invested Entities by rewarding them with opportunities to
obtain ownership interest in CRE and to further motivate
and give incentives to these Eligible Persons to continue
to contribute to the long term success and prosperity of
the CRE Group or Invested Entities.

(b) Eligible persons

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
independent non-executive director) or consultant of any
members of the CRE Group or any Invested Entity who,
in the sole discretion of the board of directors of CRE,
have contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the CRE Group or any Invested Entity.

(c)  Maximum number of shares available for issue
The total number of shares of CRE available for issue
under the CRE Option Scheme is 76,353,475 shares
which represent approximately 3.23% of the issued
share capital of CRE as at the date of this Annual Report.
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ESEHREE

Share option schemes (continued)
Share options of subsidiary of the company
(continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

Maximum entitlement of each eligible person

The total number of shares of CRE issued and to be
issued upon exercise of options (whether exercised or
outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the
shares of CRE in issue;

(ii) a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of CRE must not exceed 0.1%
of the shares of CRE in issue and not exceed
HKS5 million in aggregate value.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the
date on which it is granted or such shorter period as
the board of directors of CRE may specify at the time of
grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must
be held

At the time of the grant of an option, the board of
directors of CRE must specify the minimum period(s), if
any, for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

Period open for acceptance of an option and
amount payable upon acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 10 business days from the
date of offer and a consideration of HK$1.00 must be
paid upon acceptance.
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ESEHREE

Share option schemes (continued)

Share options of subsidiary of the company

(continued)

(h) Basis of determining the subscription price of an
option
The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant;
(ii) the average closing prices of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

(i) Remaining life
The CRE Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will
expire on 27 May 2018 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the CRE Option Scheme.

No share option is outstanding under the CRE Option Scheme as
at 31 December 2017.

No share option was granted, exercised, cancelled nor lapsed
during the year ended 31 December 2017 under the CRE Option
Scheme.

Directors’ interests in securities

At 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules adopted by the Company were
as follows:

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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Directors’

interests in securities (continued)

(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company:

EENEF 2 Em )
(i) RAEDERDRAEBBRE 25
B .

Number of shares
and underlying

Approximate
percentage of the
existing issued

shares of share capital of
Name of Directors Nature of interest the Company the Company
AR ERE
biNNET S 9 ERITRE
EEnE BEME HERGEA BMABED
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric Corporate 346,657,938! 65.551%
BRIk A4 NS
Joint 8,720,9872 1.649%
£
Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel Personal 7,2003 0.001%
TEREE fEA
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy Personal 5,145,000 0.973%
BERLE {EUN
Notes: MI5E -
1. The corporate interest of Mr. OEI Kang, Eric represents 1. BRI LA 7 ARIERERAE
an interest in 203,445,407 shares of the Company held SEERAA(TEIE]®HE
by Creator Holdings Limited (“Creator”) and an interest 2 203,445,407 & A&~ &) I 17
in 143,212,531shares of the Company held by Genesis URBEAEEBR AT ([E
Capital Group Limited (“Genesis”). Both Creator and Bl 1) H 2143,212,531 &~
Genesis are wholly-owned by Claudio Holdings Limited NARM R o BlEREAR
(“Claudio”), a company wholly-owned by Mr. OEl Kang, 9 A Claudio Holdings Limited
Eric. ([Claudio J) 2 & #H B - m
ClaudioB &M =2 EHE °
2. The joint interest of Mr. OEI Kang, Eric represents an 2. =Ml AE 7 R e R KR
interest in 8,720,987 shares of the Company jointly HEFRAELZTHRABEZ
held with his wife, Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau. 8,720,987 IR X 1~ Al g 17 2
3, The personal interest of Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel 3. TERGE 2 EARERETET,200
represents an interest in 7,200 shares of the Company. R A B RS o
4. The personal interest of Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy 4. BEHEREAE ZMEAREZIE

represents an interest in 5,145,000 shares of the
Company.
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Directors’ interests in securities (continued)
(ii) Long positions in the shares and underlying

EERRHFZ2ERE®)
(i) FﬁﬂjﬁﬁilWﬁ&ﬁ@

shares of associated corporation of the sl
Company:
Approximate
Number of shares  percentage of the
and underlying existing issued
Name of shares of the share capital of
associated associated the associated
corporation Name of Directors Nature of interest corporation corporation
LB EZERE
HEZEZRA R ERITRE
B ZEERE EEng RN HERGEE BHEDE
China Renewable Mr. OEl Kang, Eric ~ Corporate 2,046,390,972! 86.539%
Energy Investment  ZEMI%AE NC]
Limited 32,279,3262 1.365%
HEBAERRIRE Joint
BRAH £
Notes: BsE
1. Since as at 31 December 2017, the Company was held 1. HRAR_ZE—+tHF+ = A
as to approximately 65.55% by Claudio (via its wholly- =+—8 ' A7 HEClaudiodd
owned subsidiaries, Creator and Genesis), a company BH65.55%(BiBHEEENE
wholly-owned by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, Mr. OEl Kang, N A ElE NES]) - i Claudio
Eric is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Al EMEE2EHRE W
shares of CRE in which the Company is interested. The FEMEERRABRRE— K
corporate interest of Mr. OEI Kang, Eric represents (i) NEEEEZZPE B £
an interest in 1,275,682,050 shares of CRE and an R DPEAEEZ - Sl %k

interest in 254,967,058 underlying shares in respect
of warrants issued by CRE held by the Company; (ii)
an interest in 276,065,897 shares of CRE and an
interest in 55,213,179 underlying shares in respect
of warrants issued by CRE held by Genesis; and (iii) an
interest in 154,278,990 shares of CRE and an interest
in 30,183,798 underlying shares in respect of warrants
issued by CRE held by Creator.
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Directors’ interests in securities (continued)
(ii) Long positions in the shares and underlying
shares of associated corporation of the
Company: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

2. The joint interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an
interest in 26,899,439 shares of CRE and an interest
in 5,379,887 underlying shares in respect of warrants
issued by CRE jointly held with his wife, Mrs. OEIl Valonia
Lau.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries, its parent
company or its other associated corporations a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors and chief executives of the
company (including their spouse and children under 18 years
of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the company or its
specified undertakings or other associated corporation.

Directors’ right to acquire shares or
debentures

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
that enabled the Directors or any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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ESEHREE

Directors’ interests in competing businesses
Mr. OEl Tjie Goan is the chairman and a director of PT. Sinar
Mas, a company together with its subsidiaries, associates,
including Asia Pulp & Paper Company, Ltd., and its holding
companies (if any) (the “Sinar Mas Group”) are engaged in,
among other things, general trading and property development
and investment. Save as disclosed above, Mr. OEl Tjie Goan is
not interested in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, a member of the Oei Family and the
son of Mr. OEI Tjie Goan, does not hold any directorship in the
Sinar Mas Group. Having considered that the Company itself has
its own management supervising the daily operation and making
financial and business decisions, the Company can operate its
business independently from the Sinar Mas Group.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their
respective associate(s) was interested in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group during the year.

Directors’ and controlling shareholders’
interests in contracts of significance

Save as disclosed under the sections “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this Report of Directors and “Related
Party Transactions” in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contract of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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EEGHREE
Substantial shareholders’ interests in FTERFENBS 2
securities

At 31 December 2017, the following persons (other thana R—-_ZF—+F+—-_A=+—H ' LT A
Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or +(AAREZTEHXETETHAERIN) R
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the AR R ZRMH MBERMDTELRBELRT
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under RFEE NG HIEIEHEIZCIEREFERNE
section 336 of the SFO: Rtz EmIOAR -

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares RAEAQATROGRHEBERGDZHA
of the Company

Approximate

Number of shares percentage of
and underlying existing issued
shares of share capital of
Name Nature of interest the Company the Company
AR ERE
TARRHG K ERTRAK
e/ BB ERtME HERGHE BMABFA L
Mrs. OEIl Valonia Lau Family 346,657,938! 65.551%
e Sogn Kk
Joint 8,720,9872 1.649%
HA
Claudio Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 346,657,9383 65.551%
EnlEAA
Creator Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 203,445,4074 38.471%
BIEEEERAA ExBEBA
Genesis Capital Group Limited Beneficial owner 143,212,531° 27.081%
ELEERR AT EnlEAA
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Substantial shareholders’ interests in
securities (continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company (continued)

Notes:

1.

Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau is deemed to be interested in the same
parcel of shares of the Company in which Mr. OEl Kang, Eric
is taken to be interested (as detailed in “Directors’ Interests in
Securities” section above).

The joint interest of Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau represents an interest
in 8,720,987 shares of the Company jointly held with her
husband, Mr. OEl Kang, Eric.

The beneficial interest of Claudio includes an interest in
203,445,407 shares of the Company held by Creator and
an interest in 143,212,531 shares of the Company held by
Genesis. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is the sole director of Claudio.

The beneficial interest of Creator includes an interest in
203,445,407 shares of the Company. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and
Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau are directors of Creator.

The beneficial interest of Genesis includes an interest in
143,212,531 shares of the Company. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and
Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau are directors of Genesis.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the
Company had not been notified by any person, other than
Directors and chief executive of the Company, who had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which are required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Related party transactions

The Company and its subsidiaries entered into certain
transactions in the ordinary course of business and on normal
commercial terms which were “Related Parties Transactions”,
the details of which are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements. Some of these transactions also constitute
“Continuing Connected Transactions” under the Listing Rules as
summarized below.

Continuing connected transactions
Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by
the Group during the year are set out below:

(i) Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE

The Company has provided, by itself directly or its
wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly, guarantees in
respect of project loan facilities granted by banks to
the relevant project companies, which are subsidiaries
of CRE (the “Guarantees”). CRE is a subsidiary of the
Company and Mr. OEl Kang, Eric (Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company) and his
associates held approximately 19.34% direct interest
in CRE as at 31 December 2017. The provision of the
Guarantees is subject to reporting, annual review and
disclosure requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the Guarantees were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 30 September
2011.
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Continuing connected transactions (continued) EERERES @)
() Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE (i) MPEBEERRZHELRIR
(continued) HIER (@)
The salient particulars of the Guarantees are set out BRz2EEFBIHINAT -
below:
(1) Date : 28 August 2006
H & —EEXFNAZFTNHB
Project company cEME A EE(HAT) AR AT (Asia Wind Power (Mudanjiang) Company
(borrower) Limited), which is currently a non-wholly owned subsidiary of CRE.
HBEREI(ER) TMBENEEHNI)BRAT  BERIATBRBEARRCIEZEWNBEA
E—J o
Amount secured . The Guarantee provided for this project company was given in favour of the
EReEE bank to secure repayment of all monies due from the operating company to

the lending bank under the loan facility, including the principals, interests
accrued and other losses, damages and monies payable under the loan
facility.

mILIE B Qﬁﬁﬁf’ﬁtﬁZ%%Tﬁ%ﬁEﬁﬁiﬁé/\ CEREEERRERETE
HIRITRWEBE AR ZFENRE  BREEFRBEETAS « B ERE
&S - B REMRE -

The loan in the sum of RMB200 million (approximately HK$239.9 million)
was originally granted and utilized. The loan was a term loan and carried
interest at such annual rate as agreed with lending bank, determined
by reference to PBOC Benchmark Rate for loans of the same grade and
tenure. The interest rate will be adjusted annually on each anniversary of
the related advancement (and, in relation to an extended term agreed by
lending bank, on each anniversary of the date falling immediately after the
original maturity date) based on the PBOC Benchmark Rate then in effect
as prescribed in the facility agreement.

REBELRER 2 ERLE A ARE200,000,0007T(47239,900,0005%
L) c ERATHER  HHEEBEFBRTHECBEBRENERGTE - L2224
BARBRITHERSZERELFHIERZEEFNERETF - MRt E WM
B FIERERIEFBRIARBITEREMCEEFE  REERR 2T —F
ii B(IWREFRTHECLERPHE  BERIPAE 2 S—RAFERD)
ZEFE o

As at 31 December 2017, the total outstanding principal was RMB58
million (approximately HK$69.6 million); and the extent of the Guarantee
was for the same amount.

RZE—tF+ZA=1+—H KEEFA2LTE R ARK58,000,0007T
(#969,600,000%7T) * EREEINEHER o

Repayment and . The loan is repayable by installments scheduled over the term of the loan
maturity dates of as provided in the facility agreement, with the final maturity date falling on
loan facility 30 August 2021.

ERRE 2 ER K ZREmaRTE  ERRERBARS#ERZ  SEBIHEBA-Z-_—FN
alpip= A=+8-
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Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

Continuing connected transactions (continued) EHERER S @)

(i)

Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE

(continued)

(2)

Date
H

Project company
(borrower)
HERA(ERH)

Amount secured
EREEE

Repayment and
maturity dates of
loan facility

EXBECER R
ESJEE =

(i) MTEBEERZHERLRR
HER @

: 3 March 2006

—ETTRF=A=H

C BAERNEE(BE)ER AT (Hong Kong Wind Power (Muling) Company

Limited), which is currently a non-wholly owned subsidiary of CRE.
BEBRNBLE(BE)BRAT - BRATEBERRZIZEWB AR -

. The Guarantee provided for this project company was given in favour of the

bank to secure repayment of all monies due from the operating company to
the bank under the loan facility, including the principals, interests accrued
and losses, damages and other monies payable under the loan facility.
MULEE ARIFEE 2 BERIVABTAZEA BREEEFBEE TR
TRWEENRIZFIENE  BEEFRMEETAS « B HEREE -
B R H A FEA ZRER -

The loan in the sum of RMB200 million (approximately HK$239.9 million)
was originally granted and utilized. The loan was a term loan and carried
interest, settled quarterly, at such annual rate as agreed with lending
bank, determined by reference to PBOC Benchmark Rate for loans of the
same grade and tenure. The interest rate will be adjusted annually on
each anniversary of the date of related advancement (and, in relation to
an extended term agreed by lending bank, on each anniversary of the date
falling immediately after the original maturity date) based on the PBOC
Benchmark Rate then in effect, as prescribed in the facility agreement.
RERERERZEFRERE AR 200,000,000t (47239,900,0007%
75) cERABEBEN  REGSRBITHBE2EBFNETELIEEFE

2 EREARBITHRERASHARFR2ER 2 EEFRETE - &
ﬁTzﬁ% EPTETEA - FIREBRBPEARBITERER CELENE - RE#ER
R2B—HAFER (URRERRTHELLERAMR  BEERIHAECLE
—REER) EHFRAE -

As at 31 December 2017, the total outstanding principal was RMB58

million (approximately HK$69.6 million); and the extent of the Guarantee

was for the same amount.

RZE—tF+_A=+—0 REELSBERAKKES8,000,0007T
(#769,600,000%& ) - ERESFEINEMER °

. The loan is repayable by installments scheduled over the term of the loan

as provided in the facility agreement over the term of the loan, with the
final maturity date falling on 27 February 2021.
REFBNZRERZAT  EXRERBARNSHEERE &I BEA=
T —FZA=++H-

BRRREB)ERAR] Z2—tFFH
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ESEHREE

Continuing connected transactions (continued) EERERES @)

(i)

Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE

(continued)

(3)

Date
H

Project company
(borrower)
HERA(ERH)

Amount secured
EREEE

Repayment and
maturity dates of
loan facility

BERRE 2 ER K
ESJEE s

(i) MTEBEERZHERRR
HER @

: 22 December 2008

—TENF+-A=F+=H

C SRR T EiER LB AR (Hong Kong New Energy Si Zi Wang Qi

Wind Power Ltd.), which is currently a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRE.
BEIERNFEEREERART - BRIATEBEERCE2EWER
E—J o

. The Guarantee provided for this project company was given in favour of the

bank to secure repayment of all monies due from the operating company to
the bank under the loan facility, including the principals, interests accrued
and other losses, damages and monies payable under the loan facility.
MEEE ATER 2 BRIDARITAZEA  BREEEFREE TR
TRWEERNRIZFBNE REEFMEETAS « B F B REAmE
B BRRIERNFEE -

The loan in the sum of RMB300 million (approximately HK$359.9 million)
was originally granted and utilized. The loan was a term loan and carried
interest at such annual rate as agreed with lending bank, determined
by reference to PBOC Benchmark Rate for loans of the same grade and
tenure. The interest rate will be adjusted annually on each anniversary of
the date of related advancement based on the PBOC Benchmark Rate then
in effect, as prescribed in the facility agreement.
RERBRERZERLEE A ARE300,000,0007T(47359,900,0005%
TL) c ERATHER  RHEBFBRTHECEBFEANEGTE - K224
BEARBOTHERSERRFHERZEEFERETF - LR EWHZEE
B FIRERBEFEARBRITEREREENE  REERR2E—R
FEBREFHE -

As at 31 December 2017, the total outstanding principal was RMB100
million (approximately HK$S120 million); and the extent of the Guarantee
was for the same amount.

RZE—+tF+ZA=+—H KEELXSEEAEARM100,000,0007T
(#7120,000,000%7T) * ERESEMEER ©

. The loan is repayable by installments scheduled over the term of the loan

as provided in the facility agreement over the term of the loan, with the
final maturity date falling on 22 December 2021.
REFBRARBEREETE  EFREFHASHEE  5ERIHBAA=
T-_—H+=—A=+=B-
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Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

(i)

Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE
(continued)

Opinion from the Independent Non-executive
Directors on the continuing connected transactions
The Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company were given sufficient information to discharge
their duties in monitoring the continuing connected
transactions described above (“Continuing Connected
Transactions”). The Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company had assessed that the Continuing
Connected Transactions were conducted in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreements governing
the Continuing Connected Transactions and on normal
commercial terms. The internal audit had reviewed the
Continuing Connected Transactions and the internal
control procedures and provide the finds to the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
to assist them in performing their annual review, The
internal control systems and procedures of the Company
had provided an internal audit function to ensure that the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
had sufficient information to properly review the
Continuing Connected Transactions. The Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company had ensured
that the methods and procedures established by the
Group are sufficient to ensure that the Continuing
Connected Transactions were conducted on normal
commercial terms and not prejudicial to the interests of
the Group and its minority shareholders and appropriate
internal control procedures are in place and the Group’s
internal audit would review the Continuing Connected
Transactions.

|
(i)

BRERXS @)
DA BEBERERZMEB AR
HIER i\

BUITESHRFEREXS 2
=R
RRABVEIFATESERETED
B WETRFEER LS
MEXS([HERERXS ) THZ
BE - AARBIUIFRITESRDA
E o RERER SRR ERER
BR 52 HABREGER R —REE
fERFRAETT » MEREET B FI D AT 15
BRAER S NAMEEEER - XM
ARBVBILIFATERERER -
BBV ELETT R © AR RIAES
EERARLERFAAABESR
Bt - AIRERA D RIELIFNITES
EREADEHAZZRIHER
BR G RRARBMIFHITERD
FEfR - AEBPTHIEN T ENIERF
RARBREBER S NI —KRE
ERFETEISREASE LA
PEBRR & - WERIEER
e - B ASEARME
P ERIIFERERS -

EEEREB)ARAR —F—tFFH
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ESEHREE

Continuing connected transactions (continued) EERERES @)

(i)

Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE
(continued)

Opinion from the Independent Non-executive
Directors on the continuing connected transactions
(continued)

In accordance with rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed and approved the Continuing Connected
Transactions and confirmed that the Continuing
Connected Transactions were carried out in accordance
with the following principles:

(i)

B B B A g R 2 Mt B A BliR
HiER @)
BIAHTESHRFERERZZ

ER@®)

RIE LR RIE14A550% - KA
BB FITE S BN RLER
¥ A TR BIHETT

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the (a) RAREER A BEBLF
Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms no less favourable (b) TEBERAM(KE)EBIE=H
than terms available to (or from) independent third B —MEEER
parties;

(c) in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreements governing the Continuing Connected
Transactions; and

(d) on a fair and reasonable basis and in the interest
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Report from the auditor on the continuing
connected transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in accordance with the Main
Board Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

Management contract

Apart from those disclosed under the heading “Related
Party Transactions” in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during the
year.

Major customers and suppliers

The percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales for the
year attributable to its major suppliers and customers are as
follows:

Purchases

The largest supplier 23%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 41%
Sales

The largest customer 5%
Five largest customers in aggregate 11%

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, any of
their associates, or shareholders of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group’s
five largest suppliers or customers noted above.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the company’s
listed securities

During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company
nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

EEEHN

Brir e M ISR M I8 BARE T X 5 | AT
WEEIN  NABRFAYLET LA
BEEXAABEARARB BRI EAENTD
X BB RITHAHR

ITEEFRHAER
AEBETERERRESRENGEAE
EREEELEERZ BT

BER

RAHER 23%
hTAHEEEAR 41%
HER

BRREP 5%
AREFAF 11%
REXEEEN  EF  REEABE

AT HARARARE (BEEFOEEEL
AE BT ARES%E ) B E A
B R A (LB B S R S A M 35

BE  HEIEEAQF LHRES
BE_Z—+tF+-_A=+—BLLF

B ARAREMERARBERNFAE
B HEXBEOARAEMR LEHES °

EEEREB)ARAR —F—tFFH
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ESEHREE

Corporate governance
The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 28 to 50.

Model code for securities transactions by
directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specified
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Group are also subject to compliance
with guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code.
A Code for Securities Dealings by Employees has also been
adopted in this regard.

Retirement benefits schemes
Information on the Group’s retirement benefits schemes is set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

Review of the audited financial statements by
audit committee

The audit committee of the Company comprises three
independent non-executive directors with written terms of
reference in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules, and reports to the Board. The audit committee has
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution for
the reappointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at 2018 AGM.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

Permitted indemnity provision

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, every Director and
other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which he/she may incur or sustain in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto, provided that the indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to
any of said persons.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Group’s Directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

Update on directors’ information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in the
information of the Directors since the date of the 2017 Interim
Report are set out below:

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHENG was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Kidsland International Holdings Limited with effect
from 20 October 2017 which had been officially listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange with effect from 10
November 2017.

On behalf of the Board

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

OEIl Kang, Eric

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19 March 2018

EERT RV R R
RIEARBME - ARBEEZNEM
THRABRBITEREMBHARI Z
FRERA - BR  WE - BX BER
XA RARR cBEEMNBES®E
& BMREARLEMBE  EARNRBE
PRAE NI B8R Lt A BEFA
BHEMZEH -

ARAELHEEBTRER - LBEXR
SEEFACESEHELZRET - AR
AlEFRa R EE -

ESENEH

BB EmARAFELIISIBG  EFEHR
BARB T —tFEFHRE AN
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BN £
(B IFHITEF)
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TAEIMERFIERERER AR (ER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B ENHRE

_a

pwec

Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of HKC (Holdings) Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 94 to 246, which comprise:

- the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2017,

- the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

- the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

- the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

- the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended; and

- the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

B AR E R

HERER(ER)ARLFARRK
(REFZELMA LA ERLA])

=R
EMEHFTHNAR

EEER(ER)BRABDUATERE
~El]) REKBAR (A TEHREEE
@J)5'J%Zﬁé%94§246§ﬂ%%éﬂﬂ%$&
=B

- RIE—tFT-A=t—HNOK
éé%%ﬁi’%:

( EZRALEFENGEARERE

- HAMBmRME BREESS
HRHER -

" PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwehk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B ENHRE

Our Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

BMHNER

BMRR  ZFGEEVBRREBESR
BEMASBEMN(EEMBERSEE
ADEEMmMPEMRERT SEEER-F
—tFt+ - A=+—BHHEaFBHIRR
LREBEZRLFENGAPBREAR
HERTRE  YDERFE(RFAK
1) BB TEZREE o

RENER
BRPERBEASFHMASHMN(ER
BT ERDEITER - HPIEZFERT
EENEECEARS [ZEEIET 4
B BmRAENET RO FEE—Z
-

HAIMRGE - P ESHET/RERER
REEE M RTFINET T RIRHER -

By

REFBGTMAGRMON(EESER
BRESTRDATERE [S7AI]) - RAEL
B EEE YERTTAGTHNEME
KERBBIE-
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B ENHRE

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

- Valuation of investment properties held by the Group and
its joint venture

- Recoverability of prepaid land lease payments,
properties under development and properties held for
sale

- Impairment assessment of property, plant and

equipment, intangible assets and prepaid land lease
payments related to power plants in the Mainland China.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B XA RS

Key Audit Matter
BREENEHE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ETNWEEBRETSE

Valuation of investment properties held by the Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of

Group and its joint venture
BEEBRHEGE ATMBENRENENGE

Refer to note 2.6, 4(a) and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements
BLHEAMEHERNE2.6 ~ 4(a)A15

Management estimated the fair value of the investment
properties held by its subsidiaries and a joint venture to
be HKS12,280 million and HKS3,703 million respectively
at 31 December 2017, with a revaluation gain for the
year ended 31 December 2017 recorded in fair value
adjustments on investment properties of HK$1,110
million and share of profits less losses of joint ventures

investment properties included:
BB EEBYREMENGHEMN TR

Evaluation of the independent external valuer's
qualifications, expertise, competence, capabilities
and objectivity;
SHEBUINEMEERMERE - EXET -
BEIE

BNk

Assessed the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based on
our knowledge of the property industry and using
our valuations specialists; and

RIBER M METEORE - F AN A

of HKS35 million respectively. BEXR @ FHMEFTRANGETERBREZNE
EREMTHMNBARR—MEERRBENRE A AR

MENRFER-_Z—tF+-_A=1+—HA25AK
12,280,000,000/ 7t #13,703,000,000/& T - #HE_—F
—tF+ A=+ -HILFE - IIRREMELTES
B E Az /~1,110,000,000% T © HIBREBRZEN
& &R A& M 435,000,000 7T ©

Independent external valuations are obtained to support
management’s estimates, with income capitalisation
method and direct comparison method being applied
for the valuation of completed investment properties
and residual method being applied for investment
properties under development. These valuations are
dependent on certain key assumptions that require
significant management judgments, among other
things, capitalisation rates, fair market rental, market
unit rate, estimated costs to completion, estimated
developer’s profit margins and interest rate.
BABUIINDHELREEENMG BT TREWHE
RRABABEARNENEZL L% REERREEMER
AEEETHE BLEGHEANEEEEEELE
AHABHREEERBRR  EFRBEERNMEEE - AF¥M
BEfE  MEHEMEE  BHRIKA - Bt HEED
FEEFE -

Due to the significant judgment and estimates involved,
specific audit focus was placed on this area.

B REAHE G - AR EREEZSE
IH o

Checked, on a sample basis, the published external
market data for the accuracy and relevance of the
input data used by the independent external valuer.
MR EFT A M EINE T 3% B B ERE I DA R 58
ST HNERAE (B RN AT 6 R B0 B A B KR ARRE 1 o

We found that the assumptions used in the valuations were
supported by the available evidence.
BMEREERPFEANBRRBEEIS -

EEEREB)ARAR —F—tFFH
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B XA RS

Key Audit Matter
BRESNSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ETOAEERRETEE

Recoverability of prepaid land lease payments, properties
under development and properties held for sale
FERLHEER  BEDUEREHEREZYEN
AT Uy =] 14

Refer to note 2.7, 2.8, 2.9, 4(a), 4(b), 4(c), 16, 17
and 25 to the consolidated financial statements
HRHEGAUBEHRERNE2.7 - 2.8 2.9 * 4(a) »
4(b) ~ 4(c) ~ 16 ~ 17 X225

Included in the Group’s balance sheet were prepaid
land lease payments, property under development and
properties held for sale which amounted to HKS1,580
million, HK$530 million and HKS1,462 million
respectively as at 31 December 2017 and which were
related to property projects in the Mainland China.
BE-_ZT—+F+-_A=+—H8 B8FE B&%
BEEABERTHNEMLIHBEENR BEEFPWE
MIESHE A% 2 W5 51 41,580,000,000%8 7T -
530,000,0007%7c#11,462,000,000%8 7T * L2/ B A
HEMEEB B -

Given their financial significance, management
assessed the recoverability of prepaid land lease
payments and net realisable value assessment in
respect of the properties under development and
held for sale, where applicable, taking into account
the estimated costs to completion and estimated net
sales value at prevailing market conditions.
EREMBEE  BEENG T BN L EERA A
W[ 14 DA K2 35 Fp ANESH S R i 2 W 35 0 A B3R
B WEA - WEETIRTMISEETRTEFE T
RNAMHEHIHEFE o

In respect of properties held for sale, management
assessed the recoverability based on the estimated
net sales value at prevailing market conditions.
ESEE R 2 MERTE - EEERBRITMSEET
HETRHEE FEMG T U RE S -

Provision is made when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The assessment requires
management judgment and estimates.

B8 S IR k1B 2 i 28 R E B AT s A UK ]
B - SHERERE o R - BRERERR AR
fisst -
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Our procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on recoverability of the prepaid land lease,
properties under development and properties held for
sale included:

AREREEABRN T HER  BERYWEMEHEE
Rz MENTTEMEFEE - ZRPIRTHERE

1z -

o Evaluation of management’s assessment
which was prepared based on the estimated
selling price and cost to completion. We had
benchmarked the estimated selling price, on a
sample basis, to recent transactions or available
market information. While on the construction
cost to completion, we had vouched significant
items to the relevant supporting documents; and
S E R EIRBMET A HE BT TRAE
AR o BPIEEFREEEKELIRS
kAl AT G BT 7 A EL 8 » MAETE LA
AAHE - HBPZE THEAZAXHTRTNEEZES
3 A&

o Discussed with management on the latest
status and development plans of the underlying
property projects, such as expected dates
in obtaining the completion certificates and
expected completion dates of the projects.
BTN [E 5T sm AR R W 3518 B AR AR 3 ET
g ESTELIFEMNEFBEMIEEEIN
TEFTHER -

We found the carrying amounts were supported by the
available evidence.
BMBEREMENTREEEEET -



Independent Auditor’s Report
B XA RS

Key Audit Matter
BREENEHE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ETNWEEBRETSE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and prepaid land lease
payments related to power plants in the Mainland
China

FEAGEERAEBNYE  BBERRE  BREEE
FFE AT = #h 30 & XA E R

Refer to note 2.5, 2.7, 2.11(c), 4(c), 16, 17 and 18 to
the consolidated financial statements
B2HGR e HmERME2.5 - 2.7 - 2.11(c) *
16 - 17X%18

4(c) »

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s non-current
assets principally comprised property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and prepaid land lease
payments related to power plants in the Mainland
China.
BHE-_ZT—tF+-_A=+—8 E£EMNFRIFE
EXZ0EPEANMABEEMmMOIZE - HEERK
B BEREEMEMNLHAER -
Management assessed whether there was any
impairment of the carrying values of property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets and prepaid land
lease payments by calculating the recoverable
amount under value-in-use method, where applicable.
The impairment assessment requires management
to exercise significant management judgment
and estimates, among other things, estimating
correspondingly tariff rates, future sales volume and
discount rate.
ERERBRAGERAEAEE(WER)FE A B E
BRI - MR REE  EREENEMN I HEE

ROEAELSSFERE - AEFEEREEEED
BEREEEHE MG - BREGEREE - KRR

B R E -

Our procedures in relation to management's impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and prepaid land lease payments
related to relevant power plants in the Mainland China
included:

HEEEBHREAMBREEERNOYE  HESRE
% - BREEEMBEN D HERARERG - HIH
TR B

Assessed the impairment assessment
methodology used by the management to
estimate value in use;
FHEEEERART A FEREERANRET S
iz

Assessed the reasonableness of the key
assumptions based on our knowledge of the
relevant business and industry and with the
involvement of our valuations specialists;
R AT A8 Fﬁ%i‘“%ﬂ”%ﬂ’]ﬁ%‘ﬁ@k&ﬁﬁﬁ’]
ABEEZRA2E - S HBERRENEE
[

Reconciled input data to supporting evidence,
such as approved budgets and considered the
reasonableness of these budgets;

LB AR FIEER - R TEE 6
NEERELEFEENGEN

o Evaluated the management’s sensitivity analysis
to assess the potential impact of reasonable
possible downside changes in the key
assumptions.

M EEENSRMES N - AT H B R R
BN EETE o

We found the assumptions made by management

in relation to the value in use assessment to be
supportable based on available evidence.
BERBFRE - BMER  SEEHEAEENG
FIERBB S

The significant inputs have been appropriately
disclosed in note 4c.
ZEHEMNBEEZG ABEEEMNTIcHREEREE -

BRRREB)ERAR] Z2—tFFH
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

BB BB RS M B |RARE
HMEE
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B ENHRE

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Pong Fei Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 19 March 2018
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Consolidated Income Statement

mEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+FE+-_A=+—HLFE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
Note HKS$ Million HKS Million
ihg=2 BEET AEATT
Continuing operations HEREER
Revenue Iy &5 5 1,789.1 1,605.2
Cost of sales HE R A (1,112.2) (1,062.5)
Gross profit EX 676.9 542.7
Other income E A 6 235.6 57.4
Fair value adjustments on BEMERNFERAE
investment properties 1,110.0 607.2
Selling and distribution costs $HE R s A (54.5) (49.6)
Administrative expenses T ER (199.8) (174.2)
Other and general expenses Bk —HER (94.0) (70.1)
Operating profit R H A 8 1,674.2 913.4
Finance income U 9 32.1 33.0
Finance costs & R A 9 (40.7) (48.5)
Finance costs -net mERAFEE S (8.6) (155
Share of profits less losses of JE (B A% N TR FR
associates BB 21 97.1 98.2
Share of (loss)/profit of a joint i el SN /NE]
venture (E518) % F) 22 (47.8) 82.0
Profit before income tax Fri8 8 AnER 1,714.9 1,078.1
Income tax expense Rl i 12 (470.5) (599.6)
Profit for the year from REFELEEK2
continuing operations IE B A 1,244.4 478.5
Discontinued operations ERIEREE
Profit for the year from REBRIELEEE A
discontinued operations F 2 i Al 7 - 111.0
Profit for the year FEE A 1,244.4 589.5

94 HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017



Consolidated Income Statement

mEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+_A=1T—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Note HKS$ Million HKS Million
ihg=2 BEET AEATT
Profit attributable to: PR PG F
Equity holders of the Company RARERFEEA 898.8 386.3
Non-controlling interests RIS R 2 345.6 203.2
1,244.4 589.5
Earnings per share from TEEXRABERFEA
continuing and discontinued EAEREFESEEK
operations attributable to RERIEEEKR ST
equity holders of the Company gz
for the year
(expressed in HK cents per share)  (GRXLAELFIR) 13
Basic AR
- From continuing operations —REBEREEES 170.0 52.0
— From discontinued operations —REBRIEEETR - 21.0
From profit for the year B ARFEE 5% F 170.0 73.0
Diluted e
— From continuing operations —REABELEERS 170.0 51.8
— From discontinued operations —REBRIEEEER - 21.0
From profit for the year KB AN F s 170.0 72.8

BEER(ER)ERAT —B—tFFH
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REZEESER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2017 2016
—E—+F —T—RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
HEBT BEBT
Profit for the year Zliff—EﬁéiﬂJ _____________________ 1,2444 589.5
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hib2mEBA A (BR)
Items that may be reclassified AREREHN S EEERNE
subsequently to profit or loss B
Translation of financial statements of HMEBINETS B TS 3R
foreign operations
— Currency translation differences —ERRE =R 1,104.6 (789.4)
Reclassification adjustments EN B
— Release of exchange differences upon  — &N E A A& fRER
disposal of subsidiaries I W = 5E - (9.7)
Investments available for sale AHEERE
— Gain in fair value —REEKER 3.2 -
Item that will not be reclassified HEBTEEH,EZE
subsequently to profit or loss BRpER
Gain on property revaluation Y2 E W= 52.3 =
Other comprehensive income/(loss)  AREEHMEEB A~
_forthe year, netoftax =~~~ (B#R) fKk®" 11601 (799.1)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) AEE2EBA (EE)EE
for the year 2,404.5 (209.6)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) UTEAZEmBA
attributable to: (E518) 4% -
Equity holders of the Company AAAEREEA 1,870.0 (278.1)
Non-controlling interests JEPERR R = 534.5 68.5
2,404.5 (209.6)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) REUTEHz2ARD R ERES
attributable to equity holders of BAEMGEZER
the Company arising from: WA (51845
Continuing operations SEAE TS 1,870.0 (389.1)
Discontinued operations BRI T - 111.0
1,870.0 (278.1)
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 31 December 2017
R_ZE—+F+_-_A=+—8H

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Note HKS$ Million HKS Million
ihg=s HEBT BEBT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment properties B 15 12,280.5 9,141.5
Prepaid land lease payments TEf L FAE 5K 16 1,579.6 1,461.5
Property, plant and equipment I - WER KRS
- Other property, plant and —H A3 - s
equipment K& 17 998.2 1,008.7
— Construction in progress —FEEITRE 17 36.1 7.3
Intangible assets B EE 18 1.6 0.2
Properties under development BRAPYE 19 529.9 471.0
Interests in associates N /N o s 21 1,251.0 1,180.5
Interest in a joint venture R—EEE QR 2 #Ee= 22 1,780.3 1,925.8
Available-for-sale financial assets A/t HESRIEE 23 28.0 24.0
Prepayments and other receivables T8/ Zt & E b & Ug 5k 27 194.1 84.1
Total non-current assets FRpAEESS 18,679.3 153046
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 9.0 5.9
Properties held for sale ESHE Rg 2 s 25 1,461.9 2,490.0
Financial assets at fair value BAFEEBRRIIEZ
through profit or loss SREE 26 - 12.7
Trade and other receivables JFEE U5 AR 3k T EL i R LR 27 230.1 199.9
Restricted cash 2R3 & 28 398.0 614.7
Short-term bank deposits FRHIRITIE - 13.5
Cash and cash equivalents HehREeFEY 29 2,497.4 1,296.3
Total currentassets RBRESE 45964 4,633.0
Total assets EERE 23,275.7 19,937.6

BRER(ERERLDR —B—tFFH
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 31 December 2017
R_ZE—+F+_-_A=+—8H

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Note HKS Million HKS Million
ihg=s BEEBT BEATT
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable to 22 A #EZFH A
equity holders of the Company  E{EEAR#HE
Share capital &7 30 132.2 132.2
Reserves {1 31 13,138.7 11,345.0
Equity attributable to equity EATERFEA
holders of the Company PE{hRE = 13,270.9 11,477.2
Non-controlling interests IR 2,685.3 2,149.9
Totalequity Bamw® 15,956.2  13,62/.1
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Borrowings (BN 32 2,508.1 2,238.8
Deferred income tax liabilities REMERAE 34 1,790.5 1,384.5
Total non-current liabilities Fnmafes 0 42986 . 3,623.3
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables JE A BR 3 R E At B A5 3R 33 2,187.0 1,758.8
Borrowings BN 32 288.0 705.6
Amount due to a shareholder JEf — 2 IR FRIE 35 226.2 =
Current income tax liabilities BENEAFT ISR B E 319.7 222.8
Total current liabilities nBeEe® 0000 3029 2,687.2
Totalliabilites AR 73195 63105
Total equity and liabilities EnRkEEAE 23,275.7 19,937.6
OEl Kang, Eric =
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel REHK
Directors 2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

Attributable to Non-
equity holders of controlling Total
the Company interests equity
RARER FER
BB AEL i ERaE
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million HKS Million
353 BEER BEBAR BEERR
Balance at 1 January 2016~ W=®-AF-A-REH 17603 20814 13,8417
Comprehensive income 2EUA
Profit for the year AEE R 386.3 203.2 589.5
Other comprehensive loss Htt2EEE
Translation of financial statements of BERNEREBERR
foreign operations
- Currency translation differences ~ERREES 3l (654.7) (134.7) (789.4)
Reclassification adjustments ENNERE
- Release of exchange differences upon ~HENBARRRDELZSE
disposal of subsidiaries 31 9.7) = 9.7)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for ~ AFE2E(FE) / RARE
ey G2 ST LI )
Total transactions with owners in AREANEERAGR) 2
their capacity as owners RABE
Duidedspad  BERE N - 50
Balance at 31 December 2016 R=B-AE+-A=t—-R&H 11,477.2 2,149.9 13,627.1
Balance at1 January 2017 W=®-tf-A-RE# 14772 21499 136271
Comprehensive income 2EUA
Profit for the year AEERH 898.8 345.6 1,244.4
Other comprehensive income Hfh2EEA
Translation of financial statements of BERNEREBERR
foreign operations
- Currency translation differences ~BHAZEES 3l 915.7 188.9 1,104.6
Investments available for sale MEHERE
— Gain in fair value -2V EYE 3l 3.2 - 3.2
Gain on property revaluation WEEMf 2R 52.3 - 52.3
Total comprehensive income for the year ATEZEHAARE 187100 5345 2,404.5
Transactions with owners in their capacity EEEA(NEFEASH) 2
as owners X%
Changes in ownership interests in a subsidiary ETFIRREHHEAR 2
that do not result in a loss of control arising ~~ EAEZEBHBAREH
from the following factor RETEE
- Exercise of a listed subsidiary's bonus —MEARESR—A LM
warrants, distributed by the Group W A Rl 2 AL FI R AR 3l (2.3) 4.2 1.9
Dividends paid ERRE 31 (74.0) (3.3) (77.3)
Total transactions with owners in BREAUEEBASR) 2
_Mheircapacityasowners  RR@® .y 09 ... (75.4
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZB-tE+-R=1-H&H 13,270.9 2,685.3 15,956.2
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HMERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+E+-A=+t—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
Note HK$ Million HKS Million
iz HEBT BEBTT
Cash flows from operating activities REXKFE2EEHRE
Cash generated from operations RELBHBHE 39 1,566.8 1,008.9
Income tax paid, net B P SEF5E (105.4) (130.7)
Net cash generated from operating RS E F5E
activites 1,461.4 8782
Cash flows from investing activities REFEH ELSHKE
Interest received BUF & 23.8 22.9
Dividend received B S - 66.6
Development costs paid for investment B ZEEFAKEDE L
properties under development BREAAN (208.3) (463.1)
Additions to prepayment for property, ME - MR REE - ARE
plant and equipment and investment BHEEYERNTEINER
properties under development BRI (186.2) (0.1)
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  HEEE
equipment (53.2) (12.1)
Proceeds from the disposal of HEFTSRIA
- prepaid land lease payments and — LB EFARY
property, plant and equipment E T 1.0 1.1
— a subsidiary - —[AfB AR - 293.7
Disposal of a financial asset at fair value —H&EZ A FEEBELIIE
through profit or loss ZERMEE 36.8 =
Decrease/(increase) in advances to a B —fA & A RER
joint venture A/ () 246.8 (55.6)
Decrease/(increase) in short term bank RIS IERUR L/
deposits (38hn) 145 (9.2)
Net cash used in investing activities REEEFMAREFE (124.8) (155.8)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+FE+-_A=+—HLFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
Note HKS Million HKS Million
B & HEBR BEBT
Cash flows from financing activities ®BEFTH ESRE
Repayment of bank borrowings and EBERTERREMER
other loans (742.2) (1,032.2)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash ~ ZR#HEE SR/ (#h0) 265.3 (35.9)
Increase in bank borrowings and other — $R7T1E 2 K Lt & FaZ o0
loans 388.4 919.5
Increase in advance from — R RREBFIE M
a shareholder 220.0 -
Proceeds from exercise of a listed 178 kT8 A B 2 ALF
subsidiary’s bonus warrants R EBFE A 1.9 =
Dividends paid to shareholders EFARABREZRE
of the Company (77.3) (5.0)
Settlement of a financial liability at fair ~ &&ERAFEEBZERIIE
value through profit or loss s 3= (163.7) =
Interest paid BAFIE (152.4) (185.4)
Net cash used in financing activities mEEAAASFE 0 (260.0) | (339.0)
Net increase in cash and cash ReRESEEY
equivalents EINFELE 1,076.6 383.4
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BZRE&FELE
B 1,296.3 974.2
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ERE 82 22 124.5 (61.3)
Cash and cash equivalents R+ZA=+—Bz2R&ek
at 31 December ReEED 2,497.4 1,296.3

BRER(ERERLDR —B—tFFH
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General information

HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company” or “HKC") is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the business of
property development and investment and renewable
energy investment and operation. The investments of the
Group are mainly located in the Mainland China.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The ultimate holding company is Claudio
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in million of Hong Kong dollars (HKS Million), unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements were approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 19 March 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of HKC
have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) and disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties, available-for-sale financial
assets, and financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instrument) at fair value
through profit or loss, which are carried at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRMET
2  Summary of significant accounting 2 FEESHHEHBE@)
policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REEEHE)
Changes in accounting policy and SHBEREEZEE
disclosures
(a)  Amended standards adopted by the Group (a) AEEFEN ST
2RI
HKAS 7 Statement of cash flows BEEHE RenEx
(Amendments) AIE75%
CEHEN)
HKAS 12 Income taxes BREIE EN
(Amendments) AI5125%
(fBETK)
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interest in EBMER WHENH
(Amendments)  other entities EEAE HMEEZ
12%:(f8  #&=
HEY,
The adoption of the above amendments to B4R | it 2 RIE 3T
standards has no significant effects on the REB 2 HBERIL
Group's financial information. BEATE o
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e ISR AR

2  Summary of significant accounting 2 IFEESHHEHBE@m)
policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REE%EE)
Changes in accounting policy and BN BEREEZS8 (H)

disclosures (continued)

(b)  New standards, amendments to standards b) R-ZF—+F—H—
and interpretations have been issued but H B 5.2 81 B F E 2
are not effective for the financial year B E A R XL A K
beginning on 1 January 2017 and have not EEFHEIIREFRNZ
been early adopted FrER - ERAIEET K

2E

The following standards, amendments to
standards and interpretation have been
published and are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018 or later periods,
but the Group has not early adopted them:

AN BB BEHGBNERE
—E-N\F—HA—BA%
L\ERBz A EE SR
HARE sk 1% HA R ok 1| fE
B EAEETERETR
B ZERI - EERIE

ERSE

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

KI5 AHH 2%
HBNEHEEXR
HKAS 28 (Amendments) Investments in associates and joint ventures 1 January 2018
B e ERE28 (BFTA) BERAECEIRE —T-\5—H—H
HKAS 40 (Amendments) Transfers of investment property 1 January 2018
BB e EREA0F (BFTA) REME 7 EE —Z-N\F—-H—H
HKFRS 1 (Amendments) First time adoption of HKFRS 1 January 2018
ERUBREENELIR(BITLR) BREAEBHBREE —Z-\F—f—H
HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Classification and Measurement of Share-based 1 January 2018
Payment Transactions
BERRBREENE2R(BITA)  UBRHIEIRH2HERHE —T-\F—H—-H
HKFRS 4 (Amendments) Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with 1 January 2018
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
ERUBREENELR(BITR) ERBRMEREENEIREMIAR —Z-\F-A—H
BRMBREENEIRRBED
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2018
BB S ERIE SRIA —Z-\F—-H—H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
B BREENELLH EFEAHKA —E-N\F—H—H
HK (IFRIC) - Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and 1 January 2018
Advance Consideration
(BB BERERBRZER) INER 5 RIBUTEMEIE —T-\$—H—H

—RRR22%

BRER(ERERLDR —B—tFFH
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e ISR AR

2  Summary of significant accounting 2 FEESHHEHBE@)
policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REE%EE)
Changes in accounting policy and BN BEREEZS8 (H)
disclosures (continued)
(b)  New standards, amendments to standards b) R-ZF—+F—H—
and interpretations have been issued but H B 5.2 81 B F E 2
are not effective for the financial year B E A R XL A K
beginning on 1 January 2017 and have not EEFEIIRERNZ
been early adopted (continued) FrER| - ERANESET R
2EE(E)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RTSIRER 2%
Ehlil=ag kR
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
BETBREERELR HE —E-NE—-A-H
HK (IFRIC) - Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019
B (ERMBREREZED) TR 2 M1 —T-NE-HA-H
—REF23R
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or contribution of assets between an To be announced
(Amendments) investor and its associate or joint venture
ERRBREENFI0RR REERABEHSELEZANEELER SN
BR S ERIE 285 (BF ) BA
The Group has not early adopted the new N EFE A EIRER R
standards, amendments to standards and MEEHBER -
interpretations, which have been issued —+EFE— A —H#H
but are not effective for the financial year B T B EE Sk
beginning 1 January 2017. H oz $FYERI - HE R

CHPESER
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e ISR AR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

2.1

(b)

New standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations have been issued but
are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2017 and have not
been early adopted (continued)

Further information about those new
standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations that are not yet effective
but are expected to be applicable to the
Group is set out below:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments addresses
the classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities, introduces new rules for
hedge accounting and a new impairment
model for financial assets. The Group
has decided not to adopt HKFRS 9 until it
becomes mandatory on 1 January 2018.

The Group does not expect the new
standard to have a significant impact on
the classification and measurement of its
financial assets and financial liabilities.
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e ISR AR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

2.1

(b)

New standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations have been issued but
are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2017 and have not
been early adopted (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(continued)

The Group has assessed on a forward
looking basis on the expected credit
losses associated with its financial assets
carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase
in credit risk. The impairment provision
is determined based on the 12-month
expected credit losses which are not
expected to be financially material to the
Group.

The new standard also introduces
expanded disclosure requirements and
changes in presentation. These are
expected to change the nature and extent
of the Group’s disclosures about its
financial instruments particularly in the
year of the adoption of the new standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

2.1

(b)

New standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations have been issued but
are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2017 and have not
been early adopted (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants has issued a new standard
for the recognition of revenue. This will
replace HKAS 18 which covers revenue
arising from the sale of goods and the
rendering of services and HKAS 11 which
covers construction contracts.

The new standard is based on the principle
that revenue is recognised when control of
a good or service transfers to a customer.
The application of HKFRS 15 may result in
the identification of separate performance
obligations which could affect the timing
of the recognition of revenue. Certain
costs incurred in fulfilling a contract which
are currently expensed may need to be
recognised as an asset under HKFRS 15.

The Group has assessed the effects
of applying the new standard on the
consolidated financial statements and has
not identified any material financial impact
to the Group.
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e ISR AR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

2.1

(b)

New standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations have been issued but
are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2017 and have not
been early adopted (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016.
It will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the balance sheet, as
the distinction between operating and
finance leases is removed. Under the
new standard, an asset (the right to use
the leased item) and a financial liability
to pay rentals are recognised. The only
exceptions are short-term and low-value
leases.

The accounting for lessors will not
significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the
accounting for the Group’s operating
leases. As at the reporting date, the
Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$759,000. However,
the Group has not yet determined to what
extent these commitments will result in the
recognition of an asset and a liability for
future payments and how this will affect
the Group’s profit and classification of
cashflows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

2

Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(b)

New standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations have been issued but
are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2017 and have not
been early adopted (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Some of the commitments may be covered
by the exception for short-term and low-
value leases and some commitments may
relate to arrangements that will not qualify
as leases under HKFRS 16.

The standard is mandatory for first annual
reporting period beginning on or after
January 2019. At this stage, the Group
does not intend to adopt the standard
before its effective date.

2.2 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(a)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the
Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.
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e ISR AR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The Group uses the acquisition method
of accounting to account for business
combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of
the entity’s net assets in the event of
liguidation are measured at either fair
value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.
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e ISR AR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is
less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet,
investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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e ISR AR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (continued)
Inter-company transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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e ISR AR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions -
that is, as transactions the owners of the
subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change
in carrying amount recognised in profit
or loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(d)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which
the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method of accounting, the
investment is initially recognised at cost,
and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee
after the date of acquisition. The Group’s
investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an
associate, any difference between the cost
of the associate and the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate
is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.
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e ISR AR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(d)

Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of its associates’
post-acquisition profits or losses is
recognised in profit or loss, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised
in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting
date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case,
the group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between
the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to share of profits
less losses of associates in the income
statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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e ISR AR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(d)

(e)

Associates (continued)

Dilution gains and losses arising in
investments in associates are recognised
in profit or loss.

Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are
recognised within other income or other
and general expenses in profit or loss.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual
arrangement whereby the Group and other
parties undertake an economic activity
which is subject to joint control and none
of the participating parties has unilateral
control over the economic activity.

Investments in joint ventures are
accounted for by the equity method of
accounting. The consolidated income
statement includes the Group’s share
of the results of joint ventures for the
year, and the consolidated balance sheet
includes the Group’s share of the net
assets of the joint ventures and goodwill
(net of any accumulated impairment loss)
on acquisition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(e)

Joint ventures (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures
have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM").
The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the
Group’s most senior executive management that
makes strategic decisions.

2.4

Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The Company’s functional
currency is Renminbi and the Group's
presentation currency is Hong Kong
dollars to facilitate analysis of the financial
information of the Group, which is listed in
Hong Kong.
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e ISR AR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency
classified as available-for-sale are
analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security, and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised in
profit or loss, and other changes in the
carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets such as equities classified
as available for sale are included in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

FESHBRME @)
2.4 HNEBRE(E)

2 Summary of significant accounting 2
policies (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

(c) &KBEALQF

The results and financial position of all EEETHAEEREMN
the group entities (none of which has the BEHEREE S —
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) Wz 8% (Hh

that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each
income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
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e ISR AR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and
partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control
over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the equity holders of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (that is,
reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associates or joint ventures that
do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control) the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange
difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

122 HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017

2

FESHBREME @)
2.4 HNEBRE(E)

(d)

HEBMIRER DD
HE

R EEINER (A
EARKERBINET
ZEEEE - R
REH—HAFBEI
EBOME AR ZE
HlEZHE  FRK
EH-HAFBIE
BHEZERAZ KA
EHIEZHE - BF
RAREH-HABE
SINRIFHEE R A
ERFENZHE)
R BN AR
SRR ARIGZED
MRz A R Z A
BELEZHEFTNE

i85 o

B B AR5 1 4 3 R
EYAEELELA
59T 2 BB A A
Z I AL
R E N EEE
LR, B
BAERE AR -
B AT E 55
(D B S A
NOESXTUNGFE
BN MAEER
AREAEEALE
HHR )T
Bt Lt 1 5 2 5 3%
EEEH IR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.5

Property, plant and equipment
Properties are interests in land and buildings
other than investment properties. Leasehold land
classified as finance lease, buildings, electric
utility plant and equipment, other plant and
equipment, comprising plant and machineries,
motor vehicles and furniture and fixtures are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease
commences amortisation from the time when the
land interest becomes available for its intended
use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as
finance lease and depreciation on other assets
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified
as finance lease

Shorter of remaining
lease term or useful

life
Buildings 50 years
Electric utility plant and Shorter of the
equipment remaining operation

period or 20 years
Other plant and equipment 3 to 15 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

2 IFESHBEEME@m)

2.5 Y HERRE
MERBREMENINZ =
MREFHER - DERME
MEsHELH  EF - %
BN AR E s
#H EPBEHERR ﬁ
ATEREMARBEERE -
WA R ITE K EFR
BEEBIEER BLKAREE
BEEAWEEMEIER mEWN
2 e

DEAMEHEZHE LM
W% i #E ek A A ETRE
wRFREE o DBEARE
MEZHET 2 BIHRA
b & BE 2 T & A B AREF
8 RfAFTAIERFHAS
RADSEEESRE T -

DERBE RNHREEF
HEZHE  HskalE
: i REHZ

BEE

BF 504

HEMLRE RLEH
Z28EE
204

H it =s M Z15%F

B

SEGEAYRRNEEY
BERTEAES  LEE
B SR TR A -

BEER(ER)ERAT —B—tFFH

123




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.5

Property, plant and equipment
(continued)

All direct and indirect costs relating to the
construction of property, plant and equipment,
including borrowing costs during the construction
period are capitalised as the costs of the assets,
which are classified as construction in progress.
No depreciation is provided on construction in
progress until such times as the relevant assets
are completed and available for intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying
amount of the asset or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within other income or other
and general expenses in profit or loss.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.6

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, is held for long-term
rental yields and is not occupied by the Group.
Land held under operating leases are accounted
for as investment properties when the rest of the
definition of an investment property is met. In
such cases, the operating leases concerned are
accounted for as if they were finance leases.

Property that is being constructed or developed
as investment property is carried at fair
value. Where fair value is not determinable,
such investment property under construction
is measured at cost until either its fair value
becomes reliably determinable or construction is
completed (whichever is earlier).

Investment property is initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs. After initial
recognition at cost, investment properties are
carried at fair value, representing open market
value determined at each reporting date by
external valuers. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition
of the specific asset. If the information is not
available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections.
These valuations are reviewed annually by
Knight Frank Petty Limited (“Knight Frank”), an
independent professional valuer.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.6

Investment properties (continued)

The fair value of investment property reflects,
among other things, rental income from current
leases and assumptions about rental income
from future leases in the light of current market
conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis,
any cash outflows that could be expected in
respect of the property. Some of those outflows
are recognised as a liability, including finance
lease liabilities in respect of land classified as
investment property, others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognised in the financial
statements.

Subsequently expenditure is included in the
asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed in profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Changes in fair values are recorded as part of a
valuation gain or loss in fair value adjustments on
investment properties in profit or loss.

The Group transfers a property from investment
property to property, plant and equipment
and prepaid land lease payments when and
only when there is a change in use, evidenced
by commencement of owner-occupation. The
deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment
and prepaid land lease payments is the fair value
of the property at the date of change in use.

126 HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017

2

FESHBREME @)
2.6 REWE @)

REMEZ A TFERR(E
TRE)RERBEREGHD
ZHBWA - ARZRRA™
SRR EKERREES L
MWEEBAZRER -

RNFETABUT R TR
HBEBYE ZEARESR
b EhETRESROER
RBE BEIBRRED
XeREMERRE  HAMAE
B(BfEmAEeH)TE
B RARER -

ERMEE ZRREHEN
REAERANEE  ME
ERRBES ] SEdh AT B R -
HERX et ANEEZR
HE{E ° FIAEMBEERRE
AR ESE 2 W5 B AT
BRI o

DT EZ BHRBENER
BANERFEALEDAT
BB RER L — 5 -

EEMEERNERBRTH
BNER - KRBT EEY
XHREVMEBREYE
s M RE A RFEN L1
B - ME - EEMEREA
REMTHERKRSZ

RABRMERBRHE Y
A2 AFME -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.6

2.7

Investment properties (continued)

The Group transfers a property from property,
plant and equipment to investment property when
and only when there is a change in use, evidenced
by end of owner-occupation. Any difference
resulting between carrying amount and the fair
value of the property at the date of transfer is
treated as the same way as a revaluation under
HKAS 16. Any resulting increase in the carrying
amount of the property is recognised in income
statement to the extent that it reverses a previous
impairment loss, with any remaining increase
recognised in other comprehensive income
and increase directly to equity in revaluation
surplus within equity. Any resulting decrease in
the carrying amount of the property is initially
charged in other comprehensive income against
any previously recognised revaluation surplus,
with any remaining decrease charged to income
statement.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments represent
prepayments for leasehold land held under
operating leases, which are stated at cost and
subsequently are amortised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
or when there is impairment, the impairment is
expensed in profit or loss. During the course of
the properties development, the amortisation is
included as part of the costs of the properties
under development.

2

FEESHHEBE@)

2.6

2.7

BEER(ER)ERAT =F—

REWE®)

@E i@%%%g@ﬁ%
C REETEHEY)
%ﬁ%% HeEs R e B
EREYE - ZMERERE
%Eﬁ@ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁZﬁm
EERLREFE BT ER
%16%@?@@%@1&7‘5
NEE - ZWERARER
FEE’J{H—HDDBAE 5 7%
R EEFROLRER
RWEESE - MERSTEE
FE A 2 A MR A
CEHEERNEZNEMGRR
EREERR o I E L EENY

¥FEmERIVITEEME
EU AR - (T ST AT
EREREMAR - EAH
TR B ERERME -
EALHEER
BNt HEERERELSE

HEREHEL 2 AR
BB R - AR
HIABEREZE RS - =X
W HRBE - REEEEE
X MOERERBRE
o EHIFERTYERK
AER Y o

EEER

127




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.8

2.9

Completed properties held for sale
Properties held for sale are initially measured
at the carrying amount of the property at the
date of reclassification from properties under
development. Properties remaining unsold at the
end of the year are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost comprises land and development costs
attributable to the unsold properties.

Net realisable value represents the management’s
estimated selling price based on prevailing
market conditions less costs to be incurred in
selling the property.

The Group transfers a property from investment
property to properties held for sale when and
only when there is a change in use, evidenced by
commencement of development with a view to
sale. The deemed cost of the properties held for
sale transferred from investment property is the
fair value of the property at the date of change in
use.

Properties under development
Properties under development including the
properties developed for resale comprises
development cost of properties which are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.9

2.10

Properties under development
(continued)

Properties under development are classified
under current assets when they are expected to
be realised in the Group’s normal operating cycle
and comprise development costs of properties
and the costs paid to acquire land use rights
which are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. On completion, the properties
under development are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable
variable selling expenses and the anticipated
costs to completion.

Development cost of properties comprises
construction costs, borrowing costs and
professional fees incurred during the
development period.

Construction in progress

Costs directly attributable to the construction
of property, plant and equipment including
borrowing costs during the construction period
are capitalised as the costs of the assets, which
are classified as construction in progress. On
completion, the construction in progress is
transferred to property, plant, equipment and
intangible assets at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. No depreciation is
provided on construction in progress.

2

BEER(ER)ERAT =F—

FESHBRME @)
2.9 BEFRYEm@mE)

Tﬁfﬁ,ﬁ;ﬂﬁﬂﬁqﬂ%%ﬂﬁ’\$ﬁ
EIE&EBHAER - B
EE%%?&J?&EZ$&EEJEH&ZE%
T R N 2 AN
EZ(E%ETJLAE)Z$&TQ
FEIBEEIR)
FERTYE ‘*Ez%iﬁib%f
B MERTE  BRPWE
BREEFHER R ZEXY
=,

RIFEEEEARRE
BB - S ER T E

B 5 & 7 S DA R TR IR T AR
ZK [}

MEZRKABEERME
ZREERAE - BREAARE
XEH -

210 8T

FiEMmE - KEkREZE
BEREZERA(BREZE
I 2 B AN ) 19 B AL
REERAN U DBRER
TR -RRERI®R AEIRE
R B AN R R R E B 1R
EE - WERAERTIZ(F
BT ERE - EA -

EEER

129




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.11 Intangible assets

(a)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of
subsidiaries represents the excess of the
consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net
assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups
of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill
is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are
undertaken annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the
goodwill is compared to the recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently
reversed.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.11 Intangible assets (continued)

(b)

Concession rights

The costs incurred for the construction
or upgrade work or the acquisition of the
toll road under the service concession
arrangements of the Group with relevant
local governments are accounted for an
intangible asset if the Group receives a
right to charge users of the toll road.

These expenditures are amortised on an
units-of-usage basis, making reference
to the proportion of actual traffic volume
achieved for a particular period over the
total projected traffic volume throughout
the periods within which the Group is
granted the rights to operate the toll
road. The total projected volume of the
respective concession right is reviewed
regularly with reference to both internal
and external sources of information and
appropriate adjustments are made should
there be a material change.

Land use rights acquired in conjunction
with the service concession arrangement
which the Group has no discretion or
latitude to deploy for other services other
than the use in the service concession are
treated as intangible assets.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2
policies (continued)
2.11 Intangible assets (continued)

(c)  Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired in a
business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Other
intangible assets have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment and amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives of five
years.

2.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets which are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

2.13 Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(a)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held
for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are classified as held
for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more
than twelve months after the balance
sheet date. These are classified as non-
current assets. The Group’s loans and
receivables comprise “trade and other
receivables”, “cash and cash equivalents”
and “restricted cash” in the balance sheet.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2
policies (continued)
2.13 Financial assets (continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of the investment within twelve
months of the balance sheet date.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in profit or
loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value of the “financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” category are presented in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss
when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2
policies (continued)
2.13 Financial assets (continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and classified
as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Changes
in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available for sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included
in profit or loss as other income or other and
general expenses.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in profit or loss as part of other income. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss as part of other
income which the Group's right to receive
payments is established.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company
or the counterparty.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.13

2.14

Financial assets (continued)

For the purposes of assessing the fair value
of unlisted securities, the Group established
fair value by using valuation techniques.
These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments
that are substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analysis and option pricing models, making
maximum use of market inputs and relying as little
as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. In the case of equity securities
classified as available for sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered as an indicator that
the securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss —
is removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss. Impairment losses recognised in profit
or loss on equity instruments are not reversed
through profit or loss.

Derivative financial instrument
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value
at each balance sheet date. The change in the fair
value is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.15

2.16

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A
provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms
of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation,
and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the trade receivable
is impaired. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest
rate. The amount of the provision is recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against other
expenses in profit or loss. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to
other income in profit or loss.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.17

2.18

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan
to the extent that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

Borrowing costs (continued)

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of
any qualifying asset are capitalised during the
period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. Other
borrowing costs are expensed.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.22

2.23

Financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liability at fair value through profit or
loss is financial liability held for trading. A financial
liability is classified in this category as designated
by the Group upon initial recognition.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the “financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss” category are presented in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are derecognised from the consolidated
balance sheet when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability at fair value through profit
or loss that has been extinguished or transferred
to another party and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss as other income.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
and joint ventures operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2
policies (continued)
2.23 Current and deferred income tax

(continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax
(continued)
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

2.24 Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date. Employee entitlements
to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(b)  Defined contribution plans
The Group uses a mandatory provident
fund scheme (“MPF”) and employee
pension schemes established by municipal
government in the People’'s Republic of
China (“PRC") for the eligible employees in
Hong Kong and the PRC respectively.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.24 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

Defined contribution plans (continued)
The Group’s and the employees’
contributions to the MPF comply with
the related statutory requirements. The
Group has no further payments obligations
once the contributions have been paid.
The Group’s contributions to the MPF
are expensed as incurred and are not
reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave MPF prior
to vesting fully in the contributions.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is
available. The assets of MPF are held
separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

The Group’s contribution to the employee
pension schemes in the PRC is at a
percentage in compliance with the
requirements of respective municipal
governments.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group
before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits at the earlier of
the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits; and (b) when the entity
recognises costs for a restructuring that is
within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves
the payment of termination benefits. In
the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than
twelve months after the balance sheet date
are discounted to their present value.
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2

Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
2.24 Employee benefits (continued)
(d)  Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled,
share-based compensation plan in
which the entity receives services from
employees as consideration for equity
instruments of the Group. The fair value
of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options
is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted,
including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’'s share
price), excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over
a specified time period) and including the
impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees

to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to become
exercisable. At each balance sheet date,
the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to
become exercisable based on the non-
marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision of original estimates, if any,
in profit or loss, and a corresponding
adjustment to equity over the remaining

vesting period.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2
policies (continued)
2.24 Employee benefits (continued)

(d)  Share-based compensation
(continued)
In addition, in some circumstances
employees may provide services in

(d) SAURGEREM (&)

AN - R LR
T RBEAREERH

advance of the grant date and therefore HEZ AR AR
the grant date fair value is estimated for i gu == 1= RN
the purposes of recognising the expense B 3L 73R AR 75 7 46 HA
during the period between service HEERH BB ZHER
commencement period and grant date. S EHEET -

When the options are exercised, the KANRREAREIET

Company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly

a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Where the Group expects a provision
to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset but only when the reimbursement
is virtually certain.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.25

2.26

Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods, properties and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown
net of business tax and after eliminating sales
within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and specific criteria have been met
for each of the Group's activities as described
below. The amount of revenue is not considered
to be reliably measurable until all contingencies
relating to the sale have been resolved. The
Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.26 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Revenues from infrastructure and
renewable energy are generated from
electricity supply and the toll road. They
are recognised based on the following:

(a) Revenue from renewable energy
is recognised based on power
dispatched during commercial
operation. Commercial operation
starts when obtaining a Power
Purchase Agreement, safety
certificate from the State Electricity
Regulatory Commission (“SERC”)
or Provincial Grid Authority,
and 240 hours commissioning.
Revenue attributable to the sales
of electricity generated during
construction and testing period
is not included in the electricity
sales revenue, but is offset against
the cost of property, plant and
equipment.

(b) Revenue arising from toll road
is recognised when services are
rendered.

Rental income from investment properties
is recognised in the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the terms of the
respective leases.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.26 Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Revenue from sales of properties is
recognised when the risks and rewards
of the properties are passed to the
purchasers. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the
date of revenue recognition are included
under current liabilities.

Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

Property management fee income
is recognised when the services are
rendered.

2.27 Leases

(a)

Finance leases (leasee)

Leases that substantially transfer to
the Group all the risks and rewards
of ownership of assets are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve
a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are
included in liabilities. The finance charges
are charged to the income statement
over the lease periods so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each
period.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.27

2.28

2.29

Leases (continued)

(b)  Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of
the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present
obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but
is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that the
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved.
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3

Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s major
financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, amounts due from an associate
and a joint venture, restricted cash, cash and
cash equivalents, derivative financial instrument,
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, available-for-sale financial assets, trade and
other payables, bank loans and loans from non-
controlling shareholders. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes.

It is the policy of the Group not to enter into
derivative transactions for speculative purposes.
The derivatives held are not for speculative
purpose and cannot be traded in the market.
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HX¥EREE@m
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 E¥EREZE@E)

The Company’s Board of Directors focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Board of Directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in the
Mainland China. Entities within
the Group are exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and
monetary assets and liabilities that
are denominated in a currency
that is not the entities’ functional
currency.

The Group currently does not
have any foreign currency
hedging activities. However, the
management of the Group monitors
the foreign exchange exposure
closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

If Renminbi had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the Hong
Kong dollars and US dollars as at
31 December 2017 with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s
profit before income tax would have
been HK$23.6 million higher/lower
(2016: HKS5.8 million).
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3

Financial risk management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

3.1

(a)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises
from bank borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk
due to fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate. The Group’s
results and operating cash flows
are substantially dependent of
changes in market interest rates.

The Group does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge
its exposure to interest rate
risk. However, management will
consider hedging significant
interest rate exposures should the
need arise.

As at 31 December 2017, if
the interest rate had increased/
decreased 100 basis points with all
other variables held constant, the
Group’s profit before income tax
would have decreased/increased
by HK$6.5 million (2016: HKS5.3
million).

152 HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017

3

B Rk E I ()
3.1 B¥EKEEZE@E)
(a) THBER(E)
(i) FEE
AEBE 2 FERE
RN IRITE

Ko ARIRITH
BRERE) - R
FERNERFRZ
fERERAEE
AHERERE
FEER - T
GRS I EIRIS S
Bz REREE
BeREAEX

=4
4

AN B3 A
ERIPTE R KE
FREmE 2 AR
R o A - E
EERNE 2R
R EKRRF
R\ o

R—ZE—+tF
+=—A=+—
B - s F & 12
ho,/ 24> 100 1@
HI o mAprEHR
@ = # 7T
g KEBEZ
Fir 15 %t A1 &
&R 1N
6,500,000 /& 7T
—T—KFE
5,300,000 &
JC) ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

3

Financial risk management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)

(iii)  Price risk
The Group has minimal exposure to
price risk during the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in its
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other receivables.

The carrying amount of restricted cash,
cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables, represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to its financial assets.

To manage the credit risk associated
with restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents, most of the deposits are
mainly placed with certain state-owned
banks in the PRC which are high-credit
quality financial institutions and banks with
high credit rankings in Hong Kong.

To manage the credit risk associated
with trade and other receivables, the
Group adopts risk control to assess
the credit quality of the customers and
debtors, taking into account their financial
positions and past experience. The Group
has monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts.
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Financial risk management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

For renewable energy business, the Group
is exposed to significant concentration
of credit risk in terms of electricity sales
as the Group’s sales of electricity were
made to state-owned provincial power
grid companies. The Group normally
does not require collateral from trade
debtors. It normally grants credit terms of
30 days to these power grid companies.
However, part of the trade receivables
due from the power grid companies relate
to government subsidy which are subject
to government allocation of the tariff
surcharge for renewable energy. Based
on past experience and industry practice,
these tariff premiums are generally paid
in 6 to 12 months from the date of the
sales recognition. Ageing analysis of the
Group's trade receivables is disclosed in
Note 27. Management makes periodic
collective assessment as well as individual
assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables based on historical payment
records, the length of the overdue period,
the financial strength of the debtors and
whether there are any disputes with the
relevant debtors.

Other than renewable energy business,
there is no concentration of credit risk with
respect to trade receivables from third
party customers as the customer bases
are widely dispersed in different sectors
and industries.
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3

Financial risk management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

In addition, the Group monitors the
exposure to credit risk in respect of
the financial assistance provided to
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
through exercising control significant
influence or joint control (where applicable)
over their financial and operating policy
decisions and reviewing their financial
positions on a regular basis.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group
is unable to meet its current obligations
when they fall due. The Group measures
and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratios regarding
the liquidity structure of the overall
assets, liabilities, loans and commitments
of the Group. The Group also maintains
a conservative level of liquid assets to
ensure the availability of sufficient cash
flows to meet any unexpected and material
cash requirements in the course of
ordinary business.

During the year, the Group complied
with all externally imposed loan covenant
requirements to which it is subject to.
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mEMBRRMET
3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HX¥EREE@m
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 B¥EAKREZEE®)
(c)  Liquidity risk (continued) (c) ABELEK(E
The table below analyses the Group’s TR AE Iééﬁﬂ;
contractual maturity for its financial BEZAE 4% H El °
liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the THREEZRZTY
table have been drawn up with reference EZEREB BT ZE—
to the undiscounted cash flows of the EHHeEBEZXR
financial liabilities based on the earliest BRI S RERR -
date on which the Group can be required to
pay.
Between  Between
Lessthan  land2  2and5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
-Ef  -ZFE ZERE EEML k]
HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS Million HKS Million  HKS Million
BE%n EEBT  EEBT  HEBT  EERT
At 31 December 2017 RZF-t&+-F=t-H
Borrowings 5 432.2 4335 21101 4039  3,379.7
Trade and other payables ERTRZ R E R 2,022.7 - - - 20227
Financial guarantee for credit FEREERERRAIKER
facilties granted (Note 38(a)) (Fi2E38(a)) 100.8 - - - 100.8
Financial guarantee for mortgage  BRETNEERR LA
facilties granted to certain IERBE R AT
property buyers (Note 37(b)) BR(EE3T0) 569.5 - - - 569.5
Amount due to a shareholder ER—2REHE 226.2 - - - 226.2
At 31 December 2016 RZF-RE+ZA=1-H
Borrowings &R 837.0 3909 1,369.7 1,097.8 3,695.4
Trade and other payables ERRZRE MR 15746 - - - 15746
Financial guarantee for credt FEREERERBIBER
facilities granted (Note 38(a)) (F££38(a)) 106.7 - - - 106.7
Financial guarantee for mortgage ~ StRETHEERR LA
facillties granted to certain IERRE R LR
property buyers (Note 37(b)) ER(HE3TI0) 335 - - - 33,5
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3

Financial risk management (continued)
3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, raise new debt
financing, issue new shares, share options and

warrants or conduct share buy-backs.

The Group monitors its capital structure by
reviewing its gearing ratio and cash flows
requirements, taking into account of its future
financial obligations and commitments for this
purpose. The Group defines gearing ratio as total
debt divided by total equity. Total debt is the
aggregate of current and non-current borrowings
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet and
total equity is also as shown in the consolidated

balance sheet.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2017 and

2016 were as follows:

3

B S B b B I ()

3.2 EXEMEE
AEBEBEAZRE AR
EAEEFECLEER 2R
7 KRB R B 3R &
AEMEZAREESIKA
= WHFRENERER
MmO EESHA ©

RRTHAEERRE K
SENERBARRIKNZ
BEe®E EEHFEHR
B BTG - BARER
R RERE ST B AR ©

AEBEZBRAERBEER
EREREGREFRERH
BARE RAKgERE
RIS EERALE - A&
BHABEEARLERERE
AR A m AR - BFF
RERFAEERBRAR
mB) MBI BB KA o
DEBETNEREERABR
SR e

RZFB—EFR-T—RF
tT-A=t—RZEBEER

LEET -
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBER BEET
Current borrowings VRS 514.2 705.6
Non-current borrowings IEMBNE R 2,508.1 2,238.8
Total borrowings EE G 3,022.3 2,944 .4
Total equity B iRRE 15,956.2 13,627.1

Gearing ratio BEEARLEE

(total debt/equity ratio) (fEF5#a%E, fERBE) 18.9% 21.6%

BRER(ERERLDR —B—tFFH
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 EW]'%H S (E)
3.3 Fair value estimation NEELET
The table below analyses financial instruments THREREEERSEATE
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The SR Z &R T EETON
different levels have been defined as follows: RRERISFREDT -
- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active — M EEREERA
markets for identical assets or liabilities ERERTS Z2HE
(level 1). (RETHE)(BLR) o
- Inputs other than quoted prices included — REBLILEFTAZHRE
within level 1 that are observable for the ANl BB (BB (E
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as B)skBE (& RE
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from WEEE)BREESK
prices) (level 2). BEMSIRAER (%
28%) o
- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not — i FE3% °] BH 22 T 35 85
based on observable market data (that is, 1 (BN FEERER P15 %
unobservable inputs) (level 3). ANEBEB) )2 BEEXEE
WAIEB (F38) o
The following table presents the Group's financial TREVWNAEFHR -_ZE—+
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair F+-_A=1+—HBEA¥E
value at 31 December 2017. HEZEREEREE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R F2R F3R an
HKS Million HKS Million HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBR BEER BEEER BERR
Assets EE
Availablefor-sale financial assets AIEHESREE - 10.0 18.0 28.0
Financial assets at fair value BRATEERRR
through profit or loss SR SREE - - - -
Total assets EELE - 10.0 18.0 28.0
Liability 8%
Financial liabilities at fair value ~ RATEFEER
through profit or loss Sz e RaE - - - -
Total liability AE4E - - - -
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table presents the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value at 31 December 2016.

3 HX¥EREE@m
3.3

DNFEMAE @
TREJNAEER T —X
FT-A=+—HRATFE
AFEZERMEENAE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F18 FUR F3R &m
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
BEBT BEAT BEAT BEAT
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets Al HELBEE - 7.2 16.8 24.0
Financial assets at fair value BAHEERRR
through profit or loss Sz S RAE 0.2 - 12,5 12.7
Total assets BEAE 0.2 7.2 29.3 36.7
Liability a8
Financial liabilities at fair value ~ RAFEEBHER
through profit or loss Iz eREE - - 290.5 290.5
Total liability AEAE - - 290.5 290.5

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1. Instruments included in level 1
comprise primarily equity investments classified
as trading securities under financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

WERTSEMEESMTA
ZRAFEDRERGEHE BT
BHIGERTE o WAL
ERBEBIZH 5@
Ra - FHRAER - MERS
FEERBESRE  BEX
FERRBRERIEREZA
FEBETZHERS - A
MG AR AR - AEB T
REMEEMAMSRES
BRIcEAB - HFETAR
FAAEIR - FHAEIRZT
AT B/ BRRAFE
ERuaRIIFceREER
TRHBEHFZBARE -

BRER(ERERLDR —B—tFFH
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3.

The valuation technique and inputs used in the fair
value measurements within Level 2 and Level 3
are as follows:

3 HX¥EREE@m

3.3

Valuation technique

fEER M

AREREEINE )
ABHEEBRTHEEERT
AZ R ETRAMEERM
B EAEGAESEMS
R F AR IKFEE RS
R AR - e B A ERM
BEERABREMSEE -
st —HIT A2 AT EMR
BLERBABE 2B
BE FHAIAgSASE2
A e

(R B EQEEPR PN ¢/
I FEAR IR AT BB T 5 BUR AT
B ABEIAgHAE3S

F2HM M EIRAFE B
18 P Z (R E B K i A SR
LN

Significant inputs
ERBWARE

Available-for-sale financial

Quoted market prices for similar

assets (Level 2) instruments
AN ESREE (F24) FETAZmE®RE

Available-for-sale financial
assets (Level 3)
AtHEeREE (F3%R)
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Level 3)
BATEEBRRIIEZERMEE
(F34%)
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (Level 3)

BEFE (W)

BEFE ()

BEATEERERIIEZERAE FHERERE
(F38)
Note: The Group has determined that the reported

net asset value represents fair value at 31
December 2017 and 2016.

160 HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017

Net asset value (Note)

Net asset value (Note)

Discounted cash flow

Observable quoted market price

ABRRMISRE
Not applicable

NEA
Not applicable

TER

Discount rate and expected
recoverable amount of
underlying project

BRIR R TR HAMR TR B 2 TR
B

FikE AR B AT 25 2 8
EFEER - L5
E=F—XF+=A
=t+—RzAFME-
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HX¥EREE@m
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AR {EMEF @

FERERELIBRE 2B AR

Additional information about fair value

measurements using significant unobservable B(E3IR)RFEATFEZ
inputs (Level 3): KEINERY -
Significant unobservable inputs Range
BEAELBEN®W AHE & [E
Financial liabilities at fair value Discount rate 10%
through profit or loss (Note) B4R =
BAFEEEBERYIEZ Expected recoverable amount Not applicable
cEBaE () of underlying project
TEHAARAIE B « AT U Bl SR EE i
Note: The valuations are performed and reported at MizE : RASE S E®RE B
each of the Group’s reporting dates to Group ETHETRAERE
management. The higher the discount rate, the BEER  -BHRERD
lower the fair value. The higher the expected = AFERAE-- B
recoverable amount of underlying project, the BB H 2 ALYk [ 5K BE
higher the fair value. Am AFERS -

There were no changes in valuation techniques
during the year.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy
levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016, there were no significant transfers of
financial assets between level 1, 2 and 3 fair value
hierarchy classifications.

BEER(ER)ERAT =F—

B 0 2 71 1 A A
@Jo

REBZBRENEREN
FEHEBE 2 BERBELER
ZE' ’ ﬁ@wui—r?\&%ﬁ $
BEER -

BE_Z—tFKE_F—X
F+-_A=+—HIFE -
NEEEREE] 2R3

ZeMEECHYBEAE
B o

EEER
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3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
The fair value of the following financial assets and
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts:

° Trade and other receivables

° Amount due from an associate, net
° Amount due from a joint venture

o Cash and cash equivalents

° Restricted cash

° Trade and other payables

o Borrowings

The following table presents the changes in level
3 instruments for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016.

3 HX¥EREE@m
3.3 Q¥ {EMF@E
ATeREERBBEZAT
BEHEHEEmMERS :

TREIEE-_FT—+
—E-RF+=-ZA=+

I M e 5 e LAt M K
JE U — Rl Bt & R SR F
#

JEl —F A & R RIFR
BehBEEED
XRFIE 2

FEA BRI E b FE - 3K

=L

F R

HFEZEIMTAED -
Financial Financial
Available- assets at liabilities at
for-sale fair value fair value
financial through through
assets  profit or loss  profit or loss Total

BEDYEE  BOVEE

THHE BERIkz BRRIKZ
SREE SREE SREE @E
HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS$ Million
BBAT BEAT BEAT HEAT
At 1 January 2017 W=Z—t%—A—-H 16.8 12,5 (290.5) (261.2)
Disposal hE - (12.7) 291.1 278.4
Net gain recognised in RERP R W 558
profit or loss - - 13.2 13.2
Net gain/(loss) recognised in -~ REETER 2/ (BE)
reserves et 1.2 0.2 (13.8) (12.4)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-A=1-H 18.0 - - 18.0
At 1 January 2016 RZZE-~¥-A—-H 17.7 13.2 (280.7) (249.8)
Disposal HE - - - -
Net unrealised loss recognised  MEZFHAZKAR
in profit or loss FRFE - - (24.9) (24.9)
Net (loss)/gain recognised in R EETFER 2 (BE)
reserves ek (0.9) 0.7) 15.1 135
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~E+=A=+-H 16.8 12,5 (290.5) (261.2)
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Critical accounting estimates and

judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a)

Valuation of investment properties/
recoverable amount of prepaid land
lease payments

The fair value of each investment property,
and the recoverable amount of prepaid land
lease payments portfolio excluding the property
development projects achieved pre-sales
stage as at 31 December 2017 and 2016, are
individually determined at each balance sheet
date by an independent valuer based on a market
value assessment. Knight Frank was engaged
to carry out the independent valuation of the
Group’s investment property and prepaid land
lease payments portfolio as at 31 December
2017 and 2016. This valuation was carried
out in accordance with the Valuation Standards
on Properties of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors which defines market value as “the
estimated amount for which a property should
exchange on the date of valuation between a
willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s-length
transaction after proper marketing wherein the
parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently
and without compulsion”.

ERERHEE R A B

AEBRBATERLEMEE
(BRHREEHAMELETRIT
ATHEBARBZEE) - TEH
T R AETE L RS

AEBEARREL G RERER - B
ZRE - ALz EEEE LA
BERANERGRER - 2N — 1@
MBREEEEMNBBEREELRS
R 2 A F R B RE T X
it o

(a) REWF ASLBEE

MA W E ez hE

EREMERFAN LA
EREA(TERER-ZF
—t+EFERZFE-RFTA

=t -HEZINREERRDH
UES DL
ZRFE REEEEHE
M AE B R IR T B 7T 14 8 B &
E o R EHAKRER-F
—t+EFERZFE-RFTA
=t RZREMENAN
THHEREEETEL
8- ZEEDREESAE
e 2 W)X G EERE
17 ° MEMEWEZE%%
[ZWERFEEREEED
SR HERES RE
RETEMNE  FEIILE
B ZBERT  BAFRA
ETRHMAIRB 2 hEt 2
'l e

BEER(ER)ERAT —B—tFFH
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4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(a)

Valuation of investment properties/
recoverable amount of prepaid land
lease payments (continued)

Knight Frank has derived the valuation of the
Group’s property portfolio by capitalising the
rental income derived from existing tenancies with
due provision for reversionary income potential
and where appropriate, by reference to market
comparable transactions. The assumptions
are based on market conditions existing at the
balance sheet date.

For the prepaid land lease payments excluding
the property development projects achieved
pre-sales stage, management determined the
recoverable amount based on the valuation report
prepared by Knight Frank. Knight Frank has valued
the investment properties under development/
recoverable amount of prepaid land lease
payments on the basis that the properties will
be developed in accordance with the information
provided from management. It is assumed that
approvals for the development scheme will be
obtained without any onerous condition which
would affect the value of investment properties
under development/recoverable amount of
prepaid land lease payments. In arriving the
opinion of value, Knight Frank has made reference
to comparable transactions in the locality and
has also taken into account the construction
costs that will be expended to complete the
development and the quality of the completed
development in the development scheme.
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4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(a)

(b)

Valuation of investment properties/
recoverable amount of prepaid land
lease payments (continued)

Management has reviewed the Knight Frank
valuation and compared it with its own
assumptions, with reference to comparable
sales transaction data where such information is
available, and has concluded that the Knight Frank
valuation of the Group’s investment property
portfolio and prepaid land lease payments is
reasonable.

If the valuation of the investment properties
had been 10% higher or lower than the value
stated on the valuation report, the fair value
adjustment for the year arising from the Group’s
investment properties would have been increased
or decreased by HKS1,177.7 million (2016:
HKS962.1 million).

Provision for properties held for sales,
properties under development and
prepaid land lease payments

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of
properties held for sales, properties under
development and prepaid land lease payments
according to their estimated net recoverable
amount based on the realisability of these
properties, taking into account of costs to
completion based on past experience and
net sales value based on prevailing market
conditions. Provision is made when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts may not be realised. The
assessment requires the use of judgement and
estimates.

4

BAREHEET R HE @)

(a)

(b)

BEER(ER)ERAT =F—

REME FANSLHEE
AT W e & 8 i 1B ()

EEECDEMHRY 2EE
¥ E2ERRE 2 RRAHE

R Eﬁi EEJE$%E’J
RBIELE - BRABRHY
HARE l?xéf%%%ﬂ/\&%ﬁ

MLt HERNEEBS
e

WREMEZHERMEE
HEMHNEESHIER
10% » RFEREBAAEREKRE
MEEEZ RN FEARRE
¥ hn skt 4 1,177,700,000
AL (ZF — R F
962,100,000/ 7T) °

MIEHERRZWE - &
BRAPYERFEMNLHEEE
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REERBEYER ] EIREE
NEETE PR EFERE - B
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4  Critical accounting estimates and 4 E ARG RHAE @)
judgements (continued)

(c) Estimated impairment of property, plant (c) %% - #BEKHE - BN

and equipment, prepaid land lease T HERXRREE QR
payments and interests in associates %ﬁZ;ﬁR{Efﬁﬁj‘
Plant and equipment are reviewed by Tﬁﬁﬁfﬂﬁﬁﬁ?’%fﬂﬁk 78
management for impairment losses whenever ,/EEE{EE,VFBEH&@ F B
events or changes in circumstances indicate that %%E%%&ﬁﬁﬁ’é ﬁ
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. ﬁf@ﬂﬁl\gﬂ,\% o E{Hﬂl@@%ﬁ%
The recoverable amount is the higher of fair ?$1ﬁ>ﬁkﬁﬁ%ﬁ2$£€%a§§i
value less costs to sell and value in use of ﬁ{%ﬁiﬂ{%ﬁZE%% ° B
the plant and equipment. Management makes figﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁa%ﬁ
judgements on whether such events or changes EX%ﬁﬁiﬂVﬁﬁ%@ﬁ ’ EETJE
in circumstances have occurred, and makes %Eﬂ”&@ﬁ%ﬁ\hﬁﬂ :
estimates in determining the recoverable amount. iﬂﬂi%iﬁ:ﬁ{lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ AR
In the situation where the value in use of plant HEI@WE%E‘E Exf%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ;
and equipment cannot be assessed due to the (EP ”ﬁ%@%?ﬁzﬁﬁ@ﬁ
uncertainties of the operation model in the ﬁ%ﬁz$ﬁ$ﬁ%§/2ﬂ”&@
future, management has assessed the respective %gﬁ ° %gﬁ?%fﬂ% 78
recoverable amount solely based on the fair value iiﬁ\%fﬁfﬁgfi;ﬁﬁw&@ S
less costs to sell. Provision is made when events GHEITRE -

or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts may not be recovered.

The Group tests whether property, plant and fisl 5 £ 17 =5 1+ X 1R 2 B 78
equipment, prepaid land lease payments and /TE'EETEEXT%EH&@ A&
interests in associates engaged in the renewable B & R IE WEIZ-12Z;’"§.’>E+E5(
energy businesses (“Renewable Energy Projects”) ERAER/ESE Y
have suffered any impairment whenever events ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ G RIE LA R
or changes in circumstances indicate that the FHERRIG ZHERF
carrying amount may not be recoverable in ZE=((BEERER]SE
accordance with the accounting policy in Note & LR EMRIE - REEE
2.12. The Group reviews certain indicators BETEATRELR - fla
of potential impairment such as operating HERE  BERHEE B
performance, actual electricity dispatched, B REAE ([ ZER
tariff of electricity, market unit price of Certified £ ]) 2 i BALBEARK
Emission Reduction (“CER”) and other general th—RmIGHRREE TEE
market conditions. REER o
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4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(c)

Estimated impairment of property, plant
and equipment, prepaid land lease
payments and interests in associates
(continued)

If an indication of impairment is identified, the
need for recognising an impairment loss is
assessed by comparing the carrying amount of
the assets, to the higher of (i) the fair value less
cost to sell, and (ii) the value-in-use of the cash-
generating units. The value-in-use of the cash-
generating units represents estimated future cash
flows from the continuous use of the assets, and
requires complex assumptions and estimates
such as future electricity dispatched, tariff of
electricity and CER and discount rates. The
discount rates used to discount the estimated
future cash flows are based on the relevant
industry sector risk premium and the gearing
ratio.

During the year, the Group has performed
impairment assessment on the Renewable Energy
Projects which have impairment indicators. The
value-in-use calculation was based on the key
assumptions, including (i) average annual tariff
increment at approximately 2.0% (2016: 2.0%)
per annum based on management’s expectation
on market development and general inflation, (ii)
projection of volume of electricity dispatched
based on the operational feasibility reports and
historical performances, and (iii) assuming the
contributions from CER is of negligible amount.
The pre-tax discount rates applied to the cash
flow projections are 11.43% - 11.84% per
annum.

4
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4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimated impairment of property, plant
and equipment, prepaid land lease
payments and interests in associates
(continued)

Based on the impairment assessment, the
recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
are higher than their respective carrying amounts.

With all other variables held constant, if there is
an average annual tariff increment at 1.0% (2016:
1.0%) throughout the operating period, the profit
before taxation would have been decreased by
HKS5.6 million (2016: HK$14.0 million). Similarly,
with all other variables held constant, if the
volume of electricity dispatched is 10.0% (2016:
10.0%) less than management expectation, the
profit before taxation would have been decreased
by HK$25.0 million (2016: HKS$31.7 million).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Mainland
China. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determined is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for potential tax exposures
based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will affect
the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.
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4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(e)

(f)

Fair value of financial assets/liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and
other financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market is determined
by using valuation techniques. The Group uses
its judgement to select a variety of methods
(including but not limited to discounted cash flow
analysis) and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each
balance sheet date.

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts
The policy for allowance for bad and doubtful
debts of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of receivables
and management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer.

Segment information

Segment information disclosed in the annual results
announcement has been prepared in a manner consistent
with the information used by the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of assessing
segment performance and allocating resources between
segments. In this regard, the Group is organised into the
following segments: Properties development (for sale or
lease upon completion of construction work), Property
investment and leasing, Renewable energy, Other
operations and Discontinued operations (Infrastructure).

4
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Segment information (continued)

The Group’'s most senior executive management
assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on operating profit after interest income and
expenses, taxation and share of profits/(losses) of
associates and a joint venture. Corporate expenses
mainly include the employee expenses of the head office,
interest income and expenses arising from the holding
companies and other administrative expenses of the
head office.

The Group’s segment assets exclude financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale
financial assets which are managed on a central basis.
These are part of the reconciliation to total balance
sheet assets. Corporate assets mainly include the
cash at bank, property, plant and equipment and other
receivables held by the head office. The assets of
each reportable segment comprise the inter-segment
receivables.

Sales between segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions. The revenue from external parties reported
to management is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consolidated income statement. Total
segment revenue also represents the Group’s revenue.

170 HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017

5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

oEER @
AEEBZSFITHE R EIRRF B
WARFY ~ #IEN K EREEE A
AIk—EAERaER,(FEE)
B RN  FFEEEDE IR
B rERATTERRERERL
BERY - HERARIEAZF B
ARBEY AR BRER 2 EMITH
EH -

AEELHEETBEETERLZ
BAFEERRRIFZERMEE
RAEHESREE - WERB )
REERBREERBZHMOH
E - PREEETZERAMEER
BZBRTRE - WE - HELRE
AR E AU - £ 2HmDELZ
BEBRED BHEZ UK -

DEEHERERNFR ST EA L
MHREERETT - MEEBHRE KA
SINREF 2 Wam R RG SRR
P& Bz AGE - 2Bl
BB RAREE 2 W -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR
5 Segment information (continued) 5 SEPER @)
The segment information for the reportable segments HE - E—+EFER_ZE—RFt+=
for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 is as A=+— E|JJ:¢J;T WAEZ D
follows: HERMT ¢
Continuing operations
BEGERE
Properties development
VT
Shanghai Property Total  Discontinued Total
and investment  Renewable Other ~ continuing ~~ operations  reportable
Thejiang  Shenyang Tianjin ~~ Jiangmen ~ and leasing energy  operations  operations (Infrastructure]*  segments
BAL
LER hERe GESe  femg PES |
i - by i REE  BEEE  AMER  HREE (Bg)* 948
HKS Milion ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Millon
BEBT  HERn  BEEr  FEBR  mEMT  REMr  FEMn BEMT BEMm EEMR
Year ended BECE-tE127
31 December 2017 St-ALER
Revenue from external customers KEAREF 24 58 614.0 5422 30 2028 1313 - 178l -1l
Inter-segment revenue Ak - - - - - - - - -
Total revenue lie=5 58 614.0 5422 0 2028 131.3 -1l - Ll
Operating profit Hy] 1,043.7 1469 1529 122 1764 312 - 15693 - 15693
Finance income BHERA 23 30 37 11 30 25 - 156 - 156
Finance costs HERA - (0.) - (2.2) (5.0} 326) - 39.9) - (399)
Share of profts less losses B EAT
of associates ﬂ HER - - - - 157 814 - 9.1 - 9.1
Share ofloss o ajoint venture G- RERTER [47.8) - - - - - - (47.8) - (47.8)
Net gain on isposal of HEEM&“%Z
discontinued operations s - - - - - - - - -
Profit before income tax ~~ Fr&HiAE) 998.2 1498 156.6 11 190.1 885 - 15943 - 15943
Income tax expense iR (3025) (128) 69.8) [21.0 38.3) (1L]) - (461.5) - (461.5)
Profit{loss) for the year ~ KEERR/ (§8) 695.7 1370 868 15.9) 151.8 14 - 1138 - 1138
Depreciation e - - (0.) - (12) 67.0) - (68.3) - (68.3)
Amortisation 5 - - (19.4) - (L3 (0.7) - 21.4) - (21.4)
Farvdie adustmentson~~ REDEATERE
nvestment properties 1,075.2 - - - 348 - - 1,110.0 - 1,110.0
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e B EmRME
5 Segment information (continued) 5 2HER @
Continuing operations
REEEE
Properties development
I
Shanghai Property Total ~ Discontinued Total
and ivestment — Renewable Otter — continuing ~~operations~~ reportable
Igjang ~ Shenyang Tenjn ~— Jingmen ~ and leasing energy  operations  operatons  (ifrestructure)®  segments
BAE
LAk VES BT mERR [E:
il 2 K il RRE  BEMR  HbER  REEE (BR)  APuE
HKSMiion RS Milion — HKSMiion  HKSMiion — HKSMilion  HKSMilion  HKSMilion — HASMilion  HKSMilon  HKS Milion
EEfn  RERT  BERT  BEET  REAT  EBEm  ABAT  BERT  REET  BEET
Year ended BEZE-AE

31 December 2016 TZA=T-ALEE
Revenue from extemal RENFER s

customers 6.2 4013 581.6 3189 166.2 1310 - 1,605.2 U8 1,640.0
Intr-segment revenue DL - - - - 03 - 42 45 - 45
Total revenue BEEE 6.2 401.3 5816 3189 166.5 1310 42 1,609.7 U8 1,445
Operating profit mek 5184 9%.2 1242 6.5 1678 259 125 10115 113 10228
Finance income HERA 21 17 14 06 23 36 04 121 01 122
Finance costs HERE - (.0) (06 (10 (Y] (319 - [447) (194) (64.3)
Share of profts ess losses ~ ElEREDE

of associates EHlHES - - - - 121 8.1 - %.2 - %.2
Share of proft of a ot ventwre  EE-BAZAE

& 820 - - - - - - 820 - 820
Net gain on isposalof HERRHEEEEY

discontinued operations s - - - - - - - - 1192 1192
Profit hefore income tax SR AR 062.5 929 1250 6.1 176.0 837 129 1,159.1 1110 12101
Income tax expense FERT (145.) (384) (183 (81 (306.9) (36) (33) (589.3) - (589.3)
Profit{loss) for the year ~ AEERR/ (58) 5168 545 1.7 2.0) (1309) 7l 96 569.8 1110 680.8
Depreciation e 02 - 01 - 09 (69.3) 0.1 (706) - (106)
Amortisaton B - - (19.7) - 09 0.7 - (213 (84) (29.7)
Farvae adustmentson~—~~ REMEATERE

investment properties 5924 - - - 148 - - 607.2 - 607.2
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26 May 2016. The result of the infrastructure business
from 1 January 2016 to 26 May 2016 was classified as
discontinued operations accordingly.

e B EmRME
5  Segment information (continued) 5 SEER@m
Continuing operations
EREEY
Properties development
NEER

Shanghai Property Total
and investment ~ Renewable Other  reportable
Thejiang  Shenyang Tianjin ~ Jiangmen and leasing energy  operations  segments
LiER NERE CES}
il 25 X i LEE  BARER  HpEE  AN4R
HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS Million
BE%nT BE®n  AERnT  EEWn  FEEET  BERn  FEEET  BEER

As at 31 December 2017  W=Z-t&

tZB=1-A

Total assets BELE 46529 14476 26509 64 121730 23290 29 237027

Total assets include: AELEEE:
Interests in associates NEERA R - - - - 486.2 764.8 - 1,510
Iterestin ajointventwe ~~ R—HAEAAZER 5874 - - - 11929 - - 17803
Total liabiities BREAE 2,088.1 8336  1626.1 2051 37601 126.0 - 92390

Bsat 31 December 2016 R=F-»%

tZA=t-H

Total assets BELE 92008 18381 25879 6763 44656 19643 26 20,7416

Total assets include: HEEERE:
Interests i associates WWM“TZ%ﬁ - - - - 4706 7009 - 11805
Interest najoit ventre ~ RA-HAERREZER 19258 - - - - - - 1958
Total liabiiies BELE 3362 13122 18612 4381 685.5 h438 - 80
The Group’s infrastructure business was disposed on AEBEZEBR _ZT—XER

A+ AHE - EBEKE_-F
—RNF-A-AEBRE-_T— X Fh
AZ+ BLHBsE$ERMmDE

RERIEREER -

BEER(ER)ERAT =F—

EEER
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e ISR AR

5 Segment information (continued) 5 o IBE R @)
A reconciliation of profit for the year of reportable A 2RO 7 ARFEE ST BEHANEFH
segments to profit for the year of the Group is provided ZAREESMNEEREWT
as follows:
2017 2016
—ZE—tHF —E—RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEET AEBT
Profit for the year of reportable Al 23D A FE m F
segments 1,132.8 680.8
Unallocated amounts: ROBSH
Corporate expenses, net ERTFRE (68.6) (91.3)
Gain on disposal of a financial asset HEBRATFEEEZRX
at fair value through profit or loss HIBR 2 & B & B W 23.9 =
Gain on settlement of a financial HEIRATEERERRK
liability at fair value through PRz 2Rt e Bl
profit or loss 131.2 -
Write-back of provision of other Ho b A SR B s
payables 25.1 -
Profit for the year of the Group & B AR R Tl 1,244.4 589.5
Reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to total ARy EEREEMBEHENT

assets as follows:

2017 2016

—E—+F —T R

HKS$ Million HKS Million

BEAT BEBTT

Total segment assets DEREELREE 23,702.7 20,741.6

Head office assets REEEE 1,152.2 905.2

Intra group elimination & B N B (1,607.2) (1,745.9)

Available-for-sale financial assets AIEHESREE 28.0 24.0
Financial assets at fair value BAFEEBERRIEZ

through profit or loss CREE - 12.7
Total assets per consolidated EBEABRMINEE

balance sheet FEk) 23,275.7 19,937.6
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e ISR AR

5  Segment information (continued) 5 SEER@
Reportable segments’ liabilities are reconciled to total NERoHaEHaERBEEND
liabilities as follows: T
2017 2016
—B—tF —E—RF
HK$ Million HKS Million
BEET BEAT
Total segment liabilities DEEERTE 9,239.0 8,237.0
Head office liabilities BREERAE 139.5 568.7
Intra group elimination SEAEL LI (2,059.0) (2,495.2)
Total liabilities per consolidated EBEEABERMINEE
balance sheet FEEE 7,319.5 6,310.5

Non-current assets other than available-for-sale financial
assets are mainly located in the Mainland China.

Analysis of revenue by category:

AHEEEREENINZIFRBDE
EE%MEAEP B o

]

BRI D 2 WENT

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HKS Million HKS Million
BEBT BEAT

Sales proceeds from properties LEEHER®R 2 MEFRS
held for sale KIE 1,455.0 1,308.0

Rental income from investment "EYERS WA

properties 202.8 166.2
Renewable energy HARIR 131.3 131.0
1,789.1 1,605.2

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016,
revenue from external customers is solely attributable
to the China market and there is no revenue derived
from a single external customer exceeding 10% of total
revenue.

BE_ZT—tFR-_FT—RF1+=
A=+—BILHE QI\E‘?\%:)E'ZJ%Z
SEREHEMS  KRAEREE—
SR EP 2B EBBREAR L
10% °

BEER(ER)ERAT —B—tFFH
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e ISR AR

6  Other income 6 HwA
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HKS Million HKS Million
HEBT BEBTT
Property management fee income YEEREEUWA 22.9 27.8
Rental income generated from REEHERBZMES
properties held for sale AU A 2.1 7.7
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - WRRBHEZ
plant and equipment — net Was — F5E 1.0 1.0
Write-back of provision of trade FE A BR 5% Be H At FE A 53X
and other payables BEED 32.0 11.5
Costs reversal on completed Bk TREEA N KA
construction contracts - 11.8
Fair value loss on financial assets BAFEEBRRIEZ
and financial liabilities at fair value TREENSBBELTF
through profit or loss — net BEHE— 358 (0.1) (9.6)
Gain on settlement of a financial EERA T EEERKS R
liability at fair value through 2o A Bk
profit or loss 131.2 -
Gain on disposal of a financial asset H&EZRAFEEIBRERT
at fair value through profit or loss PIBR 2 & BB E W e 23.9 =
Others HAb 22.6 7.2
235.6 57.4
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Discontinued operations

On 26 May 2016, the Company as the Vendor's
guarantor and Faithful Investments Limited (the
“Vendor”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
(the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with an independent
third party, Cornerstone Holdings Limited (the
“Purchaser”), pursuant to which the Vendor conditionally
agreed to sell and the Purchaser conditionally agreed to
purchase (i) the entire issued share capital of HKC Guilin

Expressway Limited (the “Target Company”), a wholly-

owned subsidiary of the Vendor and (ii) the shareholder’s
loan owed by the Target Company to the Vendor (the
“Disposal”) at a total consideration of RMB332,110,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$395,211,000). The
Disposal was completed simultaneously with the signing
of the Sale and Purchase Agreement on 26 May 2016.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

DARIEREETR
RZZE—XRFRA=-F+/,H K
RAEI(ERBREFERA) AR
A 2 [ # & & K 8 & 7 Faithful
Investments Limited ([ 277 |) £255
VEZHFEEZEBRBERAR(NE
TDEIvEEw=(IEEWZ])
Bl EFBKHHRAEEERE
HEKRFHREEE( |)EHZ£§
I‘ﬁ% AABEIEMSRAKE

AEI(TEEAR]) 2B 31T
Hx$&(ll)ﬁff’“7ﬁﬁﬁl EFZHX
RER(NHESHE] BREAR
AR#332,110,0007T (HHE A4
395,211,000 L) - HEFIELD
R_E—RFRA-ZTHEIE
B E R T o
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e ISR AR

7 Discontinued operations (continued) 7 CHRIEKEEK @
Financial information relating to HKC Guilin Expressway EBEEZEMEEABER TR
Limited for the period to the date of disposal is set out AEEEZEHEHREBZHEER
below. The income statement and statement of cash HyWT - BERLBETERE
flow distinguish discontinued operations from continuing PRI ERESEREEE R
operations. o e

BEaRKREREER

Income statement and cash flow information

2016

T —REF

HKS Million

BEBTT

Revenue g 34.8

Expenses > (43.0)

Net gain on disposal of discontinued operations & B4 |FA& & 27 2 F iz 119.2
Profit before income tax from discontinued B AR EEFS 2 RS B AT s £l

operations 111.0

Income tax FriSHi -

Profit from discontinued operations BRI ER 2 RF 111.0
Profit from discontinued operations ATREEREERIEEEER 2

attributable to: A

— Owners of the Company A VNEIE 2PN 111.0

The analysis of the cash flows of ERIREXERZEEREDN
discontinued operations is as follows: W

Net cash from operating activities LTSGR S TR 34.6

Net cash from investing activities WEEEMBHESFE -

Net cash used in financing activities BB BT AE 3 (61.7)

Net cash flows e meE 558 (27.1)
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Operating profit

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

8 &KgnA

Operating profit was arrived at after charging the RESERI2 R T5|EE -
following items:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BESBT BEBT
Employee benefit expenses (Note 10) {& E&#BIsz (Ff5E10) (98.1) (105.4)
Amortisation of prepaid land lease FEA £ Hb 7R & TR 6
payments (Note 16) (Fiz£16) (21.3) (21.4)
Depreciation of property, plant and %% - #2E L REITE
equipment (Note 17) (B5E17) (71.2) (73.5)
Cost of inventories FERA (2.1) (1.9)
Cost of properties sold B EWEKA (1,029.9) (978.8)
Direct operating expenses arising from ] BREXE & U A 2 % & W3
investment properties that generate E4Z BEL&EHT
rental income (7.6) (5.6)
Auditor’s remuneration Z RN &
- Audit services — ZHR T (4.7) (4.7)
- Non-audit services — e B R TS (1.5) (1.2)
Operating lease payments CEAEFIE (3.1) (6.1)
Net exchange loss b 5 S8 55 (18.8) (25.4)
Fair value loss on financial assets BAFEEEBRRIEZ
and financial liabilities at fair value TREERERABERT
through profit or loss — net BEE5E — 558 (0.1) (9.6)

BEER(ER)ERAT —B—tFFH
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e ISR AR

9 Finance income and costs

9 MHBBARBERE

2017 2016
—E— —T—RF
HKS Million HKS Million
HEBT BEBTT
Finance costs: BhE A
Interest expenses on bank IRITIEFA B
borrowings (137.5) (149.6)
Interest expenses on amount B —BRERIEZ
due to a shareholder FBHZ (6.2) =
Interest expenses on other loans HEMERMNEMAZ (14.9) (16.2)
(158.6) (165.8)
Less: amounts capitalised W BER bz 5 117.9 117.3
________________________________________________________________________________ (40.7)  (48.5)
Finance income: BRI
Interest income on bank deposits IRITE T B UA 24.2 22.3
Interest income on shareholder BEF—HEERARZRE
loan to a joint venture BRF WA 7.9 10.7
_________________________________________________________________________________ 321 330
Finance costs — net BLE R AN — 558 (8.6) (15.5)

Note: The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount B

of finance costs to be capitalised is the weighted
average interest rate applicable to the Group’s general
borrowings during the year, in this case 3.66% (2016:

3.67%) per annum.
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e ISR AR

10 Employee benefit expenses

10 BERAFEX

2017 2016

—E— —T—RF

HKS Million HKS Million

HEBT BEBTT

Wages, salaries and other benefits ITE - FHekHEMmEF (95.2) (102.5)
Pension costs — defined contribution EREHKA — FEEE RS

plan (Note) G (3.0) (3.0

Write back of unused annual leave KRR FREE 0.1 0.1

Charged to income statement, net BEEEERINBRFEE (98.1) (105.4)

Note:

The Group uses the MPF scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HKS$30,000 (HKS$25,000 prior to 1 June 2014). Contributions
to the scheme vest immediately. The Group’s contribution to
the employee pension schemes in the PRC is at a percentage
in compliance with the requirements of respective municipal
governments.

BEE -

AEBERBEB RGBS G
FIZMERYL —HBEERE - /R
BREEERBRGIZEZEEMK - 2
M RHBE L ERATEZERE
HPCRAKREFE - RIBBRESE
BENEREEHAREREBMABEA
Z5%MEr SR - (B8 A 218k
Y ATLA30,000/8 T (= —MFRA—
B A1 /325,000 7T) & LR - 5T 814
FERNEHENEE - AREEHE
B BIRIRE 78l 2 HR IR & 10 R
MERATRE Z B D HIEL ©
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mEMBRRMET

11 Five highest paid individuals 11 EEME&ES AT
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest FR - AEERREZESHFALTEE
in the Group for the year include four (2016: four) MBE(ZF—ARF : MB)EE -

directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis 52 Me B RINEAL 252 TR

BRe FRBRTN—R(ZFT—XF:

presented on Note 41. The emoluments payable to the .
_ | e TR -
remaining one (2016: one) individuals during the year are B EBIAL 2 BB T
as follows:
2017 2016
—E— —T—RF
HKS Million HKS Million
BEEBT BEAT
Salary and other benefits o kEAET 2.5 2.3
Discretionary bonus ) IEIEAL 0.8 0.8
3.3 3.1
The emoluments fell within the following bands: leZ@maotumT

No of individuals

AE
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
Emoluments band (in HK dollar) AR A (BT
HKS$3,000,001 - HKS$3,500,000 3,000,001/% 70—
3,500,000/% 7T 1 1
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e ISR AR

12

Income tax expense 12 mEH%EH
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made AR ARERREE ST —+F R
as the Group has no assessable profit for the years E—XRNFE+-_A=1+—BILEEL
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. Mainland China MmERTORET - I EREFEFE
income tax includes corporate income tax which has RIELBE - PN ER (8
been provided on the estimated assessable profits HELEMER) LB E D ALK
of subsidiaries operating in the Mainland China at LB AT Z G ERBS A - iR
25% (2016: 25%). Withholding tax was provided 25%( —Z—RF : 25%) 2 =1k
for undistributed profits of certain subsidiaries and H B - TEFIFIRRE T E M E
associates in the PRC at a rate of 5% or 10% (2016: RAERBERR ZRD K EA « &
10%). 5%z 10%(=F—7~F : 10%) 2
A U A -
Mainland China land appreciation tax is provided at MR P b+ IR (B R mE e T E IR
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 40% (2016: NF30%E40%(—ZE—7<F : 30%
30% to 40%) on the appreciation of land value, being TA0%) 7 BET RBE - T
the proceeds of sale of properties less deductible BRI EWEMEBHRIERET I
expenditures (including costs of land use rights and HX (BT AR AR E
property development expenditures). TRAXL) -
During 2016, a wholly owned PRC subsidiary has —E-RNERN —BE2EDREHM
revised its corporate income tax calculation basis as BARIREMHRAEHE 2 EZRKiE
requested by the local tax authority. As a result, current HAMEFREMAFEELEEL B
income tax of HK$3.5 million and deferred tax expenses Al o Bt - BRRERBHAE
of HK$266.9 million was recognised in the income #3,500,0007% 7T & i 1 74 78 5 X2
statement. 266,900,000/ 7T
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BEAT
Current income tax BNHAFT 15 %50
Mainland China income tax R B A H TS B (65.4) (100.0)
Mainland China land appreciation tax A B ;A3 £ 3 32 {E ¢ (121.7) (75.3)
______________________________________________________________________ (187.1)  (175.3)
Deferred income tax (Note 34) EFEFTIS B (Fi5E34)
_Charged to the income statement W\l (283.4) 2
(470.5) (599.6)

BRER(ERERLDR —B—tFFH
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e ISR AR

12

Income tax expense (continued)

Note: The share of income tax expense of associates
amounting to HK$27.6 million (2016: HK$25.9 million)
and the share of income tax expense of a joint venture
amounting to HKS11.8 million (2016: HK$28.8 million)
are included in the Group’s share of profits less losses
of associates and share of (loss)/profit of a joint venture
respectively.

The tax of the Group’s profit before income tax from
continuing operations differs from the theoretical amount
that would arise using the weighted average tax rate
applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as
follows:

12

FEH X

M ML AR RERE T
£27,600,000% 0 (ZZF— X
1 25,900,000 7T ) K FE1R
—MABATTERTEA
11,800,000 7T, ( = Z — A 4F -
28,800,000 7T) * 5 BlIE A
£ [0 > AT A 0 B FRUES 18
BREE—RIA% AT (ER),/ %
Fl o

AEBRAFELCLEEB ZATEH
Al A 2 B8 - B A N A
EMBARRAHEERHZIBRE
IH - ZFBWT

2017 2016
—E—+F —T—RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBTT
Profit before income tax from REFELEER BT
continuing operations and Bt Al DA N B B 2 R )
share of results of associates F—RE&E RS
and a joint venture 1,665.6 897.9
Tax charge calculated at the domestic ZZEBRIEIZR A 2 %5
rates applicable to profits in FriEfAE i RiTE 2
the respective countries TRIEMER (413.3) (220.8)
Expenses not deductible for A HF 2 B R
taxation purposes (26.5) (72.9)
Income not subject to tax BERBUBA 75.7 59.5
Tax losses not recognised RIERZ FRIAEE - (18.8)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised {5 Jc il R e sR 2 i TB B 48
tax losses 28.0 5.3
Withholding tax on dividends from DY EYNCIDNE: N Vi v
subsidiaries and associates iR B 2 I (10.6) (7.8)
Mainland China land appreciation tax  Ff B P93 + ih SR (E i (121.7) (75.3)
Deferred tax charged on undistributed 7 Bt F1B 2 3R E 75 8 40 B
profits (2.1) (1.9)
Re-measurement of deferred BT ERLERER
income tax - (266.9)
Tax expense MBS (470.5) (599.6)

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 24.8%
(2016: 24.6%).
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mEMBRRMET
13 Earnings per share 13 SREF
(a) Basic (a) EX
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing SRR E R F TR B AN 7]
the profit attributable to equity holders of the oA ANELRFBRER
Company by the weighted average number of DBETE B ZMNEFESE
ordinary shares in issue during the year. =+E o
2017 2016
—E—+F NS
Profit from continuing operations $ AR ARFE
attributable to equity holders of B S ES E(R
the Company (HKS Million) (EF%/%E) 898.8 275.3
Profit from discontinued operations AR G#E=mIFHARE
attributable to equity holders of WA TSR
the Company (HKS Million) FM(EBBT) - 111.0
Profit attributable to equity holders ZKA Al s+ A B
of the Company (HKS Million) wmr (B 8B IT) 898.8 386.3
Weighted average number of B BT E @R 2 T
ordinary shares in issue (Million) HE(EE) 528.8 528.8
Basic earnings per share FRERZEF
(HK cents per share) (&AL
From continuing operations REFELEER 170.0 52.0
From discontinued operations REBRIEEER - 21.0
170.0 73.0
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13 Earnings per share (continued)
(b) Diluted
Diluted earnings per share is calculated
by adjusting the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary

(b)

13 8REZF @

Bg
BREERN A BHER
1T & A 2 D5 81
ARRPTA #E B R S B
YEERBMEASE -

shares.
2017 2016
—E—+F NS
Profit from continuing operations AR F#EzEEA AREE
attributable to equity holders of 4 SE TS JE (s K
the Company (HKS Million) (BEBT) 898.8 275.3
Effect of assumed conversion of R HIRAHE AR
convertible notes issued by BT 2 MR R
a subsidiary (HKS Million) T2 (BBAT) - (1.1)
Profit from continuing operations i &% # 5 2 F| FT B
used to determine diluted FELEE BT
earnings per share (HKS Million) (B&%BT) 898.8 274.2
Profit from discontinued operations ZN2 Bl#EzHA AJENL
attributable to equity holders of B 555 0m T
the Company (HKS Million) (BEBIT) - 111.0
Profit attributable to equity holders KA Fl#EzEHA A&
of the Company (HKS Million) mA(B&EBT) 898.8 385.2
Weighted average number of STESREERT
ordinary shares for calculation of — E 3@ IR F 15
diluted earnings per share (Million) (B&) 528.8 528.8
Diluted earnings per share FREERT
(HK cents per share) (=B
From continuing operations REFELEER 170.0 51.8
From discontinued operations REBRIEGEER - 21.0
170.0 72.8

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2017 did not assume the conversion of
convertible notes and warrants of the subsidiaries
during the year since the conversion would have
an anti-dilutive effect.

The warrants of the subsidiary were issued in
May 2017. Therefore, these instruments have no
effect on the calculation of diluted earnings per
share in 2016.
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14 Dividends 14 RE
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
HEBT BEBTT
Interim dividend paid, of HK6 cents BEJERFHIRE - &%
(2016: Nil) per ordinary share TEAReEL
(ZE—RF: &) 31.7 =
Final dividend proposed, of HK11  #ORAHIRRE « &%
cents (2016: HK8 cents) per HRARL 1L
ordinary share (ZZF—7"%F : 8#1l) 58.2 42.3

On 19 March 2018, a final dividend of HK11 cents per
ordinary share payable in cash in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2017 is proposed by the Board
and the amounts are not accounted for until they are
approved by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. As the proposed final
dividend is declared after the balance sheet date, such
dividend is not recognised as liability as at 31 December
2017.

On 23 August 2017, the Board has declared an interim
dividend of HK6 cents per ordinary share payable in
cash, total of HK$31.7 million was paid in October 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, a final dividend
of HK8 cents per ordinary share payable in cash, total of
HKS42.3 million was paid in June 2017.

R-ZZE-NFE=A+NH EZg
ERkEEHE_ZT—+tF+-A
=+t BLEFEZREBE - 8k
ERERORERSIVEN - FEK
RN BT Z AR BIRERBFEX
Ak o ANBRE 2 KRERR
EEEEBERBREIR  #H5
F_T—tFE+_A=1t—HNHA

{8 °

RZE—+FNA-+=H E=F
gERPHEE  SRETERIK
EIR2 68 - £5731,700,0007%
T ERZE—+E+AXN

HE_T—R"F+-A=+—HL
FE  gRTBERKER288
2 RAEARE B A $£42,300,0007% 7T
ER=ZZE—+tF A -
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15 Investment properties 15 ®BEWYE
2017 2016
2 —EB—REF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEABT BEAT
At 1 January n—HA—H 9,141.5 8,229.7
Currency translation differences fEH e =58 818.9 (541.8)
Additions NE 1,182.6 665.0
Transfer from properties held for ~ EB{EEERBE 2 ME
sale - 181.4
Transfer to property, plant and BEEYIR - B RE
equipment (11.8) -
Transfer from property, plant and B E¥% « EE LR
equipment 23.7 -
Transfer to prepaid land lease BEEMNLHAER
payments (36.2) -
Cost adjustment AN SR (0.5) -
Fair value adjustments, net N EAEFERE 1,162.3 607.2
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 12,280.5 9,141.5
Notes: BsE -
(a) At 31 December 2017, investment properties (a) RZEB—+F+-_A=1+—
in Mainland China of HK$9,664.4 million (2016: ':P.Wiﬂlfﬁfﬁ9 664,400, 000,%
HKS$7,966.9 million) were pledged as securities for the TT(ZE—RF : 7, 966 900 000
Group's borrowings (Note 32). BIT) ZIREME Ef’ﬁ?%’rzl-‘%
B FTEER < HR(FEE32) -
(b) The Group’s interests in investment properties at their (b) AEBERNEEMHE I EZZE
carrying values and the lease terms are analysed as REERERAS W -
follows:
2017 2016
—e—t% =T
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBET BEBTT
In Mainland China, held on: A BEARE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years NTI0E50F 2 HE 12,052.8 8,968.6
Leases less than 10 years PRIOFEZHE 151.6 172.9
In Hong Kong, held on: REBFE :
Leases of between 10 to 50 years NF10E50F 2 & 76.1 =
12,280.5 9,141.5
() Fair value hierarchy (c) NEEEZER
An independent valuation of the Group’s investment NEFBGEWENBIEHEL
properties was performed by the valuer, Knight Frank ERHERMBTEET  UET
to determine the fair value of the investment properties WEMEN_ZE—F+FR_F
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016. The following table —RNFF+_A=+—BZAF
analyses the investment properties carried at fair value B TREHFEAERELER
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in fair BABIE(EITIERFETE
value measurements. /Z_E%? FEINECIREYEE
TN e
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15

Investment properties (continued) 15 REWHE (&)
Notes: (continued) BIEE : (88)
(c) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (c) ARAFEEZERE)
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
R-ZE—+tF RZZT—RF
+=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEEBT BEAT
Investment properties: wEWE -
— Commercial properties under —R MRS
development in Shanghai [EEL/ES 9,664.4 6,838.6
— Commercial properties in Nanxun, —REE - dbm R
Beijing, Shenzhen, Tianjin and RERBABHIEE
Hong Kong LIS 2,616.1 2,302.9
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and RNEBEBMNBRESNER S F)
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date ‘% BMERNFEREEEE L
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the CHEREANEBHANTES
transfer. ﬁ& °
There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 HE—_Z—H+ER_T—RE
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. +—-—A=+—H ﬁiﬁ £1 -
2R3 N e o
Valuation processes of the Group REBZHERF
The Group measures its investment properties at fair $%T§’A$@ﬁgﬁi\&§%¥
value. The fair value of the Group's investment properties NREBR - FE—F+FR -_FE—F
at 31 December 2017 and 2016 has been determined +=-A= —1— EIZ%“QW%Z N
on the basis of valuations carried out by an independent {E)‘j?ﬁ;ﬁi$;ﬁ<@1ﬁﬁ§@2ﬁi 5
BERAEMETHEEMSE - Z

qualified valuer not related to the Group, who holds a
recognised relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the locations and segments of
the investment properties valued. The Group employed
Knight Frank to value its investment properties. For
all investment properties, their current use equates
to the highest and best use. Discussion of valuation
processes and results are held between the Group’s
senior management and valuers at least once every
six months, in line with the Group’s interim and annual
reporting dates. At each reporting date the Group's
senior management:

- verifies all major data inputs to the independent
valuation report;

- assess property valuations movements when
compared to the prior period valuation report;

- holds discussions with the independent valuer.

BRI 1R R ] B2 A A -
Pt a1 i B S
A B A 5 o A % I8 25 S 5
HIG I T o ST A
MEME - ABANEAZRAR
EMBEER o« AR A AEE T
BRSO AEET S8
EEREGAARLES~EANSG
R SRR
SHERH ARETSHEE

1% |

il

REBUGERENMEE
REEBE@A

—  FHEWE G EIBE BRI
BERELRTHES

— BBV HERETRR o

BRER(EROBRAR =

—tFFR
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15

Investment properties (continued)

Valuation processes of the Group (continued)
Changes in Level 3 fair values are also analysed at each
reporting date by the Group’s senior management.

Valuation techniques

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs

Fair values of completed commercial properties in
Shanghai (office portion), Nanxun, Shenzhen and Tianjin
are generally derived by using the income capitalisation
method. This valuation method is based on the
capitalisation of the net income and reversionary income
potential by adopting appropriate capitalisation rates,
which are derived from analysis of market transactions
and valuers’ interpretation of prevailing investor
expectations. The prevailing market rents adopted in the
valuation have been referenced to recent lettings, within
the subject properties and other comparable properties.

Fair value of completed commercial properties in Beijing
is generally derived by using the income capitalisation
method with reference to its profit rent originated from
the lease term interest and its rights in sub-letting and/or
transferring the lease term interest of the property.

Fair value of completed commercial property in Hong
Kong is generally derived by using the direct comparison
method. This valuation method is based on comparing
the property to be valued directly with other comparable
properties, which have recently transacted. However,
given the heterogeneous nature of commercial
properties, appropriate adjustments are usually required
to allow for any qualitative differences that may affect
the price likely to be achieved by the property under
consideration.

Fair values of commercial properties under development
in Shanghai (retail portion) are derived by using the
residual method. This valuation method is essentially
a means of valuing the property by reference to its
development potential by deducting development costs
together with developer’s profit and risk from the
estimated capital value of the proposed development
assuming completed as at the date of valuation.

There was no change to the valuation techniques for the
valuation for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.
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15 Investment properties (continued) 15 ®REWE @)
Valuation techniques (continued) {EEFE M @)
Fair value measurements using significant ABERE LBV AZSISET
unobservable inputs (continued) HAFESTE (&)
Range of unobservable Relationship of
Valuation inputs (probability- unobservable
Description technique(s) Unobservable inputs weighted average) inputs to fair value
ELBZG A EHE BLERG\YEH
AR hERN BEBEERAE (BEMETSE) AENBE
Commercial propertiesin ~ Residual method ~ Market unit rate RMB19,000 (2016: RMB26,200) per ~ The higher the market unit rate,
Shanghai (retail portion) square meter and RMB250,000 (2016:  the higher the fair value
RMB250,000) per unit for car parks
REBZEENE HiE% mizEhiER BERKAREL,000 mipEhiEERS
(BE3H) (ZZ—7% : AR%26,2007) ATERR
RkEEEElARE250,0007T
(ZB—~F : AR%250,0007)
Interest rate 4.75% (2016: 4.75%) The higher the interest rate,
the lower the fair value
flx 4.75% (Z5—~F : 4.75%) HMERR  AEERE
Estimated costs to RMB44.3 million The higher the estimated
completion (2016: RMB447.2 million) costs, the lower the fair
value
BERINA ARE44,300,0007 BiARE  ATERE
(ZB—~F : AR%447,200,0007)
Estimated profit margin 2% (2016: 4%) The higher the profit margin,
required of the the lower the fair value
development

LEMTCBAHER

2% (2T : &)

NEZAS  ATERE

Commercial propertiesin ~ Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate 5% The higher the capitalisation
Shanghai (office portion) ~ method rate, the lower the fair value
completed in 2017

RIE—tFRT/ R BABKE YN[ b% EXfeiERR  ATEAR
FEEIELGIN )]

Average market rental RMB7.81 per square meter per day The higher the daily rental
value, the higher the fair
value

HomEie SAGTHRAREISLE E@E%‘ﬁ@%‘ AT
AR

Commercial properties in
Nanxun, Beijing, Shenzhen
and Tianjin

Income capitalisation
method

Capitalisation rate

6% - 8% (2016: 4.85% - 8%)

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair value

REE R BIRKE WABRE BRI % 6% - 8% BRI ERE  ATERE
LBENE (Z5—RF : 4.85% - 8%)
Average market rental RMB1.0 - RMBS.5 The higher the daily rental
(2016: RMB0.9 - RMBS.5) value, the higher the fair
per square meter per day valug
Eeelik itk BRAEAAARELOTZEARY SRAEERAT
85T(ZE—"E : A\R®0IE ATERE
AREB.5T)
Commercial property Direct comparison ~ Market unit rate HKS16,400 per square feet The higher the market unit rate,
in Hong Kong method the higher the fair value
REBZEENE ERHILE mizEhiER BEHER16,400%TT ﬁ%;%ﬁ@@% 2

BRER(ERERLDR —B—tFFH
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mEMBRRMET
16 Prepaid land lease payments 16 FEfLHEER
The Group’s interest in leasehold land and land use rights AREBRHEET N FEREY
representing prepaid operating lease payments and their B EEMNKESHEER - HEEF
net carrying values is analysed as follows: BT :
2017 2017 2016 2016
—E—+f Bt ZT-RFE %
HKS Million  HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
BEAR BEAR HEAT BEATL
At 1 January K—A—H 1,461.5 1,563.2
Currency translation B 5 R B = A
differences 115.8 (89.2)
Additions NE 2.4 22.8
Transfer from investment  EEEEWE
properties 36.2 -
Amortisation K
- Capitalised in —BRERTME
properties under ER{
development (15.0) (13.9)
- Charged to income —BEREBERING
statement (Note 8) (P 7E8) (21.3) (36.3) (21.4) (35.3)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8 1,579.6 1,461.5
In Mainland China, held on: RAFEIABHES :
Leases of over 50 years  @@S0FZHE 1,175.6 1,108.2
Leases of between 10to N FL0EH0F 2 E
50 years 404.0 353.3
1,579.6 1,461.5
Certain bank borrowings are secured by the Group’s AEEIRMmMEL4,700,0008 (=
prepaid land lease payments with carrying values of T — X4 : 13,900,000 7T) 278
HKS$14.7 million (2016: HK$13.9 million) (Note 32). LA E R B ARG E TR

TTfER (PEE32) -
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17 Property, plant and equipment

17 W% #BERRE

Electric
utility plant Other plant
Construction and and Land and
in progress equipment equipment  buildings Total
BEER At
HEIR B HMERRE LitReT a8
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million  HKS Million
BB%n EEBnT  EBEBn  EEBT  HERR
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-E-tE+ZR=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 1.3 910.7 3.8 942  1,016.0
Currency translation differences ERUEES 18 66.8 0.4 2.1 711
Additions RE 29.3 0.5 1.9 - 317
Transfer g3 (0.9) 09 - - -
Transfer to intangible asset BRENEE (1.4) - - - (1.4)
Transfer to investment properties BERENZ - - - (23.7)  (23.7)
Transfer from investment properties BERENE - - - 11.8 11.8
Depreciation Vil - (66.6) (1.9) (2.7) (71.2)
Closing net book amount EREEFE 36.1 912.3 42 817 11,0343
At 31 December 2017 R=Z-t&+=B=t+-H
Cost KA 36.1 15413 71.2 1006  1,755.2
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ~ 25FE KRE - (629.0) (73.0) (18.9)  (720.9)
Net book amount REE 36.1 912.3 4.2 817 11,0343
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17 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

17 Y% - #BERKRE@E

Electric

utility plant ~ Other plant
Construction and and  Land and
inprogress  equipment  equipment  buildings Total

¥3HR At
kIR R BERRE DHRET a8
HKS Milion HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS Millon  HKS Milion
BERAT BERT REET REET AEAR

Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-E-RETZR=t-HLEE

Opening net book amount ENREFE 1.1 1,039 4.2 980 11392
Currency translation differences ERBEES (0.5) (56.4) (0.1) (1.2) (58.2)
Additions RE 6.7 03 19 - 8.9
Cost adjustments AR - 0.1) 0.1 - -
Disposals e - (0.4) - (0.4)
Depreciation & - (69.0) (1.9 (2.6) (73.5)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 7.3 910.7 38 942 10160
At 31 December 2016 RZE-A"E+ZB=1-H

Cost KA 13 1,427.0 75.0 1175 16268
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2 HERAE - (516.3) (71.2) (23.3)  (610.8)
Net book amount REFAE 1.3 910.7 38 942 10160

Certain bank borrowings are secured by certain of the
Group’s construction in progress, properties, plant and
equipment with carrying values of HK$S942.3 million
(2016: HKS$910.5 million) (Note 32).

The Group’s interests in land and buildings at their
carrying values and the lease terms are analysed as

R EERME{E942,300,0007% 7T (=
T — X4 : 910,500,000 7T ) 2
ETHERIR WX #RE
EEPURSE T|RITER (M E
32) e

AEERREEEY IR 2 i R &
FZEmALEROMMT

follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RF
HK$ Million HKS Million
BHEBT AEBT
In Hong Kong, held on: REBRB :

Leases of between 10 to 50 years N F10=50F 2 & 48.1 73.9

In Mainland China, held on: REEAHES -
Leases of between 10 to 50 years /T F10ZE50F2HE 33.6 20.3
81.7 94.2
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mEMBRRMET
18 Intangible assets 18 #EEE
Concession Other
rights - intangible
Goodwill toll road assets Total
e -
5L KEAE HtEKEE Fak

HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS$ Million ~ HKS Million
HEET HEERT HEET HEBT

Year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—-+&F

+ZA=T-HLEE
Opening net book amount FNEDFE - - 0.2 0.2
Currency translation differences ERAEEE - - 0.1 0.1
Transfer from construction in progress EE AR T2 - - 1.4 1.4
Amortisation B - - (0.1) (0.1)
Closing net book amount FRETMFE - - 1.6 1.6
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—tfF
+=ZA=+-H
Cost A 409.5 - 2.3 411.8
Accumulated amortisation and EHE 304
impairment WE (409.5) - (0.7) (410.2)
Net book amount EmFE - - 1.6 1.6
At 1 January 2016 RZB-RE
-B-H
Cost AR 409.5 1,636.3 0.8 2,046.6
Accumulated amortisation and EHE 304
impairment wE (409.5) (538.2) (0.6) (948.3)
Net book amount EFE - 1,098.1 0.2 1,098.3
Year ended 31 December 2016 HZE-ZT—~%
+ZA=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount FREFAE - 1,098.1 0.2 1,098.3
Currency translation differences ERREES - 15.6 = 15.6
Relating to disposal of subsidiaries  B#HEHBA A - (1,105.4) - (1,105.4)
Amortisation B - (8.3) - (8.3)
Closing net book amount FREDFE - - 0.2 0.2
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE
t=A=t+-H
Cost YA 409.5 - 0.8 410.3
Accumulated amortisation and ZEEER
impairment WE (409.5) = (0.6) (410.1)
Net book amount REFE - - 0.2 0.2
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19 Properties under development 19 ZEPYE
2017 2016
—E— —T—RF
HKS Million HKS Million
BHE®BT BESBT
Properties under development BRPYESLE -
comprise:
Construction costs and BENANRERMY
capitalised expenditure 282.0 238.0
Prepaid land lease payments FEf LR E K 247.9 233.0
529.9 471.0
The properties under development are all located in the BERAYEDITMUAPBEIAM -
Mainland China.
No properties under development (2016: Nil) are WEBERPYE(ZZ— T 8)
expected to be completed and available for sale within FEHRAR+-_@EARTK © B
next twelve months. At 31 December 2017, no bank At E RZZZTE—F+ A
borrowings are secured by the Group’s properties under —t—H AXEBEIE(ZZT—X
development (2016: Nil) (Note 32). FE)EREPYEDEBUERS

RITER(KIFE32)
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20

Subsidiaries

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December
2017 is HK$2,685.3 million (2016: HK$2,149.9
million), of which HKS760.2 million (2016: HK$665.5
million) is for China Renewable Energy Investment
Limited and HKS$1,986.0 million (2016: HKS1,542.7
million) is attributed to Shanghai Guangtian Real Estate
Development Company Limited. The profit allocated
to non-controlling interests of China Renewable
Energy Investment Limited is HK$35.7 million (2016:
HKS$32.5 million) and the profit allocated to non-
controlling interests of Shanghai Guangtian Real
Estate Development Company Limited is HK$308.1
million (2016: HKS171.2 million) for the year ended
31 December 2017. The ownership interests held by
non-controlling interests of China Renewable Energy
Investment Limited and Shanghai Guangtian Real Estate
Development Company Limited are 46.05% and 40%
respectively as at 31 December 2017 (2016: 45.87%
and 40%). The non-controlling interests in respect of
these subsidiary companies are material to the Group.

Set out below are the summarised financial information
(before inter-company eliminations) for each subsidiary
that has non-controlling interests that are material to the
Group.

Summarised income statement for the year ended
31 December

China Renewable

20 MR A

BEAFERES

fif\_iﬁ tF+-A=1+—8B23%*
%E i #4258 7% 2,685,300,000 7%
(== — x%& : 2,149,900,000
T )+ H 760,200,000 7 7
T — X : 665,500,000/ 7T)
TEBLEERRERRAA R
1,986,000,000/8 7L ( —F — /<% :
1,542,700,000/8 7T) %k 8 £/&E
HEMEMEAERAR - HE-Z
—tF+-_A=t—HILFE o
RTHBEBLERERKREARARZ
FE 2 B A 25 A0 A 43 35,700,000
BT(—Z—x% 32,500,000/
) M5BT L6 M b b
AR AR 2 RSN S
308,100, OOO}%TE(_;:—/\i
171,200,000/ 7L) - I — T —+
F+-—H=+—8 EPIEEBM?_
BREBR AR N EEEBREMER
BHERRPIHERERIFE ZMA
R D R 746.05% K% 40%( —F
— N - 45.87% K 40%) - BRI
FHHIE AR 2 SRR s I AN R E]
MEBEAX -

TXHIABUAEBMEEEX
ZIFEB D 2B AR SEARA
BRI IR E R E -

7T
B
(=

5

BE+-A=t—-HLEFEZERH
REE

Shanghai Guangtian
Real Estate Development

Energy Investment Limited Company Limited
FEBLRERRERRAR L EERREHERRERAR
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—+F —ERF “E-tF —Z—RE
HKS$ Million HKS Million  HKS Million HKS Million
BEER BEAT BEER BEAT
Revenue e 131.3 131.0 58.5 -
Profit for the year KE R 60.9 58.2 770.3 428.1
Total comprehensive 2EBA/ (ER)
income/(loss) ok 184.9 (33.9) 1,108.1 193.9
Dividends paid to EYRRE R ¢ 5
non-controlling interests BE (3.3) - - -

BEER(ER)ERAT =%

— R
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20 Subsidiaries (continued) 20 KMIB AT @)
Material non-controlling interests (continued) BERFERES(E)
Summarised balance sheet as at 31 December R+-ZA=+—HZEEE&EX
RE
Shanghai Guangtian
China Renewable Real Estate Development
Energy Investment Limited Company Limited
FEBERRREERATE LEEREHERREERAR
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E-t& S-S “E-tE —ERE
HKS$ Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
B BEET BEBT BEBT
Non-current assets FRBEE 2,062.8 1,830.6 9,740.2 6,902.7
Current assets MEEE 426.8 298.5 241.1 181.4
Total assets BEMAE 2,489.6 2,129.1 9,981.3 7,084.1
Non-current liabilities EnBEE 384.1 4145 3,346.0 2,649.5
Current liabilities MEAE 362.2 150.9 1,671.1 578.5
Total liabilities BERE 746.3 565.4 5,017.1 3,228.0
Summarised cash flows for the year ended 31 BE+t-A=t—HLFEEZRS
December MERE

Shanghai Guangtian

China Renewable Real Estate Development
Energy Investment Limited Company Limited
HEBERRREERA LEEAEHERRERAR
2017 2016 2017 2016

—EtF NS “E—+F NS
HKS$ Million HKS Million  HKS Million HKS Million
BEET BEAT BEBET BEBT

Net cash generated from/ MEERHE/(FA)

(used in) operating activities &% 153.0 80.2 21.1 (22.7)
Net cash (used in)/generated ~ HEEE(FTH),/F15
from investing activities Res® (192.3) 50.4 (332.5) (547.9)
Net cash generated from/(used BEEEENFTS,/(FTF)
in) financing activities BeFs 127.1 (100.2) 312.2 566.7
Net increase/(decrease) in cash & KR E(EY)
and cash equivalents #m/ (i) FeE 87.8 30.4 0.8 (3.9)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on FTEWBAR ZFBHNFE239F
pages 239 to 244. 2448 o
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21 Interests in associates 21 REEQTzER
2017 2016
—E— —T—RF
HKS Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBTT
Group’s share of net assets AEBRGEEEFE 1,111.7 1,041.2
Amount due from an associate, net & Ux—EEE = A A
B FE 139.3 139.3
1,251.0 1,180.5
Amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest UL — e Bt 2 A B OB AL R -
free and not repayable within the next twelve months. PENMBERRIKt+ZEARNE
The carrying amount approximates its fair values. The 2o BEmMEHEAENTEMBES - Hih
balance is denominated in Hong Kong dollar. BUABTLEE
The following financial information, after making THEBBER (AFERNERBEK
adjustments to conform to the Group's significant @HBEMARE ) RMANEFES
accounting policies, represents the Group's aggregate HEEBRE AT (2L AEIELTD
share of revenue and results of associates, all of which ¥ )W EERMmT -

are unlisted, and is summarised as below:

2017 2016

—ZE—tHF ZE—RF

HKS$ Million HKS Million

BEBT BEBT

Revenue Wz 238.7 266.2
Profit before income tax PS8 Bl e A 124.7 124.1
Income tax expense s i (27.6) (25.9)
Profit for the year R[5 F 97.1 98.2
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21 Interests in associates (continued) 21 REEQTZEDZ @)
Material associates EREENT
Hong Kong Construction SMC Development Limited, BEERERBERRAR AT - P
CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind Power Company Limited geAE(HR )R AREEERATINR
and CECIC HKC Wind Power Company Limited are the mEfRERER NBE(RIL)ERAD
associates that are material to the Group. AAEAEEmMSBE AZES A
7] o
Details of principal associates are set out on page 245. FTEBESANT ZHBEHNE 245
E o
Set out below are the summarised financial information TXEHE KRB ZNFZHEER
for the material associates. The information reflects HME - AHEENRMEBE A NTH
the amounts presented in the financial statements of BIFR SR N2 5| AR - W FEA
the associates adjusted for differences in accounting EFHEBENT ZEeHENE
policies between the Group and the associates. BIEHFRE o
Summarised income statement for the year ended BE+t-A=1+—BHILEEZzEH
31 December REPE
Hong Kong Construction ~ CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind ~ CECIC HKC Wind Power
SMC Development Limited  Power Company Limited Company Limited Total
BRERER hERAR(TE)EN LEEREEEH
BRERLA $EERAA (F)ERAR 8

217 2016 iy 2016 017 2016 007 2016

i Sh I e S e S S R S
HKS Millon ~ HKSMilon ~ HKS Milin ~ HKS Miion ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Milion  HKS Milion
FEAT  ABET  REMR  EEAT  REMR  REET  REET  BEER

Revenue & 828 83 226.9 6.7 204.1 2360 5138 5810
Profit for the year TER R 393 213 1158 1136 69.4 795 245 204
Other comprehensive ncome/loss) —~~— Eb2ERA/(B8) - - 614 (85.) 579 (08 1193 (86.)
Total comprehensive income SAhAEE 393 213 1712 679 1213 87 38 1339
Dividends from the associaes BEDTREBS - - 186 B33 215 200 7. 633
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21 Interests in associates (continued) 21 REEQT)Z2ER @
Material associates (continued) BERBENT(E)
Summarised balance sheet as at 31 December RtT-_B=+—BzZEEEEXRE
E:3
Hong Kong Construction ~ CECIC HKC (Gansu] Wind ~ CECIC HKC Wind Power
SWC Development Limited  Power Company Limited Company Limited Total
EREAAR hERAR (18RS THEERRRE
$EARLA $ERRAA (B ERAR #8
2017 216 2017 2016 017 216 2017 2016
23t EF E-tE R Rt R E DRt CRE
HKS Million ~ HKSMilion  HKS Million ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Million ~ HKSMilion ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Milion
FEEn REAT  RERn  FEAT  REER  REET  EEER  AEAT
Non<urrent assets FraE 1452 13409 L1784 L1646 L1097 10880 37433 35935
Current assets ez 1390 1316 1821 1035 210 1655 548.1 4006
Tasses e L2 142> 1303 1481 L1367 175 424 301
Non-current iabiltes EEL 696.8 669.4 - - - - 696.8 669.4
Current liabilties AR 299 170 533.0 1%.3 563.7 592 L1266 1025
Tolapites . 61 G4 N80 M3 ST N2 L4 LTI
Net assets AERE 867.5 786.1 8215 a8 1130 M43 24680 22122
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information MAEBRNEZE AL NTIREDH
presented to the carrying amount of the Group's IREEZ R IEE R E S IR
interests in its material associates: T
Hong Kong Construction  CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind  CECIC HKC Wind Power
SMC Development Limited  Power Company Limited Company Limited Total
ERERAR MEREE(HE)EN hHREEENEE
BRERLT $EERAA (BL)ERAT 48
2017 216 217 2016 017 216 2017 2016
TE-tF R CR-tE R DRt R D4R DR
HKS Million ~ HKSMilion ~ HKS Million ~ HKSMilon ~ HKS Million ~ HKSMiion ~ HKS Million  HKS Milion
BEEn  AEAT  EEWn  FEAT  BEMR  REET  EEMR  BEAT
Closing net assets EREERM 867.5 78.1 8215 7118 3.0 743 24680 22722
Group's share of net FEEEREE
assets (40% FE0%) U710 3144 310 308.7 309.2 8.1 987.2 908.8
Amount due from an EU-BEERT
assocate, net FlaH 139.3 1393 - - - - 139.3 1393
Carrying amount E] 486.3 1537 310 308.7 309.2 %7 11265 10481
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21 Interests in associates (continued) 21 REEQTZEDZ @)
Material associates (continued) BEREENTE)
The Group has interests in a number of individually N £ B R % & {E Bl I 3E B oK 5 B
immaterial associates. The following table analyses, in BT ERER TRAENZ
aggregate, the share of profit and other comprehensive N TR R B E A 2T
income/(loss) and carrying amount of these associates. A (B8 REEEEN DT o
2017 2016
—E—+F —T—RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
HEBT BEBT
Share of profit for the year FEAE AR F [E i F 7.3 8.8
Share of other comprehensive EfhEMEE
income/(loss) WA/ (EE) 9.2 (6.9)
Share of total comprehensive income [E{5&EUR A 4258 16.5 1.9
Carrying amount of interests in N /N o
these associates w2 REE 124.5 115.5
22 Interest in a joint venture 22 R—EBEEQATZER
2017 2016
—E—+F —T—RF
HKS Million HKS Million
HEBT BEBTT
Group's share of net assets AEEEGEEFE 1,734.4 1,653.5
Amount due from a joint venture FEW—RE& & R RIRIE 45,9 272.3
1,780.3 1,925.8
As at 31 December 2017, amount due from a joint R-ZE—+F+-_F=+—H J&
venture is unsecured and interest free. W—ReaE azBaREER LR
B o
As at 31 December 2016, amount due from a joint NZZE—RF+=-_A=+—08 " JE
venture is unsecured, of which HK$237.5 million is W—HeaE R BERERER
interest bearing at 4.75% per annum and the remaining 18 » Er237,500,0007% iR F 7
balance is interest free. The balance is denominated KATSHETE - R TEHRRE - A
in Renminbi and not repayable within the next twelve BEESRIAARKEEHE R BARAKRK
months. TZEAREE -
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22 Interest in a joint venture (continued) 22 RN—HEEERAIZER @
There are no material contingent liabilities relating RZE—+tFR-_FT—RF+_-HA
to the Group’s interest in the joint venture and no =+—H YEEHEAEEREE
contingent liabilities within the respective entities as at NRIZHERZBANARAE - M
31 December 2017 and 2016. AERSEREMESREAE -

The following financial information represents the THMBER R AERS HLE(
Group’s aggregate share of results of the joint venture BENRZEERMMT

and is summarised as below:

2017 2016
—E—tHF —F—x
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEET BEBT
(Loss)/profit before income tax Fris®ian (&), F (36.0) 110.8
Income tax expense Frs i (11.8) (28.8)
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE(BE),EF (47.8) 82.0
Shanghai Jingang North Bund Real Estate Company FEeBIINEEEBR AR AR
Limited is the joint venture of the Group. SEMEERTF -
Details of the joint venture are set out on page 246. BRENAIZFFIBEHNE246E
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22 Interest in a joint venture (continued) 22 RN—HEEERAIZER @

Set out below are the summarised financial information
for the joint venture. The information reflects the
amounts presented in the financial statements of the joint NEVNHTEE TR AEFHBRES
venture adjusted for differences in accounting policies BaEzEeARENERELT
between the Group and the joint venture. o

TXHINGERRPBEERNBE -
BERENRBREAZARMBRER

Summarised income statement for the year ended
31 December

BEt-A=+—HILFEZEH
REE

Shanghai Jingang
North Bund Real Estate
Company Limited

EBeBILMEBEERRAR
2017 2016
—E—+F NS
HK$ Million HKS Million
BEART BEBT
Revenue Wz 207.5 -
Depreciation and amortisation PrE R (75.3) (10.5)

Fair value adjustments on B ME

investment properties N EFE 188.5 461.3
Interest income A B A - 1.2
Interest expense FERZ (199.7) =
(Loss)/profit before income tax Fris®ian (&8) = F (143.9) 443.4
Income tax expense ISR (47.1) (115.3)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(ER), i F (191.0) 328.1
Other comprehensive profit/(loss)  HAib2EER], (&) 378.0 (202.0)
Total comprehensive profit LI 187.0 126.1
Dividend from a joint venture —HEERAIREZRE - -
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22 Interest in a joint venture (continued) 22 RN—HEEERAIZER @
Summarised balance sheet as at 31 December R+-—BA=+—BzZEEEER
BE

Shanghai Jingang
North Bund Real Estate
Company Limited
EBeBIMEBEERRAR

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BHEBT
Noncurrentassets drBEE 17,502.9  14,826.7
Current assets mENEEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBeEEY 2,396.1 12.0
_ Others A 122 27.8
Total currentassets mEAERE 24083 39.8
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Financial liabilities (excluding SRAaE(TeEEN
trade and other payables AR R Ho At FE S 3R
and provisions) LA K 45 ) 9,356.1 6,444.7
_ Others At 11460 1,016.4
Total non-current liabilities FrBEEeE 10502.1 7,461.1
Current liabilities mPeE 24715 791.3
Net assets BEFE 6,937.6 6,614.1
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information BEAEERESEAREEME®R
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s interest B EER B EHERNT

in its joint venture:

Shanghai Jingang
North Bund Real Estate
Company Limited

EESBILMEBERRAR
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEEBRT BEAT
Net assets BESE 6,937.6 6,614.1
Group’s share of net assets (25%) S5 B fE (5 & E/FE(25%) 1,734.4 1,653.5
Amount due from a joint venture FE—FA& & A RIFIE 45.9 272.3
Carrying amount REE 1,780.3 1,925.8
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23 THAHESHMEE

23 Available-for-sale financial assets

2017 2016
—E— —T—RF
HKS Million HKS Million
HEBT BEBTT
At 1 January n—A—H 24.0 24.9
Currency translation differences PEHIRE =5E 0.8 (0.9)
Net gains recognised in reserve R R 2 W=
(Note 31) FEE(MIEE31) 3.2 =
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 28.0 24.0
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHECREERR
include the following: T5)%18
Unlisted securities MBS
Equity securities — PRC IR ARFESH — 18.0 16.8
Club debentures BAES 10.0 7.2
28.0 24.0

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the

AL ESREEINTIEEET

following currencies: B :
2017 2016
—E—tHF NS
HKS$ Million HKS Million
ER- Y BEET
Hong Kong dollars BT 9.5 6.7
Renminbi AR 18.5 17.3
28.0 24.0
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24 Financial instruments by category 24 RERHESsz2EMIA
Assets at
fair value
Loans and through Available-
receivables profit or loss for-sale Total
BAFEE
EXR BHERIE
N ZEE AftHE k)

HKS Million  HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Million
HEBT HEBT BEBT HEHBT

Assets as per consolidated #HEEEAERZ

balance sheet BE

At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+tF
+=-A=+—H

Available-for-sale financial assets Al HES fEE

(Note 23) (Bf£23) - - 28.0 28.0
Amount due from an associate, JfEU —RIEE& N EIZUE

net (Note 21) F58 (M sE21) 139.3 - - 139.3
Amount due from a joint Bl —fRE &R RFE

venture (Note 22) (PzE22) 45.9 - - 45.9
Trade and other receivables  REIBETHEKER

under current assets K E A R

(Note 27) (BzE27) 230.1 - - 230.1
Other receivables under FERBEETFH

non-current assets H At U 39.1 - - 39.1
Restricted cash (Note 28) XI5 & (FFE28) 398.0 - - 398.0
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEEN

(Note 29) (Bf5£29) 2,497.4 - - 2,497.4
Total | 3,349.8 - 28.0 3,377.8
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF

+-RA=+—H

Available-for-sale financial AHHESREE

assets (Note 23) (PitzE23) = = 24.0 24.0
Financial assets at fair value ~ RATEEESR

through profit or loss FIfRz e RERE

(Note 26) (PHz£26) - 12.7 - 12.7
Amount due from an associate, JfEU—RIEE& N EIZUE

net (Note 21) FR8 (M EE21) 139.3 - - 139.3
Amount due from a joint B —fR& &R RFE

venture (Note 22) (BzE22) 272.3 = = 272.3
Trade and other receivables  REVEETMEKERR

under current assets K E Uk

(Note 27) (BzE27) 199.9 - - 199.9
Other receivables under non-  EREEESH

current assets H it R 23.0 = = 23.0
Restricted cash (Note 28) X1 € (FEE28) 614.7 - - 614.7
Short-term bank deposits AR 13.5 - - 135
Cash and cash equivalents ReELAEEEY

(Note 29) (PBzE29) 1,296.3 - - 1,296.3
Total Az 2,559.0 12.7 24.0 2,595.7
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24 Financial instruments by category 24 RERESs BT A @
(continued)
Liabilities at Other
fair value financial
through liabilities at
profit or loss amortised cost Total

BAYEE REHERA
RERIIR SR A

28 SRER kel
HKS Million HKS Million HKS$ Million
BEBT BEAT BEBAT
Liabilities as per consolidated DREEEERZAR
balance sheet
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=A=+—H
Borrowings (Note 32) R (M E32) - 2,796.1 2,796.1
Amount due to a shareholder R —&RERE
(Note 35) (Bi5E35) - 226.2 226.2
Trade and other payables ERERREMENR
(Note 33) (Bf5E33) - 2,187.0 2,187.0
Total k) - 5,209.3 5,209.3
At 31 December 2016 RZE—~F+ZA=1+—H
Borrowings (Note 32) B (HFE32) - 2,944.4 2,944 4
Trade and other payables ERERREMENR
(Note 33) (Bf7E33) 290.5 1,468.3 1,758.8
Total k) 290.5 4,412.7 4,703.2
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25 Properties held for sale 25 {ESHERBRZYWE
At 31 December 2017, no properties held for sale N—_ZE—+F+=-_B=+—8"
(2016: Nil) was pledged as securities for the Group's WHEEHERG ZYWHE(ZE —
borrowings (Note 32). NEBBERAEBRMEMER
<\ (M FE32) -
26 Financial assets at fair value through 26 EATEEEZRIEKZ®
profit or loss RLE =
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HKS Million HKS Million
BHEBT AEBT
Equity securities: PR A E S
— Listed in Hong Kong at market value ~ —&/& L @ &mE - 0.2
— Unlisted —JEEm™ - 12.5
- 12.7

ERBEAR S Z A HEIRIER &
BEHMBMREREAETE -

The fair value of the listed equity securities is based on
the current bid price quoted in the market at the balance
sheet date.
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27 Prepayments, trade and other 27 FAMNR - BEWERRKRHEHAE
receivables W =h
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEBT
Non-current IR ED
Prepayments and other TEAST SR L i i W 5k
__receivables (Notet)  (W&h) 1941 84.1
Current TRE
Trade receivables FEULER X 28.2 64.9
Less: provision for impairment W EUER OB E R A
of receivables (7.9) (7.3)
Trade receivables — net FEUBRFOF R 20.3 57.6
Bills receivable U E 6.4 8.0
Prepaid taxes TET R 17.7 21.9
Prepayments, other receivables and  FBZR « E A fE UK K
deposits, net of provisions & (BEMNBRERS) 185.7 112.4
o230 199.9
424.2 284.0
Notes: h=2
(a) The ageing analysis of trade receivables by the Group’s (@ REXR BEXFEHKEERK
revenue recognition policy at year end, net of provision KB MBRBEREEE 2B
for impairment, was as follows: RFAREROT :
2017 2016
—g—tF B i
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEET BEATT
0 to less than 2 months ZELR2EAR 18.2 24.2
2 to less than 6 months 22 L6ME A 1.5 -
6 to less than 12 months 6= D 121E A 0.6 3.0
12 months and more 121@ B KA £ - 30.4
20.3 57.6
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27 FAMNK - BWERARREAE

27 Prepayments, trade and other receivables

(continued) W= @)
Notes: (continued) Mt (88)
(a) (continued) (a) (%)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice due
date at year end, net of provision for impairment, was as

RER - WEZINHA S D5
E BRI (B 3 1R 2 18 R 3K

follows: IRER DT -
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBT EX-3:
0 to less than 2 months ZELR2EAR 18.2 57.5
2 to less than 6 months 22 L6ME A 1.5 -
6 to less than 12 months 6= R1218A 0.6 0.1
20.3 57.6
(i) For renewable energy business, the Group (i) HEERERERME
allows a credit period of 30 days to its trade KREBMHEEBHERF
customers. The electricity tariff receivables RMHEAHIOBZEE
due from the government have to go through B EBUBFREEZEEAR
an approval procedure before issuing invoices. B B P 4K A EE AR
The receivables relating to such invoices which FFeBAR T —+F
were not issued as at 31 December 2017 +-A=+—HBREEKH%E
amounted to HK$5.0 million (31 December HHEREZEFR B
2016: HKS41.2 million) and are classified as /A 5,000,000 7% ot ( =
less than 30 days in the ageing analysis by E-RNE+ A =4+—
invoice due date. Trade receivables that are H 41,200,000 &
less than 30 days past due are not considered IT) WA EZR|EA R
impaired. As at 31 December 2017, trade o 7RSO
receivables of HK$2.1 million (31 December BAOR308 - @mHLR
2016: HKS4.4 million) were past due but not 30 2 EUN BRI TN 4R
impaired. No impairment has been provided ERE RN_TE—+%F
for these receivables as the balances are not +Z—A=+—8  Elk
in dispute and there is no indication that the 872,100,000 T (=
amount will not be collectible. E-RE+A=1T—
B : 4,400,000 7C) 2
BHAERBE - AR
B RERFZE - TF
BENRETEBRSER
AR U E R L%
5 e W BR SRR R B B
& o
(ii) Other than renewable energy business, group (ii) BEBAERREBLI £
companies each has its own credit policies BEATeREAEMSEE
depending on the requirements of their markets KR EEBER S
and the businesses which they operate. Trade BEREEBERZE - R12
receivables that are less than 12 months past 18 B B El ~ FE W BR =X
due are not considered as impaired. As at 31 HERMBE R_ZT—+
December 2017, HKS2.1 million (2016: Nil) of F+-_A=4+—H -
trade receivables on other business were past H i 56 E W
due but not impaired. 2,100,000 ¢t (= =
—NF - \E)Em A E R
E ©
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27 Prepayments, trade and other receivables 27 FE{J% - EWEREZI R HiufE

(continued) W= )

Notes: (continued) MsE - (88)

(b) Other than renewable energy business, there is no (b) MEAERERIN  BAEH
concentration of credit risk with respect to trade BEREET D - HEWIR I
receivables, as the Group has a large number of mizEER AR -
customers.

(c) As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of HK$7.9 (c) R—_E—+F+_A=+—
million (2016: HKS7.3 million) were impaired and fully H - A&%7,900,000/8c(==
provided for. — 7% : 7,300,000/ 7T) 2 fE

WEERHBERENME ZEEL
TERER -

(d) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and (d) N & F 7 FE W BE T H i fE Uk
other receivables are denominated in the following A BREEN T E%EE -
currencies:

2017 2016

—E—tF —ZZT—RF

HKS$ Million HKS Million

BEBT BEBTT

Hong Kong dollars BT 1.8 1.4
Renminbi AR 422.4 282.6
424.2 284.0

(e) There is a bank borrowing secured by certain of the (e) NEBEETEKER  E@
Group's trade receivables with carrying values of 844,400,000 T (—F— <
HKS4.4 million (2016: HKS43.5 million) (Note 32). 4 : 43,500,000 7T) 2 BIER

ITERZ TR (HE32) »

(f) Movements on the provision for impairment of trade (f) FEWEE Zh 7 B E R EEE T
receivables are as follows:

2017 2016

—E—tF ZT—RF

HKS$ Million HKS Million

BHEET BEATT

At 1 January w—HA—8 7.3 7.8
Currency translation differences EHME R 0.6 (0.5)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 7.9 7.3
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27 Prepayments, trade and other receivables 27 FE{JEr - @H&EE?J’\&EMEE

(continued) LEAT |

Notes: (continued) MsE : (88)

(g) The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting (g) RBEHH R EZERR A
date is the carrying value of each class of receivable bt & E pE T/\Z BEMEE -~ &
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any EEY EEAEAKIEREE
collateral as security. 1R o

(h) Included in prepayments and other receivables were (h) =t ATE B & H b fE U 3R A ()
(i) deposits held for property resettlement schemes of MERNBHEFEEFE S
HKS$27.7 million (2016: HK$65.9 million) and (i) input 27,700,000 0 (==& —/R4F
value-added taxation recoverable of HK$18.4 million 65,900,000 7T ) K (ii) fE U 3
(2016: HKS23.0 million) arising from purchases of 18 1% {8 74 18,400,000 ¢ ( =
property, plant and equipment. T — X4 : 23,000,000 7T) -

TIREEEME - B RE
28 Restricted cash 28 ZMRERE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEEBT AEAT
Restricted cash represents: ZRHREIE -
Deposits placed with banks for BEHRZRRITERE T
securing certain bank loans RITERZ T - 311.2
Escrow accounts relating to ERP PR ZIEYEER
deposits held for property FEZET S
development projects 398.0 303.5
398.0 614.7
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29 Cash and cash equivalents 29 BHERBREEEY
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—RF
HK$ Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEBTT
Cash and cash equivalents comprises IR& KIREEEWMEEAT
the following: FIH -
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 1,922.6 1,056.8
Short-term bank deposits RHIRITIE 972.8 867.7
2,895.4 1,924.5
Less: Restricted cash and deposits & : ZRFIR S RREIHH
with original maturities of i i el [ w58
more than three months RITF K (398.0) (628.2)
2,497.4 1,296.3
2017 2016
—E—+F T
HKS$ Million HKS Million
HEBT BEBT
Cash and cash equivalents and RekBeZEMR
restricted cash 2R 35
(a) Placed in banks in the PRC: (a) RABFIRITFE
— denominated in Renminbi —UAREEE 2,293.1 1,598.8
— denominated in Hong Kong dollars —ABTITE 41.7 41.7
— denominated in US dollars —AETLEHE 5.6 6.7
(b) Placed in banks in Hong Kong: (b) REABZIRITFE
— denominated in Renminbi —UARBEE 6.0 137.9
— denominated in Hong Kong dollars — LB TEE 348.8 139.3
— denominated in US dollars —AETLEE 200.2 0.1
2,895.4 1,924.5
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29 Cash and cash equivalents (continued) 29 iﬁ%&ﬁ%%ﬁ%(ﬁ)
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date NEEH 2 EBRANRET :

were as follows:

2017 2016
“E-tF ZERF
Us$ HK$ RMB Uss HKS RMB
in BT ARE E BT AR
Shortterm bank deposits R EIR{TFA 2.39% 1.05%-1.45% 0.30%-3.60% - 0.73%1.51% 0.30%3.60%

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting REBEBHEE e EERRA
date is the carrying value of the cash and bank balances X Frat 2R RIRITASGER
stated above. (e
The short-term bank deposits of the Group have original REBRTEBETERZRINEB A
maturities of three months or less. ZEAHKAT o
Cash and short-term deposits of HK$2,340.4 million FRPEAM RS REHER
(2016: HKS1,647.2 million) are held in the Mainland 2,340,400,0008 (= ZF— /<5 :
China and are subject to local exchange control 1,647,200,000/% 7t ) & & b 5N E
regulations, under which the balances could not be B HHEBIFTIRIR - 324582 TN B B
exported freely out of China. The repatriation of fund out EHPE - MHPEAEEES
from the Mainland China is possibly conducted by way of JAIRYE R F 0] BE LA AR B Bk H fih 3 4K
dividends or other means as complied to the regulations. LT
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30 Share capital 30 BA
Number of Ordinary
shares shares
BRHEE AR
(Million) HKS Million
BE BEEBT
Authorised EE
At 1 January and 31 December RZFE—tF—H—HK

2017 +=—A=+—H 1,200.0 300.0
At 1 January 2016 RZE—ARFE—H—H 30,000.0 300.0
Share consolidation (Note) B& 5 & 6 (M) (28,800.0) =

At 31 December 2016 RZE—XR"F+=A
=+—H 1,200.0 300.0

Issued and fully paid ERTRAR
At 1 January 2017 and RZZE—+tF—H—HRK

31 December 2017 —ZE—+tF+=A
=+—H 528.8 132.2
At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—RF—HF—H 13,220.9 132.2
Share consolidation (Note) & & G (M) (12,692.1) =

At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"F+=A
=+—H 528.8 132.2

Note: Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the Msr : BEARARAFBRRENR _-_ZT—NFE

216

shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 6 October 2016, every twenty-five
(25) ordinary shares of HKS0.01 each in the issued
and unissued share capital of the Company were
consolidated into one (1) consolidated ordinary share of
HKS0.25 each in the issued and unissued share capital
of the Company effective on 7 October 2016.
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31 Reserves 31 f#E
Available-
Share Other ~ Property for-sale
premium Capital Contributed ~ reserve  revaluation  Exchange investments  Retained
(Notea) ~ reserve surpluis~ (Noteb)  reserve  reserve reserve  eamings Total
RtiE BitRE  NXEH e

(Ka) E4EE HARE (KD RE EREE RERE  RE2EA L
HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million
BE®n  FEET  EERT  EEBn  EEET EEBm FEET  EEEm REER

Balance at L January 2017~ H=5-+E-A-A
&8 84979 655.9 601.0 8.1 104 514.1 6.0 10516 11,3450
Curency translation diferences HERIEREHRR
ansing from translfionof ~~ FIESZERAE
financial statements of foreign 2%

operations

- slbsidiaries -HERA - - - - - 764.3 - - 7643

- associates and a ont ~BER

Venture RENA - - - - - 1514 - - 1514

Dividends paid BlRE - - (74.0) - - - - - (74.0)
Investments avaiable for sale A ERA

- Gain n fair value - kG - - - - - - 32 - 32
Gain on property revaluation ~ 71X E (2 M& - - - - 523 - - - 523

Changes in ownership ATVIREEAHE
inerests n a subsiciary Dl EERR
fatdorotresutinaloss  ZEHERER
of control arisng from RAEHE

the following factor
- exercise of alsted ~IFAEENR
Subsidiary's bonus ~ALhE
warrants, distibuted GV
by the Group AiEE - - [23) - - - - - (2.3)
Profit for the year KER AT - - - - - - - 898.8 898.8

Balance at 31 December 2017 A=5—+5+-f
=t-BER 8,497.9 655.9 524.7 8.1 62.7 14298 9.2 19504 131387
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31 Reserves (continued) 31 @FEwm
Fuailable:
Share Other — Property for-sale
premium Capital ~ Contributed reserve  revaluaon  Exchange  investments  Retained
(Note a) 1EServe surplus (Note b) 1EServe TESeIVe reSee  eamings Total
RiAE EEE  DEER e

(W)  E0EE  #AB (WD) B EiRE  REER  REE 5
BKSMilion — HKSMilon — HKGMilon — HKSMilin — HKSMiion — HKSMilon — HKSMiion  HKSMilion — HKS Millon
EEAT  EEAT  BERm  BEAT  EEAT  BEEm BERm EEAm EEAT

Balnceat 1 January 2016 R=F-7E-F-H
&8 84979 655.9 6010 81 111 11778 6.0 6703 11,6281
Currency translation diferences BERNEREEHR
ansing from translfion of ~~ FIESZEAE
financial statements of foreign £

operations

- slbsidiaries -HERA = = = = (0.1 (562.0) = = (562.7)

- associates and a ot -BER-F

Venture RENA - - - - - 920) - - 92.0)

Release of exchange diferences 2 EMELFARER

upon disposel of subsidiaries B 2% - - - - - (9.) - - (9.7)
Divdend paid to nor<ontrollng 2 3EARRR L

sharehalders k& - - - - - - = (50) (5.0)
Profit for the year RER AT - - - - - - - 3863 3863

Balance at 31 December 2016 R=3-7E+A
=1-BeR 84979 6959 601.0 8.1 104 hlal 6.0 10616 11,3450
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31

Reserves (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended).

On 12 May 2010, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary
entered into sales and purchase agreement (“S&P”) with
the Group’s non-wholly-owned subsidiary to dispose of
the renewable energy business (“Target Business”).
Based on the S&P, the purchase consideration is
settled by way of issuing and allotting 1,385,170,068
convertible preference shares by such non-wholly-owned
subsidiary. The fair value of which, on the S&P date, was
HKS$1,018.1 million. On 31 August 2010, the acquisition
was completed and the fair value of the respective
convertible preference shares changed to HK$S853.8
million. As the Target Business remains as the Group’s
subsidiary upon the disposal, such disposal transaction
is considered as a transaction with non-controlling
shareholders. As a result, the Group has recognised a
decrease in non-controlling interests of HK$8.1 million
and an increase in other reserve in equity of the same
amount.

The credit to retained earnings represented difference
between the total buy-back consideration and the book
value of the convertible preference shares issued by a
subsidiary, netting off the incremental transaction costs
directly attributable to the transaction.

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out
in section 37 of Schedule 11 to Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), on 3 March 2014, any amounts
standing to the credit of the capital reduction reserve
and capital redemption reserve accounts of a subsidiary
has been reclassified.

31 @#Ew

Wi -

(a)

(b)

(d)

BBRER

B ERIAEXBRE
—NN—REPEERIANFAEE ©

RZTE—ZTFAA+=H &
SE2ENBARIEAEEFE
2EWBRAIGYE ET%E%
(TEEWm#L) - tﬂ’%ﬁi
RER([BZREK]) - iﬁﬁ%g
Bz BEREBIEZEM
B~ ") Ad % 1,385,170,068 i
AMREER 2RI - R
BEEWZEB  BEREAQATE
/1,018,100,000 7T - ¥ =
T-ZEFNA=Z+—H WE
SRR - TABRE AT R AR B SR AR 2
~ ¥ & %&853,800,000/8 7T -
HREBREBREERNAR
E.ZWE A MBRELE
RHERBEIFTERBRE 2R
5 Al - AEEC ®RIEE
B #E 7R 28,100,000 7T + M
e A 2 E A (48 RIS h AR )
B e

R B i ) K S 4 A% B R AR AR (E
B — I B AR T EITE A
BERESLHREEE CEE -
BaXpEZEGED RR
RPHZZHRA -

BIEEBRAEN (F622F)
MIR 1137167 2 3B 5 V15
X o RZE-WME=A=H "
B B8 2 &) AR AN B R R 8 R AR AR
ERFERNTMERSED
EFHME -

(ZEBOBRAR =
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32 Borrowings 32 &
2017 2016
—g—tE T AE
HK$ Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEBTT
Non-current IR ED
Bank borrowings HRITIE X 2,174.5 1,922.6
Finance lease liabilities HEHEAE 54.1 68.5
Loans from non-controlling FEERR AR R B3R
shareholders 279.5 247.7
2,508.1 2,238.8
Current TRE
Bank borrowings HRITIE X 260.2 675.9
Finance lease liabilities BEHEAE 19.8 16.7
Loans from non-controlling JEIERR IR R E R
shareholders 8.0 13.0
288.0 705.6
Total borrowings fERAA%E 2,796.1 2,944 .4

R-ZB—tER-_T—RF  ~&EE
ZRITEABAEEZRENE - B
ML MER - Mx - s RERE
PR RR RN SR 3R & (FIFELS ~ 16
17 - 27%28) fFH&#H - E &5 T IHIR
M AN A Sk E B A R R R
1ERIEA -

In 2017 and 2016, the Group’s bank borrowings are
secured by the investment properties, prepaid land
lease payments, property, plant and equipment, trade
receivables and restricted cash of the Group (Notes 15,
16, 17, 27 and 28), certain of which are also secured by
the corporate guarantee provided by the Company or its
subsidiaries.
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32 Borrowings (continued) 32 ER@
(a) At the balance sheet date, the Group’s secured (@  R&EHE Elm; AEE 2z BEBIE
bank borrowings were repayable as follows: TERZ BRI T
2017 2016
—E— —T—RF
HK$ Million HKS Million
BEERT BEBT
Within one year —FRN 260.2 675.9
In the second year FE 281.9 226.4
In the third to fifth year FE=ZEFRHF 1,841.2 1,110.4
After the fifth year AFE 51.4 585.8
2,434.7 2,598.5
Wholly repayable within five years ZERAERNZIHEE 2,253.5 916.9
Wholly repayable after five years ZERAFELIEE 181.2 1,681.6
2,434.7 2,598.5
(b)  The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to b) AEBEZRLEERZH X
interest rate changes and the contractual FERBEENEFEEARD
repricing dates at the balance sheet date are as T
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$ Million HKS Million
BEBT ABEBT
6 months or less o6& Ak AT 2,291.5 2,417.2
6 — 12 months 216.5 221.2
2,508.0 2,638.4
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32 Borrowings (continued)

(c)

(d)

The Group has finance lease liabilities at the
balance sheet date as follows:

32

EENC )

(c)

REEH AEEZRERE
BEWT

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEAT
Gross finance lease liabilities Ft&ABEA G5
— minimum lease payments —ERBEEFE
Within one year —FR 23.9 21.5
In the second year F_F 24.6 22.1
In the third to fifth year FE=ZFEFRHF 33.9 54.2
82.4 97.8
Future finance charges on MEHREZARBEER
finance leases (8.5) (12.6)
Present value of finance BEHEEBE2RE
lease liabilities 73.9 85.2
The present value of finance  FEHEEGEZRENT :
lease liabilities is as follows:
Within one year —FR 19.8 16.7
In the second year E_F 21.8 18.4
In the third to fifth year FE=FFRF 32.3 50.1
73.9 85.2

As at 31 December 2017, loans from non-
controlling shareholders of HK$287.5 million are
unsecured, of which HK$193.8 million carries
interest at three to five years’ People’s Bank
of China (“PBOC") lending rate per annum and
the remaining balance is interest free. As at
31 December 2016, loans from non-controlling
shareholders of HK$260.7 million are unsecured,
of which HK$179.6 million carries interest at
three to five years’ PBOC lending rate per annum
and the remaining balance is interest free.

The loans that are not expected to be repayable
within twelve months are classified as non-current
liabilities. The balance is mainly denominated in
Renminbi.
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32 Borrowings (continued)
(e) The effective interest rates at the balance sheet (e)
date were as follows:

32 fER@m)

REF R ZBERMEDT

2017 2016
“E-t% —TRE
HK$ RMB HKS RMB
BT AR% BT ARE
Bank borrowings SRITIER - 4.9%6.55% 1.23%-3.35% 3.30%7.38%
Finance lease liabilities HEMEAR - 5.75% - 5.75%
Loans from non-controlling ~ 3HZRRARR &3
shareholders - 4.9% - 4.9%
(f) The carrying amounts of the borrowings are (f) BRZREER T EEEE -
denominated in the following currencies:
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEABR BEBT
Hong Kong dollars BT 3.0 104.4
Renminbi AR 2,793.1 2,840.0
2,796.1 2,944.4
(g)  The Group has the following undrawn borrowing (8 AEBETIABAEREE:
facilities:
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF ZE—RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BEET
Fixed rate expiring beyond one year % —F &2 HZEE
XA 196.7 88.9
Floating rate FENF =
— expiring within one year — R—FRZH 160.0 =
— expiring beyond one year — R—FEEH 764.4 1,037.1
1,121.1 1,126.0

BRER(ERERLAR —B—LFFH 223




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR
33 Trade and other payables 33 ENEIFREMENSE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBT
Trade payables FEATBR X 17.1 60.8
Retention payables FEHREE K 140.1 162.4
Properties sale deposits received Bl EE RS 164.3 184.5
Other payables and accruals Hitb BT R R FERHE
(Note c) (K3EC) 1,865.5 1,351.1
2,187.0 1,758.8
(a)  The ageing analysis of trade payables at year end (@) MEHH ERNEZRZERD
was as follows: Hran T -
2017 2016
—E—+F A
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBT
0 to less than 2 months ZEDR2MEA 5.3 30.6
2 to less than 6 months 2Z DR6ME A 0.6 0.2
6 to less than 12 months 6=V 121EA 4.1 0.6
12 months and more 1218 A XA E 7.1 29.4
17.1 60.8
(b)  The carrying amounts of the trade and other (b) AEEEMEDRRHEAENZ
payables are denominated in the following ZIREBEEATERYE
currencies:
2017 2016
—E—tF NS
HK$ Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEBT
Hong Kong dollars BT 65.3 57.2
Renminbi AR 2,121.7 1,411.1
US dollars e - 290.5
2,187.0 1,758.8
(c)  As of 31 December 2016, the fair value of (c) E(‘:?;—*\EJr:f =+ —
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or H Zo¥YEERAD ag ol
loss was HK$290.5 million. There was no such ;%OZS?JEO%O% %E"j% L\ ;—: {_ ;’
items as of 31 December 2017. —tli—i—,:ﬂli-i—— = \Ijg%
ILIEE o
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34 Deferred income tax liabilities 34 EEFMEHERE
The deferred income tax liabilities recognised and ERRZELEMESHABERAZEH N
movements are as follows: e
Fair value Adjustments
adjustments on prepaid
oninvestment Depreciation land lease
properties  allowance Taxloss  payments Other items Total
RENEZ Bt
ATERE  WEBE  BEEE  HEREE EfER g
HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Million  HKS Million
BE%n  EEBn  EERT  EERn  EEER  EERR
At 1 January 2017 R-E-t%-A-A 1,032.3 37 (2.6) 3019 15.2 1,384.5
Currency translation differences EifE=E 99.7 37 0.2) 230 (3.6) 122.6
Charged/[credited) to income RBERNR/ (5)
statement (Note 12) (F3£12) 285.8 16.1 - (20.5) 20 283.4
At 31 December 2017 R-E-t#+-B=1-A 1,417.8 57.5 (2.8) 304.4 13.6 1,790.5
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~5-A-H 657.5 3.9 2.9 3330 143 1,037.9
Currency translation differences ERBEER (60.6) (23 0.2 (7.3) (7.7) (77.7)
Charged/[credited) to income RBERNE/(85)
statement (Note 12) (Hz12) 4354 41 - (23.8) 8.6 4243
At 31 December 2016 RZE-7"E+-A=1-A 1,032.3 37 (2.6) 3019 15.2 1,384.5
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax MABRIEEE B AR RERTEF S E A
losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation ZHEMNZER  BlegsE s ®
of the related tax benefits through the future taxable EHEEBBERELCHEMREE - A&
profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred & 3 £ 5t 5 18 &5 18 946,300,000 % 7T
income tax assets of HK$165.5 million (2016: HK$189.5 (—=Z— 7<% : 1,040,800,000% 7T )
million) in respect of tax losses of HK$946.3 million i R E & FT 15 B & &= 165,500,000
(2016: HKS1,040.8 million) to carry forward against B (ZF —/XF 189,500,000 %
future taxable income. These tax losses have no expiry TO)AIEEE - BV BB ERM
dates except for the tax losses of HK$115.5 million WA - ZEHREBETEINEHE -
(2016: HKS$210.3 million) which will expire at various 115,500,000 L (=& — KN F -
dates up to and including 2022 (2016: 2021). 210,300,000/ 7T ) 2 B I8 B 18 15 0 X

EE - _F(BEZF)(ZE—X
F:ZF-—F) FFEBERE -
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35 Amount due to a shareholder 35 EN—BRENE
The amount due to a shareholder is unsecured, interest FEN —Z IR R IE AR - LA —
bearing at 3.5% per annum over one-month Hong B AEBETRZEFREMIDESE
Kong Interbank Offered Rate on principal amount and FRFB(EAGEE) » WEKE
repayable on demand. The balance is denominated in SKIEE - SpFALABILETE ©

Hong Kong dollars.

36 Commitments 36 KiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EARHEE
Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but REEADAERYAREEY
not yet incurred is as follows: VN N
2017 2016
—E-—t& ZT—RF
HK$ Million HKS Million
B BEBT
(i) Capital commitments undertaken () ZEEZEX#E
by the Group
(a) Property, plant and equipment (a) ¥% - HERF
- Contracted but not provided for —BEHEREE 513.7 25.1
— Authorised but not contracted for —BREEREL 100.5 =
(b) Property development projects (b) MEERIBE
- Contracted but not provided for — BRI ABERER 69.1 3415
683.3 366.6
(i) Capital commitments undertaken by the (i) & &2 712 EXFIE
joint venture
Property development project MEZERIEE
Contracted but not provided for EHEEES T
- the Group’s share —REEEG 189.5 268.3
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36 Commitments (continued)

36 EiE@)

(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) RELKEHEE Z&IE
The aggregate future minimum lease payments BIEEBE L RETZ A
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect HEREHEZ AKRZERE S A
of land and buildings are as follows: IR
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$ Million HKS Million
BEERT BEET
No later than 1 year —FRN 0.5 1.2
Later than 1 year and no later BR—FRAFA
than 5 years 0.3 0.7
0.8 1.9
(c) Future minimum rental receivable (c) REREREEWHES
The future aggregate minimum rental receivable BETAREELEHEE 2 KRR
under non-cancellable operating leases is as =IEEWESLBNT -
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$ Million ~ HKS Million
BEBT BEBT
No later than 1 year —FA 207.8 86.2
Later than 1 year and no later BRE—FERAFA
than 5 years 355.0 148.5
Later than 5 years b ke 36.6 -
599.4 234.7
The Group leases out investment properties under AEERBELEHEBEEY

UM -BONSAH—FE
T=F VEAEEEEIH

B&EH - ERAAGRKEA
E%ﬁﬁiﬁfﬁ cHE-REBFL
HAARBRTISEEE - HAEE

operating leases. The lease runs for an initial
period of one to thirteen years, with an option to
renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually increased annually
to reflect market rentals. No contingent rent was

recognised in the years ended 31 December HARABERE-_ZT—+ER -
2017 and 2016. E-RF+_A=+—HILHF
EFRRER -
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37 Contingent liabilities

(a)

(b)

The Group’s investment property located in
Shenzhen, the PRC is subject to housing facility
fund pursuant to <FIEEFREFEREBMEETIE
165> adopted on 1 November 1994. Contingent
liabilities of RMB75.8 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$90.9 million) (2016: RMB75.8
million (equivalent to approximately HK$S84.3
million)) arising in this respect have been
assessed by management with reference to the
legal opinion previously obtained. Management
have requested relief from the relevant local
government authorities on the grounds that
certain amounts of maintenance costs were
already spent for the purposes as specified under
the requirement of housing facility fund, hence
no further provision for the fund is considered
necessary.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group arranged
bank financing for certain property buyers and
provided guarantees of HK$569.5 million (2016:
HKS$335.5 million) in relation to the repayment
obligations for those buyers. The Group had not
suffered from any loss resulting from the above
guarantees in the past, which was mainly because
the guarantees concerned were only a transitional
arrangement for property buyers prior to the
completion of mortgage registration and were
pledged against property rights, in addition to the
fact that they will be released once the mortgage
registration is completed. Considering the
above factors, the Board is of the view that the
possibility of default by buyers is minimal, thus
the financial guarantees measured at fair value is
immaterial.
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38

Related party transactions

Other than the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the material
related party transactions during the year were:

(a)

(c)

At 31 December 2017, a subsidiary of the Group
provided guarantee in respect of facilities granted
to an associate of HK$100.8 million (2016:
HKS$106.7 million).

The transaction did not constitute a connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

38 BBAXS
BUSHBREAMEI KBRS

R AEERIN

(a)

FRAERBHARZ0T

RZE—tF+=_A=+—
B A&EE—[FWBARQ A
MEBETF—HEBEIAZ
EERMERBZEREA
100,800,000/ L(—ZF—7X
& : 106,700,000 7T) °

BRI 5 3 TR AR 8
RAE AR ST 2 Mis
%5 -

At 31 December 2017, a subsidiary of the Group b)) MRZE—t+FE+=_A=14—
recognised an interest income of HK$7.9 million H A&EE—FEWMREBARM
(2016: HKS10.7 million) on the outstanding HEWASZS AR REETIB
amount due from its joint venture (Note 22). ER R B Uk A 7,900,000
Jo(=Z—/~4 10,700,000
BIT) (MIFE22) ©
The transaction did not constitute a connected BEXZ S TEBKEE LT
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the MBFILAZSEE T 2 &
Listing Rules. X5 e
Key management compensation (c) FEEBENKEZMIE
Key management solely represents directors of FTEEBEKREBEERLRRR
the Company. The compensation paid or payable EE ONHENTEEE
to key management is shown as below: BEKRE ZMEWNT :
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
HEBT BEBT
Director’s fees ExHe 1.3 1.3
Salary and other benefits e kHAETR 21.7 21.2
Employer’s contribution to RIKEFTE 2B EHK
pension scheme 0.1 0.1
23.1 22.6
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38 Related party transactions (continued)

(d)

(e)

Interest expense payable on amount due to a
shareholder amounted to HK$6,169,000 (2016:
HKS Nil).

On 23 January 2017, a subsidiary of the Company
entered into a loan facility agreement with Creator
Holdings Limited (a company indirect wholly-
owned by Mr. Oei Kang, Eric), under which the
subsidiary of the Company might borrow up to
HKS$300.0 million until 31 December 2018. The
terms of the loan are set out in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The transaction did not constitute a connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

On 25 August 2017, the Company entered into
a standby loan facility agreement with Creator
Holdings Limited (a company indirect wholly-
owned by Mr. Oei Kang, Eric), under which the
Company might borrow up to HKS$1,000.0 million
until 31 December 2018. The loan is unsecured,
interest bearing at 2.8% per annum over one-
month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate on
principal amount and repayable on demand. There
has been no outstanding loan balance as at 31
December 2017.

The transaction did not constitute a connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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39 Notes to consolidated cash flow 39 FEBERERMT
statement » .
(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net (a) i«‘#é/ﬁnfgﬁilﬁggﬁﬁﬁmﬁ

cash generated from operations ReFRZH K
2017 2016
—g-tF —EAF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEAET BEBT
Profit before income tax Fir 1S %% Bil & Al 1,714.9 1,189.1
Finance income BN (32.1) (33.1)
Depreciation and amortisation IE N EH 92.6 103.2
Fair value adjustments on LB 2 AT EFHE
investment properties (1,110.0) (607.2)
Write-back of provision of trade  FEAHBR X I E b fE A5 30
and other payables Rl (32.0) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary ~ H& — B QR 2 Was - (118.8)
Net exchange loss N EEFRE 18.8 25.4
Gain on disposal of property, HEMHE  WBERREZ
plant and equipment — net Was — F 8 (1.0) (1.0)
Fair value gain on financial assets &2 FEEBZKRIIRZ
and financial liabilities at TREEREGRAR
fair value through profit or NEEWE—FEE
loss — net 0.1 9.6
Gain on settlement of a financial A& Z A FEEIBERE
liability at fair value through JfR 2 R B ElE
profit or loss (131.2) -
Gain on disposal of a financial HERAFEEBSE
asset at fair value through TRz S BB EW
profit or loss o (23.9) =
Finance costs B & A A 40.7 68.1
Share of profits less losses of FE (LB & 1 Bl AR
associates 518 (97.1) (98.2)
Share of loss/(profit) of FEIE—HAZ QA
a joint venture BB, Cafl) 47.8 (82.0)
Operating profit before working ~— ZE&E & 2RI S % Fl
capital changes 487.6 455.1
Increase in properties under R YEEIE N
development (5.8) (152.4)
Increase in prepaid land lease FEAT A0 & FE N
payments (2.0) (19.1)
Decrease in properties held ESHE R 2 MR
for sale 1,085.5 978.8
Increase in inventories FE®EmM (2.6) (0.1)
Decrease/(increase) in other H 4t I 7t B0 R MR A &2
non-current receivables and TR W B 5K % At 8 W R
trade and other receivables A (38 hn) 74.7 (32.4)
Decrease in other H A IER BN RS A 2
non-current payables and FEAT BR R N HAth FE ST 3K
trade and other payables > (70.6) (221.0)
Cash generated from operations A& £S5 1,566.8 1,008.9
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39 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement 39 4B HRERME

(continued) (48)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) BEEHEBHIE
financing activities

Liabilities from financing activities

METEHEE

Amount

due to a
Borrowings shareholder Total

EBN—%
B IR RMIE Mt
As at 1 January 2017 R=ZE—t+tH&—-A—H (2,944.4) - (2,944.4)
Cash flows RemeE 353.8 (220.0) 133.8
Foreign exchange adjustment [ 5 5% (211.4) - (211.4)
Other non-cash movements HithIE3H & &8 5.9 (6.2) (0.3)

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—tF

+=B=t+—H (2,796.1) (226.2) (3,022.3)
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40 Balance sheet and reserve movement of 40 ZXAFESEARBERHEES
the Company )
Balance sheet of the Company AKATEEEEBR

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
Note HK$ Million HKS Million
Mo EE BEBT BEAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries  MMEARZEE 1875 146.4
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEYHI B A B E 9,414.3 9,027.3
Other receivables o U3k 0.3 0.4
Cash and cash equivalents BeRAEEEY 96.7 17.1
Total currentassets =~~~ w"&#EE&® 0000000 9,511.3 9,044.8
Total assets BEEHAE 9,668.8 9,191.2
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves RATEEZTE AEN
attributable to equity EXE & E
holders of the Company
Share capital f& s 132.2 132.2
Reserves (Note) fetftE (T E) 9,533.0 9,054.5
Totalequity ~~~ #=®®| 9.665.2 ¢ 9,186.7
Current liability REBEE
Other payables Hofh 3R 3.6 4.5
Totalliability ~ ~ ®fE#s® 36 45
Total equity and liability Bk EEHEE 9,668.8 9,191.2
OEl Kang, Eric =M
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel prug=F e
Directors g
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40 gﬂﬂﬁéﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬁ
(%)
ARBEERER @

40 Balance sheet and reserve movement of
the Company (continued)
Balance sheet of the Company (continued)

Note: Reserve movement of the Company MisF : NARIHEES

Retained

earnings/

Share  Contributed  Exchange (Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses) Total

REEAH/
RipEE BB Eififs  (RiEE) ot
HKS Milion~— HKS Milion~~ HKS Million ~~ HKS Million~ HKS Million
BEAT BEBT BEAT BEAT BEBT
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZE-tF-f-R&H 8,497.9 730.7 (168.7) (5.5) 9,054.4
Currency translation differences EAREES - - 444.7 - 4447
Dividend paid BRERS - (74.0) - - (74.0)
Profit for the year REEET - - - 107.9 107.9
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZB—tE+-A=t-RA&& 8,497.9 656.7 276.0 102.4 9,533.0
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZE—r"E-A-REH 8,497.9 730.7 397.4 (101.2) 9,524.8
Currency translation differences ERphEEE - - (566.1) = (566.1)
Profit for the year RERRA - - - 9.7 95.7
Balance at 31 December 2016 RIE-~ETZA=T-RER 8,497.9 730.7 (168.7) (5.5) 9,064.4
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41 Benefits and interests of directors and 41 EERFETHBAEZEF
chief executives RELE

The remuneration of every director and chief executive BESRITHEBRNMESWT -
officer is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2017: HE ZZE—+HF+-_A=+—HILtHF
B

Employer's

contribution

Discretionary to pension
Fees Salary* bonuses* scheme* Total

BhestE
Name #E e et migRa  zEEf ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
OEI Tiie Goan BER - - - - -
OEl Kang, Eric* Ehl* 175.0 12,116.1 1,201.9 36.0 13,529.0
LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel ZEfn 100.0 2,693.4 450.0 18.0 3,261.4
WONG Jake Leong, Sammy BHER 175.0 2,495.2 239.3 36.0 2,945.5
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel RER 175.0 2,125.4 309.1 36.0 2,645.5
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico ERZ 240.0 - - - 240.0
CHENG Yuk Wo gEA 240.0 - - - 240.0
Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior il 240.0 - - - 240.0
1,345.0 19,430.1 2,200.3 126.0 23,101.4

* chief executive officer * TR

# The amounts represented emoluments in respect of # HEeHERRTHEEARARAIR
services provided in connection with the management EffBARIMESEBEERBR

of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries T RIS E B

undertaking.
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41 Benefits and interests of directors and

41 EERFETBRAEZEF

chief executives (continued) RS\
For the year ended 31 December 2016: HE-T—R"F+A=1+—HIEHF
=g
Employer's
contribution
Discretionary to pension
Fees Salary* bonuses* scheme* Total
BikEsE
Name 4 ik et BETEAt ZEIHEH ek
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T T T T T
OE! Tjie Goan B - - - - -
OE! Kang, Eric* B 175.0 11,994.4 1,190.1 36.0 13,395.5
LEE Shiu Yeg, Daniel TR 100.0 26124 305.8 18.0 3,036.2
WONG Jake Leong, Sammy EfR 175.0 2,466.9 206.1 36.0 2,884.0
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel RER 175.0 2,064.8 403.6 36.0 2,669.4
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico EXs 220.0 - - - 220.0
CHENG Yuk Wo &M 220.0 - - - 220.0
Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior iR 220.0 - - - 220.0
1,285.0 19,1285 2,105.6 126.0 22,645.1
* chief executive officer * TR

# The amounts represented emoluments in respect of
services provided in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries
undertaking.
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41

Benefits and interests of directors and
chief executives (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Mr. OEI
Tjie Goan voluntarily waived annual director’s fee of
HKS$100,000 (2016: HKS100,000).

During the year, other benefits and remunerations in
respect of accepting office as director were paid to or
receivable by the directors in respect of their services
as directors (2016: same as 2017). During the year, no
emoluments were paid or receivable by the directors in
respect of director’s other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the company or its
subsidiary undertaking (2016: Nil).

(i)  Directors’ retirement benefits

The retirement benefits paid to directors during
the year ended 31 December 2017 by a defined
contributions plan as disclosed in Note 11 in
respect of their services as a director of the
company and its subsidiaries is HK$126,000
(2016: HKS$S126,000). No other retirement
benefits were paid to or receivables by the
directors in respect of their services as directors
of the Company and its subsidiaries or other
services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the company or its subsidiary
undertaking (2016: Nil).

(ii) Directors’ termination benefits
During the year, no payments or benefits in
respect of termination of directors’ services
were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the
directors; nor are any payable (2016: Nil).

41

E%gi%hﬁkéZﬁﬂ
RS E)
BE-_T—+&#+-A=+—A1I
FE ESBELLLUBREFEES
=14 100,000 7% (T — A&
100,000/ 7T) °

FA-MEBEEEHRECESAERD
RIGENRERERAEIRERE
FNHMEANEFM(ZFT—RF - &
—ZT—EFHER) - A EEHMER
EENAREMBAREH MM
ﬁ@iﬁ%ﬁﬁ)ﬁiﬁi%%fﬂﬂ@ﬂ@(:?
—NEF )

(i) EZESZBEKEKEF
HE-_ZT—+tF+=-A=+—
BIEFEE  ARREBMFELL
Fritda v REHFRKETEIW
BEEYMNNRBESETAQR
MEWBAREZHNERKET
126,000 T (ZF—/RF
126,000/ 7C) - BEEBL R Z 4
EARARENB AR EEK
MEZIREBBEERR B KEM
BRAIEESEBHMEMRER
EEINEMERERN(ZZ
— N ) e

(i) E=RBERN
FABEREFTKIEEER
BmEEEEREE Tk
REEMAAREER 0 TFEE
MENFE(ZE—RE &) -
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41

Benefits and interests of directors and
chief executives (continued)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services
During the year, no consideration was provided to
or receivable by third parties for making available
directors’ services (2016: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-

loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year, there are no loans, quasi-loans
or other dealings in favour of the directors,
their controlled bodies corporate and connected
entities (2016: Nil).

Director’s material interests in
transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year (2016:
Nil).
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and a Joint Venture
TEMBEAR  BELAR—HEEELH

Listed below are the principal subsidiaries, associatesanda T XRZH I EEZTR AU AEEHZEZ =
joint venture which, in the opinion of the directors, principaly —+®+ - A=+ —H [ FE % &
affect the result and/or net assets of the Group for the year F 'S EEFZEAFTE T EWNE R

ended 31 December 2017. A BENTINREENTES o
1  Principal subsidiaries 1 FEWBAF
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity" Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
i/ BEHER
2 hERREL. TERE BRiTRE/RIHRES AEE ERRARS
2017 2016 2017 216
E-tF 5N ZB-tE I3
(a)  Investment holding
REER
APC Wind Power Pte Limited+* Singapore Investment holding SGD10 SGDI0 53.95% hA.13%
g REER 105K 7 103
China Rengwable Energy Investment — Cayman Islands/PRC Investment holding HKS$23,646,924 H$23,563,718 53.95% h4.13%
Limited"® HeEs /b RERR 23,646,924 7 23563, 1187 T
hEBEERRARRAA
China Rengwable Energy (Nanxun) Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS1 - 53.95% -
Limited: Bk /mE RE2R &7
hEBEHE(HR)ARAR:
China Renwable Energy (Songxian] ~ Hong Kong/PRC Investrment holding HKS1 HKST 53.95% 54.13%
Limited- Ak /mE RERR 1%7 &7
hEBEHR(BE)ARAT:
China Harvest Holdings Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1,000,000 HK$1,000,000 100% 5%
hEERRAT Ak /M8 RERR 1,000,000%7% 1,000,000%7
HKC (China) Management Company ~ PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Provision of management 58,000,000 /558,000,000 100% 100%
Limite®? enterprise services in the PRC 8,000,000%7% 8,000,0005%7
BAER(TE)ERARAT TENTEALE PR EEERE
HKC nvestment Limited- Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$77,113,850 HKS77 113,850 100% 100%
BARARERRAR Bh/hE REnR 77,113 8507 7111385057
HKC (Nanxun) Holdings Limited* Hong Kong/PRC nvestment holding HKS2 HKS2 100% 100%
BERR(EE RIIERERDA  BA/9E REBR 2R AT
HKC Property Investments (China) ~ Britsh Virgin Islands/PRC  Investment holding Uss1 Usst 100% 100%
Limite KERgBS/8  RERR 157 It
BARINERE (B RRAT
HKC Shenyang Hunan Investments ~ Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS1 HKS1 100% 100%
Limited: BL/48 RERR 157 137

B AR ERRARRAR
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TEMBEAR  BELAR—HEEELH

1 Principal subsidiaries (continued) 1 FTEME AT @)
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity" Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
i/ SEHER
2 EERREL. TERR BRARA/ERRRER AEE ERRARS
217 216 2017 216
“2-tf IENE ZB-tE T
(a)  Investment holding (continued)
RELR(E)
HKE (Da He) Holdings Limited Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS1 HKS1 53.95% h4.13%
BANRR (RN BRER AR Bi5/mE REER 1%7 LT
HKE (Danjinghe) Wind Power Limited: Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS4 HKS4 53.95% h4.13%
ARNeR (ERNBRARAR  AR/ME REER 4R 45T
HKE (Ganst) Wind Power Limited: Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS1 HKS1 53.95% h4.13%
A GEER N B /mE REER 1%7 LT
Hong Kong Construction (Interior Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$10,000 HKS10,000 100% 100%
Contracting) Limited* B4/48 REnR 10,0007 1000057
BRER(ZEIR) AR
Hong Kong Construction Tianjin Tuan PoHong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$462,000,000 HK$462,000,000 100% 100%
Hur lnvestment Limited: Bi5/mE REER 462,000,000 462,000,000%7
BAERREEANRERRAR):
Hong Kong Construction Hong Kong Investment holding HK$150,000,000 HKS150,000,000 100% 100%
[Hong Kong) Limited B RERR 150,000,000 7 150,000,000%7
BAER(BR) IRARAR
Hong Kong Energy (Holdings) Limited**  British Virgin slands/PRC  Investment holding Uss1 Usst 100% 100%
BAMRE (IR ARAT RERgES/8  RERR 157 It
Hong Kong New Energy (Si Zi Wang Qi) Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS2 HG2  53.95% h.13%
Wind Power Limited® Bi5/mE RERR 2T 25T
AR T BaERAR)!
Hong Kong New Energy (Si ZiWang Qi Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1,000 HKS1,000  53.95% h.13%
1) Wind Power Limited® Bi5/mE RERR 1,000%7 100057
BANE(DT TS
BgaRAR):
HKC (Shanghai Guangtian] Holdings ~ Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS1 HKS1 100% 100%
Limited: Bi5/mE RERR &7 A7

EEER(LERR)ARARAF:
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TEMBEAR  BELAR—HEEELH

1 Principal subsidiaries (continued) 1 FEREBATR @)
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity” Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
AL/ EEHER
2] LERREL ITRE BRITRA/EffHRER AR ERRAES
2017 216 217 216
E-tE ZEF ZE-tE CE0f
(a)  Investment holding (continued)
REBR(E)
Karbony Investment Limited: Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000 100% 100%
&ik/md REEk 10,000,000 % 10,000,000
Noble Quest Enterprises Limited* British VirginIslands/ ~ Investment holding Uss1 Uss1 100% 100%
Hong Kong REER 17 ES
RBRANS/ER
Sinoriver International Limited-* British Virgin Islands/PRC  Investment holding Uss1 Uss1 53.95% 54.13h
| EEBRAR LERABS/PE  REMR B 15
Sinoriver International (Wind Power) ~ Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$20 HKS20 53.95% 54.13%
Limited+ i/ e REEk 2087 0%
)| EE(BE)ERAR):
The Legation Quarter Limited: Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$82,105,263 HKS82,105,263 70.9% 10.9%
BARELEERARAR: &ik/md RERR 82,105,263 %7 82,105,263% 70
(b} Property investment
VE
Hong Kong Construction (China) PRC Whally foreign-owned  Investment in shopping mall 5$85,500,000 U$585,500,000 100% 100%
Engineering Company Limited** enterprise of South Ocean Centre, 85,500,000%7 85,500,000%7
BERR(RE) IRERAR hENERELE Shenzhen, the PRC
RERERIm
EEPLNES
Karbony Real Estate Development PRC Whally foreign-owned  Investment in offices, U$$155,000,000 5$155,000,000 100% 100%
(Shenzhen) Company Limited+* enterprise and shopping mall of 155,000,000% 7 155,000,000
TERHERB(RIERAF  RENEBELS Shun Hing Square,
Shenzhen, the PRC
REREMImERRS
NELZRAER
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1 Principal subsidiaries (continued) 1 FEREBATR @)
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity" Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
i/ SEHER
2 EERREL. TERR BRITRA/RIRRER AEE ERRARS
217 216 2017 216
“2-tf IENE ZB-tE T
(b)  Property investment (continued)
NERE(E)
Sky Universe Limited* Britsh Virgin Islands/PRC  Property holding of 9/F., Usst Uss1 100% 100%
KERES/HH Tower 1 South Seas 147 B3
Centre, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
RENRNEENE
KOBEERL
15982 0%
RIASEEGR)ERAERA®  PRC Wholly foreignonned  Investment in property for US$18,200,000 U5518,200,000 70.9% 709%
enterprise restaurants and retails in 18,200,000% 7 18,200,000% 7
hENERELE Beijing, the PRC
RERESRMESE
ZERZE
(c)  Property development
NERR
Huzhou Nanxun International Building ~ PRC Wholly foreign-owned ~ Development and operation 5548,000,000 US548,000,000 100% 100%
Market Center Company Limited:* ~ enterprise of a bulding materials 48,000,000% 7 48,000,000%7
BNESERE AR AT hESNERELE centre in Huzho,
the PRC
REEBNEER
BEREMHRL
Shanghai Guangtian Real Estate PRC Sino-foreign equity  Real estate development RMB2,300,000,000 RMB2,300,000,000 60% 60%
Development Company Limited:* joint venture in Hongkou District AR¥2,300,000,000%  AK%2300,000,0007
LEEARYERSERAF hERIAELE in Shangha, the PRC
IhE HEmI0R
REEIHE
Tianjin Jingang Real Estate Investment  PRC Limited liabilty Real estate development RMB500,000,000 RMBA00,000,000 100% 15%
Company Limited-#" company in Nankai District AR¥500,000,000%  AK%500,000,0007
REMEAEEREBRATH hEERELAT in Tianjin, the PRC
MERETERR
REEHE
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and a Joint Venture
TEMBEAR  BELAR—HEEELH

1 Principal subsidiaries (continued) 1 FEREBAR @)
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity" Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
i/ SEHER
2 ERRREL. TERE BRRA/RIRRES AEE ERRARSR
2017 2016 2017 216
“2-tf IERE ZB-tE R
(c)  Property development (continued)
NERR(E)
Tianjin Eka Properties PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Real estate development HK$452,000,000 HKS452,200,000 100% 100%
Company Limited+* enterprise in Tuanbo Lake of Jinhai 452,000,000 7 452,200,000%7
RERBERERAT hESNERELE County in Tianjin, the
PRC
RERETHSEEN
HRERNE

Tianjin Ruigang Enterprise Management ~ PRC Wholly foreign-owned Real estate development in HK$690,000,000 HK9690,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited+* enterprise Tianjin, the PRC 690,000,000 690,000,000/
RETRELEERERA RESERARE REXETRERE

EREE(BR) AR PRC Wholly foreignowned Real estate development at HK$928,000,000 HKS928,000,000 100% 100%
enterprise Ningbo Road in Heping 928,000,000% 7 928,000,000
hESNERELE Distrct in Shenyang,
the PRC
M EERTNTEER
RRERIE

BEEROIM)MEEBERAT® PR Wholly foreignowned Real estate development RMB260,000,000 RMB260,000,000 100% 100%
enterprise in Jiangmen, the PRC AR®260,000,000%  AK%260,000,0007
hENERELE MBIMTREEE

(d)  Renewable energy

BERR
Asia Wind Power (Mudanjiang) Company  PRC Sino-oreign equity ~ Wind Power project HK$100,000,000 HKS100,000000  46.40% 46.55%
Limited-*? joint venture in Heilongjang, 100,000,000:&7 100,000,007
ENENEE AT ARARY  dERNGELE the PRC

RPERRI/BNES

A
Hong Kong Wind Power (Muling) PRC Sinooreign equity ~ Wind Power project HK$150,100,0000 HKS150,100000  46.76% 46.92%
Company Limited-#* joint venture in Helongjiang, 150,100,000%5 150,100,005 7
BB NEE(BR)ERAR REREERE the PRC

RS A

EER
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and a Joint Venture
TEMBEAR  BELAR—HEEELH

1  Principal subsidiaries (continued) 1 FEREBATR @)
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity" Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
i/ SEHER
2 LERRRD TEEE BRARA/ERRRER AEE ERRARS
217 2016 2017 216
-t IENE ZB-tE T
(d)  Renewable energy (continued)
BERR(R)
Huzhou HKE Energy Limited* PRC wholly foreign-owned  Distributed solar project in RMBS6,000,000 - 100% -
AR R AT enterprise Nanxun, Zhejiang, AE#6,000,0007 -
hESNERELE the PRC
RETEESL
AAABRER
Songxian HKE Wind Power Limited**  PRC wholly foreign-owned  Wind Power project RMB 149,000,000 RMBY,500,000 53.95% 54.13%
EEARREARA enterprise in Songxian, Henan, AR#149,000,0007 AR#9,500,0007
HENTEALE the PRC
METEEEL
BNEEEE
BEFRENTIEREARLAT" PR wholy foreignowned  Wind Power project in RMB166,480,000 RIB166,480,000  53.95% 54.13%
enterprise Siziwang i, Inner AR¥166,480,000%  AK%166480000%
HENTEALE Mongolia, the PRC
HEEIS
THZBEEER
BEAERNTIEREARAT* PR wholly foreignowned  Wind Power project in RMB172,526,500 RUB172,526500  53.95% 54.13%
enterprise Siziwang i, Inner AR®172526500%  AK%1725265007
TENTEALE Mongolia, the PRC
TERFARTTEY
BNEEER
(e} Property services
VEL
Shenzhen Kumagai Property PRC Sino-foreign equity  Provision of property HK$60,000,000 HK$60,000,000 100% 100%
Management Company Limited* joint venture management service 60,000,007 60,000,007

HEANZERERLA PEARNAELE RENFERRE
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and a Joint Venture
TEMBLR  BELATAR-—BAEAT

2 Principal associates 2 FEBREZNT
Place of incorporation/ Group's effective
Name Issued share capital/registered capital operation equity interest
A8 BRTRA/ZRER ELEAYES Sk FEE ERRARR
2017 2016 2017 2016
“B-tF ZZRF “E-tf ZT5F
(a)  Property
nE
Hong Kong Construction SMC Development Limited:* HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000  Hong Kong/PRC 40% 40%
BRRRERERARAT 10,000,000/ 70 100000008 &%/

(b)  Renewable energy

BERR

CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind Power Company Limited:*? RMB589,620,000 RWB589,620,000  PRC 21.58% 21.65%
hER AR (HRIENEERRAA AR¥589,620,000%  AX%589620000% &

CECIC HKC Wind Power Company Limited-** RMB545,640,000 RVB45,640,000  PRC 21.58% 21.65%
hER AR NEE (R BRAR ARH545,640,000%  ARH545,640000m  #

CECIC HKE Wind Power Company Limited*# RMB323,260,000 RWB323,260,000  PRC 16.19% 16.24%
hERARANEE (R ARR A AR¥323,260000%  ARH323200000%
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and a Joint Venture

TEWMBLE  BELTAR—BEELQT

3  Ajoint venture 3 —EEEATH
Form of business structure/ Place of establishment/ Group's effective
Name Kind of legal entity operation equity interest
£R EBERRSRERRER R/ BEhE B ERRNER
2017 2016
“E-tF —TRE
Property development
NERR
Shanghai Jingang North Bund Real Estate ~ Wholly foreign-owned enterprise PRC 25% 25%
Company Limited+! IEBERE HE
DEERINEERERD AN
Notes: BT -
0 Unofficial English transliterations or translation for 0 FERRNTESREEMH
identification purposes only bl
* Interest held by subsidiaries * BEHMBERARES
o China Renewable Energy Investment Limited is listed on o FEBAERREERBRRARAR
the Stock Exchange of which the stock code is 987. BEAZFT BT - IR RIRAR987 ©
a The above legal entities are limited liability company, A BrREFIBEIN - LA ERE S

unless otherwise stated.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

IFMBERBE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E—+F —ZT—RF —T-HF —T-WNFE —T—=F
HKS$ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million

BEATL BEBTT BEBT BEBATT BEBTT

Consolidated income #HZAEFRR

statement
Revenue g 1,789 1,640 1,273 881 1,441
Profit/(loss) before Fi8HanaF,/
income tax (B18) 1,715 1,189 (571) 218 163
Income tax expense Fisfi ik (471) (600) (9) (169) (85)
Profit/(loss) for the year 7N E %A,
(B18) 1,244 589 (580) 49 78
Non-controlling interests  FEiE % iE (345) (203) 82 (136) (5)
Profit/(loss) attributable "R El#EZEHA A
to equity holders of FERER,
the Company 02)) 899 386 (498) (87) 73
Dividends 858 74 - - - -
Consolidated balance #HSAEEEER
sheet
Net current assets MEVEE R 1,576 1,946 2,167 2,666 1,929
Non-current assets ERBEE 18,679 15,304 15,724 16,610 17,656
Non-current liabilities EREEE (4,299) (3,623) (4,049) (4,180) (4,236)
Net assets including BEFHE(BEHE
non-controlling )
interests 15,956 13,627 13,842 15,096 15,349
Share capital [N 132 132 132 116 112
Reserves (] 13,139 11,345 11,628 12,587 12,925
Non-controlling interests FE#ERGHERS 2,685 2,150 2,082 2,393 2,312
Total equity DB 15,956 13,627 13,842 15,096 15,349
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—+tf —ET—RE —ET-—HFE —T-NFE —T—=F
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT 7B IT BIT BT
Earnings/(l0ss) sREF,
per share* (E18)*
- basic — K 1.700 0.730 (1.002) (0.193) 0.162
— diluted — 8 1.700 0.728 (1.032) (0.228) 0.151
Dividend per share? BREE!
— attributable to the year ~—FEE(G 0.14 = - - -
Return on total equity® 154258 B3R =L 7.8% 4.3% (4.2%) 0.3% 0.5%
Notes: M3
# Earnings/(loss) per share and dividend per share were restated  # BREN,/(BE)RERKREEKEE
to reflect the share consolidation as set out in Note 30(a). 5l LA BB FE30(@) T 2 AX D & B o
a Return on total equity represents profit/loss for the year 2 W EER R R ARNEE RN EIB
expressed as a percentage of the closing total equity for the REBFEFREREE L ADL -

year concerned.
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEYE—BR
(as at the date of the annual report)
(RAFERAH)
Investment properties - completed REYE - E&FK
(Approx.)
(Approx.) Attributable
Share- GFA GFA
Location Existing use holding (sq.m.) (sq.m.) Term of lease
(R#) (X#)
EEAER EftEEAER
hEH Rl frig (ERHK) (FHK) HEH
The shopping mall, all car parking spaces Offices and shops 100% 31,000 31,000 Medium
and 1/F, 2/F and 58/F offices, BREREE i
Shun Hing Square, Di Wang Commercial Centre,
No. 5002 Shennan Road East, Luohu, Shenzhen,
the PRC
A B RS T 8 R R 250025
EEESHIBETLNENGS  HEEESRR
112 2ERO8ERAE
The shopping mall and all car parking spaces, Shops 100% 6,300 6,300 Medium
South Ocean Centre, Dongmen Road Central, BE HE
Shenzhen, the PRC
firi R BRI TR P B ig R LR BB 5
FERER
Various shops, No. 23 Qianmen, Dong Dajie, Shops 70.9% 17,100 12,100 Short
Dongcheng, Beijing, the PRC 53 ysk
fir AR B3 R T SUA I A P R A 4723540
SHERREH
Various shops in Zone B & C, Shops 100% 97,000 97,000 Medium
Construction Materials Market, s i
Nanxun Economic Development District,
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
RREIE RN TR CERERRER
EEMHEBRERCENZHEH
Three apartment units, various shops and Shops and residential 40% 35,300 14,100 Medium
705 car parking spaces of CITIC Plaza, BEREE e

No. 233 Tianhe Road North, Tianhe District,
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, the PRC

fir B ER A BM MR ERTIL82335
RERSHIAEEEN « 2HEHERI05EREN
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEYE-BR
(as at the date of the annual report)
(RAFERAE)

Investment properties - completed (Continued) REYE - BF K (@)

(Approx.)
(Approx.) Attributable
Share- GFA GFA
Location Existing use holding (sq.m.) (sq.m.) Term of lease
(R#) (X#)
EEAER EEEAER
% EpliiE: g (EHK) (FAK) HEH
Units 1 to 7 on 28th Floor, Offices of City Centre, Offices 100% 1,487 1,487 Medium
Junctions of Xikang Road and Chengdu Road, NS HE
Heping District, Tianjin, the PRC
AR EMMTEARKEKDERD
BREPDBEHAE]L-THEN
Various Portions of 9th floor of Tower 1, Offices 100% 425 425 Medium
South Seas Center, No. 75 Mody Road, WAE i
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BB NERDBENETHH
AARL—EIENETHR
Office tower 1 and 2 of Shanghai Landmark Center, Offices 60% 118,000 70,800 Medium
No. 4 Sichuan North Road, Hongkou District, HAZE i
Shanghai, the PRC
B AL AR )1 3L s
HhEEEER LN —ERZEHAR
Office tower of Sinar Mas Plaza, located in Offices 25% 142,000 35,500 Medium
the Northern side of the International Passenger NS i
Transportation Cruise Terminal of
Hongkou District, Shanghai, the PRC
IR EE 8T O &R R H e 55 f
BERESGONRAE
a2
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEYE—BR
(as at the date of the annual report)
(RAFRE )
Properties under development BEDPYE
a) For sale purpose a) {FHERZE
(Approx.)
Expected  (Approx.]  (Approx.) Attributable
Intended Share- Stage of year of  Site area GFA GFA
Location use holding completion completion (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(K#)
(R#) (K#) i T
BE  HBER BELER AEE
bk RERZ Mg ERMEER ERER  (FEK) (FAX) (EHK)
A parcel of land along the Residential 100% Planning stage - 304,000 836,000 836,000
eastern shore of Tuanbo Lake, ~ {F£ RERR
Jinhai County, Tianjin,
the PRC
iR EXET S

BRMARIAE BRI

Two parcels of land (Zone A, Residential and ~ 100% Construction stage 2018 - 2019 26,000 81,000 81,000

(2) located at Ningpo Road, shops and Planning stage ~ —E—/\§%
Heping District, Shenyang, FERAEE TEEER “E-NE
the PRC RERER

e EEBGH T RERHA
Z—fEti(A- C2R)
917,000
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEYE—BR
(as at the date of the annual report)
(RAFRE )
Properties under development (continued) BERPYE@E
b) For investment purpose b) {ERERE
(Approx.)
Expected  (Approx.]  (Approx.) Attributable
Intended Share- Stage of year of  Site area GFA GFA
Location use holding completion completion (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(R#)
(R#) (K#) EfERE
Bl BBER BE4AEE HEE
bk RERZ Mg ERMEER ERER  (FEK) (FAX) (EHK)
Retail portion of Sinar Mas Plaza  Shops 25% Construction in 2018 24,000 111,000 21,750
located in the Northern side &3 progress “Z-N\E
of the International Passenger TRETH
Transportation

Cruise Terminal of
Hongkou District, Shanghai,
the PRC

AR E EEmIOE
BB T
BEFESZZEDR

Retail portion of Shanghai Shops 60% Construction in 2018 11,000 73,000 43,800
Landmark Center, No. 4, Ak progress —2)\&
Sichuan North Road, TR
Hongkou District, Shanghai,
the PRC
firiA B mII O E
llislgz ki
FBEER L EENN
71,550
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEYE—BR
(as at the date of the annual report)
(RARFHRAHE)
Properties held for sale {ESHERZR 2
(Approx.)
(Approx.) Attributable
GFA remain GFA remain
unsold as at  unsold as at
(Approx.) (Approx.) 31 December 31 December
Site area GFA 2017 2017
Location Intended use  Share-holding (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(KR (K8 EER
ZB-tf “B-tf
t=A=t-B t=A=t-H
(X#) (X#) HkHEZ HAHEZ
HEEE BEAER EEAEE BEAER
e RERZ MR (EHX) (F75%) (EAXK) (£AK)
Various shops in Zone B & C, Shops 100% 68,000 83,000 24,600 24,600
Construction Materials Market, g
Nanxun Economic Development
District, Huzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
IR AR BT & T
HELERER
BEREENEER
BE RCEMZHEH
Various residential units in Residential 100% 54,000 150,000 40,800 40,800
Tianjin Eka Garden, FE
South of Hongai South Road,
Nanki District, Tiajin, the PRC
R LK 2 T A
BRI EREZRTER
Z5REE
Various residential units and Residential and 100% 95,000 189,000 33,400 33,400
shops in Jiangmen Eka Garden, shops
Jianghai District, Jiangmen, FEREE
Guangdong Province, the PRC
R EEREIMATIER
ZTEERzZREERES
Various residential units (Zone B, Residential 100% 41,000 183,000 48,200 48,200
B1-B4, B6-B11, Zone C1, C5-C6) in =
Shenyang Eka Garden, Ningpo Road,
Heping District, Shenyang, the PRC
e BB TE =R
&I E (BER1-B4 - B6BIL
C1EC5-Co) %A=
147,000
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HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
BBER (ZR) BRAF

9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BERBNERDERENE 75 SRrFH 0 1 8 98
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